
 

 
 
 

AGENDA 
PLANNING COMMISSION PRE-MEETING 

 
Tuesday, August 13, 2019 

A light dinner will be served at 6 p.m. 
Pre-Meeting Begins at 6:30 p.m. 

 
CMO Conference Room 

Upper Level, City Hall 
 

    
ITEM NO. 1:  Items on This Evening’s Agenda 
  

a) Public Hearing and Action on St. Mark Village Preliminary Development Plan and 
Official Development Plan 
 
Prepared by: David German, Senior Planner 

 
ITEM NO. 2:  Upcoming Planning Commission Meeting Agenda Items 
 

August 27, 2019 Canceled 
Sept 10, 2019 To be confirmed 
Sept 24, 2019 Church Ranch Home Place PDP and ODP Amendment –Senior 

Affordable Multifamily Housing 
Oct 8, 2019 To be confirmed 
Oct 22, 2019 To be confirmed 



                                                Tuesday, August 13, 2019 at 7:00 p.m. 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING AGENDA 
1. ROLL CALL 
 
2. CONSIDERATION OF MEETING MINUTES 

a. Meeting Minutes of June 11, 2019 
 
3. CONSIDERATION OF NEW BUSINESS AND PUBLIC HEARING 

a. Public hearing and action on St. Mark Village Preliminary Development Plan and Official 
Development Plan 
 
Prepared by: David German, Senior Planner 

 
4. OLD BUSINESS 

 
5. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS  

 
6. ADJOURNMENT 

PLEASE NOTE 
The following are the procedures used by the Planning Commission: 

1. Staff will present agenda items.  The Developer may present after Staff. 

2. Those in attendance who favor the proposed development may address the Commission, 
followed by those who do not favor the proposed development.  The Chair may impose time 
limits on speakers.  PLEASE SIGN THE SHEET IN THE FRONT OF THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
WHEN YOU SPEAK. 

3. All questions shall be addressed to the Chair of the Planning Commission.  The Chair will call on 
Staff to address questions at the end of the hearing. Planning Commission reserves the right to 
question anyone at any time during the Public Hearing. 

4. The Commission is charged with the review of Comprehensive Plan Amendments, Rezonings, 
Preliminary Development Plans, Amended Preliminary Development Plans, Official 
Development Plans, Amended Official Development Plans, Preliminary Plats and Amended 
Preliminary Plats that are not approved administratively by the City Manager. 

5. There are two different procedures involved in the review of applications for development plan 
approval and the procedure depends on the type of plan under consideration: 
a. After review and a public hearing, the Planning Commission may recommend approval of an 

application, approval subject to specified conditions, or denial of an application.  The Planning 
Commission is not the final authority on these applications.  The City Council is the final 
decision maker. 

b. On applications for Official Development Plans and Amended Official Development Plans, the 
Planning Commission does make the final decision, unless the decision of the Planning 
Commission is appealed to the City Council within 10 days of the Planning Commission 
decision by a “party-in-interest,” as described in Section 11-5-13(B.1) of the Westminster 
Municipal Code.  If a decision of the Planning Commission is properly appealed to the City 
Council, the City Council will schedule the item for consideration at one of their upcoming 
meetings and, after holding a public hearing, make a final decision on the application. 

If you need further information regarding this process, or any other matter related to the City’s 
development review process, please contact the City Planning Division at 303-658-2092.  



 
 

CITY OF WESTMINSTER 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

Meeting Minutes 
June 11, 2019 

 
1. ROLL CALL 

The regular meeting was called to order at 7:00 pm by Chair James Boschert.  Present were 
Commissioners Dave Carpenter, Lawrence Dunn, David Tomecek, Elisa Torrez and Chennou 
Xiong. Vice-Chair Joe McConnell, Commissioners Tracey Colling and Rick Mayo were excused 
from attendance.  Also present: Staff members Rita McConnell, Planning Manager, John 
McConnell, Principal Planner, Patrick Caldwell, Senior Planner, Jennifer Baden, Planning Aide 
and Karen Gay, City Manager’s Office.  With the roll called, Chairperson Boschert stated that 
both alternates would be voting.  
 

2. CONSIDERATION OF MINUTES 
Meeting Minutes from May 14, 2019. 
Commissioner Dunn made a motion to accept the minutes from the May 14, 2019 Planning 
Commission meeting. Commissioner Carpenter seconded the motion.  The minutes were 
unanimously accepted (6-0). 
 

3. CONSIDERATION OF NEW BUSINESS AND PUBLIC HEARINGS 
Public Hearing and Action on: 1) a proposed amendment to the Westminster Comprehensive 
Plan to designate the land use as Public Parks for five lots in the North Mountain Subdivision 
with addresses at 6930, 6940, 6950, and 6960 Lowell Boulevard; and 2) an amendment to the 
Westminster zoning map to establish zoning as Specific Plan District (SPD) for five lots in the 
North Mountain Subdivision with addresses at 6930, 6940, 6950, and 6960 Lowell Boulevard. 
The lots were annexed into the City on April 22, 2019.  Following the Planning Commission 
review the City Council may add a Comprehensive Plan land use designation, and establish 
Zoning for these properties.   

 
Patrick Caldwell, Senior Planner, entered into the record the agenda memorandum, 
attachments, property postings, proof of applicant mailing and public notice affidavit of 
publication from the Westminster Window May 30, 2019. Mr. Caldwell narrated a PowerPoint 
presentation for the proposal to: 
 

a. Hold a public hearing. 
 

b. Recommend that the Planning Commission recommend to City Council approval of a 
proposed amendment to the Westminster Comprehensive Plan to designate the land 
use as Public Parks for five lots in the North Mountain Subdivision with addresses at 
6930, 6940, 6950, and 6960 Lowell Boulevard.  This recommendation is based on a 
finding that the Amendment is generally supported by the criteria set forth in Section 11-
5-21 of the Westminster Municipal Code. 
 

c. Recommend that the Planning Commission recommend to City Council approval of an 
amendment to the Westminster zoning map to establish zoning as Specific Plan District 
(SPD) for five lots in the North Mountain Subdivision with addresses at 6930, 6940, 6950, 
and 6960 Lowell Boulevard.  This recommendation is based on a finding that the 
Amendment is generally supported by the criteria set forth in Section 11-4-3 and 11-5-2 
and 11-5-3 of the Westminster Municipal Code. 

 
Chairperson Boschert opened the floor for discussion and questions from the Commissioners to 
the Staff and applicant.   



2 

 
Having no discussion and hearing no questions, Chairperson Boschert opened the public 
hearing at 7:08 p.m. 

 
Seeing that no members of the public were present to offer public comment, Chairperson 
Boschert closed the public hearing at 7:08 p.m. and entertained discussion from the 
Commissioners.  
 
Commissioner Carpenter motioned that the Planning Commission recommend to City Council 
approval of a proposed amendment to the Westminster Comprehensive Plan to designate the 
land use as Public Parks for five lots in the North Mountain Subdivision with addresses at 6930, 
6940, 6950, and 6960 Lowell Boulevard.  This recommendation is based on a finding that the 
Amendment is generally supported by the criteria set forth in Section 11-5-21 of the Westminster 
Municipal Code. Commissioner Dunn seconded the motion. The motion was unanimously 
approved (6-0). 
 
Commissioner Dunn motioned that the Planning Commission recommend to City Council 
approval of an amendment to the Westminster zoning map to establish zoning as Specific Plan 
District (SPD) for five lots in the North Mountain Subdivision with addresses at 6930, 6940, 
6950, and 6960 Lowell Boulevard.  This recommendation is based on a finding that the 
Amendment is generally supported by the criteria set forth in Section 11-4-3 and 11-5-2 and 
11-5-3 of the Westminster Municipal Code. Commissioner Tomecek seconded the motion. The 
motion was unanimously approved (6-0). 
 
A full recording of the meeting will be made available upon request. 
 

4. ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:11 p.m. 
 
THE WESTMINSTER PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
___________________________________________ 
James Boschert, Chairperson 



















99th Ave

99thCir

96th Cir

Julian Way

Irving Ct

98th Pl

Irv
ing

 St

Hooker Ct

GroveSt
Grove Cir

97th Ave

98th Ave

96th Ave

Federal Blvd

City of WestminsterEngineering (GIS)/ Planning - DWG - 04-24-2019

St. Mark Village Site

0 500 1,000250 Feet

Northpark Subdivision City of Federal Heights

Squires
Park

Environs
Subdivision St. Mark Church Hollypark

Subdivision

E
Vicinity Map

St. Mark Village
NWC - 97th Avenue & Federal Blvd.

ATTACHMENT 1

Wishbone
Restaurant

New
Elevated

Water
Tower
Site

City of Westminster



ATTACHMENT 2 
 

Page 1 of 7 

 

EXCEPTIONS AND JUSTIFICATIONS LIST – ST. MARK VILLAGE 
 
1) BUILDING SETBACKS: 

 REQUIREMENT NOT MET IN MULTIPLE AREAS: 
A. THE WEST PROPERTY LINE IS ADJACENT TO THE CITY'S ELEVATED 

WATER TOWER SITE. GIVEN THE BUILDING HEIGHTS OF 45 FEET, 4 
INCHES, THE WEST SETBACK MINIMUM WOULD BE 68 FEET.  THE 
PROPOSED SETBACK ON THE SITE PLAN IS 10 FEET.  
  

JUSTIFICATION: DUE TO THE NATURE AND LONG TERM MUNICIPAL USE OF THE 
CITY'S HYDROPILLAR PROPERTY ADJACENT TO THE WEST OF ST MARK 
VILLAGE, A 10 FOOT SETBACK FROM THE WESTERLY PROPERTY LINE FOR 
FIRE PROTECTION BEST PRACTICES IS PROVIDED. REDEVELOPMENT OF A 
MUNICIPAL PROPERTY SERVING A CRITICAL MUNICIPAL FUNCTION TO LARGE 
AREAS OF THE CITY IS HIGHLY UNLIKELY AND THEREFORE, THE REDUCED 
SETBACK IS WARRANTED. 

B. THE NORTH PROPERTY LINE IS ADJACENT TO NORTH PARK PRIVATE 
OPEN SPACE. NORTH PARK IS A RESIDENTIAL NEIGHBORHOOD WITH 
SINGLE-FAMILY AND TOWNHOME RESIDENCES. GIVEN THE BUILDING 
HEIGHTS OF 45 FEET, 4 INCHES, THE NORTH SETBACK MINIMUM WOULD 
BE 68 FEET.  THE PROPOSED SETBACK ON THE SITE PLAN IS 5 FEET. 

 
JUSTIFICATION:ADJACENT TO THE NORTHERN PROPERTY LINE OF ST. MARK 
VILLAGE, THERE EXISTS A 75 FOOT WIDE UTILITY EASEMENT LOCATED ON 
PROPERTY PLATTED IN THE NORTHPARK SUBDIVISION TO ACCOMMODATE 
HIGH VOLTAGE UTILITY TRANSMISSION LINES. FROM THE NORTHERN LINE OF 
THE UTILITY EASEMENT TO THE MOST NORTHERLY BUILDING FACE OF ST 
MARK VILLAGE, THERE IS A DISTANCE (AND THEREBY AN EFFECTIVE SETBACK 
DUE TO THE UTILITY EASEMENT BEING UNDEVELOPABLE) OF 80 FEET, WHICH 
IS IN EXCESS OF THE REQUIRED SETBACK FROM THE NORTHERLY PROPERTY 
LINE. 

C. THE EAST PROPERTY LINE IS ADJACENT TO FEDERAL BOULEVARD.  A 
75' BUILDING SETBACK IS REQUIRED FROM ARTERIAL STREETS.  THE 
PROPOSED SETBACK ON THE SITE PLAN IS 39 FEET, 71/4 INCHES. 

JUSTIFICATION: THE 2013 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN ENVISIONS URBAN 
PLANNING THAT BRINGS BUILDINGS CLOSER TO THE STREET EDGE, HIGH 
QUALITY MATERIALS, AND IMPROVED SITE LANDSCAPING AND PEDESTRIAN 
AMENITIES. AS THE SITE PLAN DEMONSTRATES, ST. MARK VILLAGE ACHIEVES 
THE OBJECTIVES OF THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN WITH A SIGNATURE TOWER 
FACED WITH STONE ALONG FEDERAL BOULEVARD AND ENHANCED 
LANDSCAPING ALONG THE STREET EDGE TO SCREEN VEHICULAR PARKING 
AND MOVEMENT ON-SITE WITHIN THE 39 FOOT, 71/4 INCH SETBACK.  
 

D. GIVEN THE BUILDING HEIGHTS OF 45 FEET, 4 INCHES, THE EAST 
PROPERTY LINE ADJACENT TO THE WISHBONE RESTAURANT 
PROPERTY WOULD HAVE A 68-FOOT REQUIRED BUILDING SETBACK.  
THE PROPOSED SETBACK ON THE SITE PLAN IS 10 FEET. 



ATTACHMENT 2 
 

Page 2 of 7 

 

 
JUSTIFICATION: THE WISHBONE PROPERTY IS A CURRENTLY IMPROVED 
PARCEL WITH A PARKING LOT ADJACENT TO ST MARK VILLAGE ON THE 
SOUTHEAST CORNER OF THE SITE. THE SHARED EAST/WEST PROPERTY LINE 
MAINTAINS A 100 FOOT SETBACK FROM THE SHARED PROPERTY LINE TO ANY 
BUILDING FACE. THE SHARED NORTH/SOUTH PROPERTY LINE MAINTAINS A 10 
FOOT SETBACK FOR FIRE PROTECTION BEST PRACTICES. SHOULD THE 
WISHBONE PROPERTY GET REDEVELOPED AT SOME POINT IN THE FUTURE, 
AN EQUIVALENT TEN FOOT SETBACK FOR THE REDEVELOPED PROPERTY 
WOULD PROVIDE ADEQUATE FIRE PROTECTION FOR ANY USE DEVELOPED. 
FURTHER, THIS AREA OF ST MARK'S VILLAGE IS A NON-DOMINANT FACADE 
WITH LIMITED WINDOW OPENINGS, FURTHER REDUCING THE RISK FOR ANY 
FUTURE FIRE PROTECTION ISSUES IF THE WISHBONE PROPERTY WERE TO BE 
REDEVELOPED. THE PROPOSED SETBACK HELPS PROMOTE THE VISUAL 
APPEARANCE OF A STREET WALL AND IN TURN A BETTER STREETSCAPE 
ALONG 97TH AVENUE, WHICH IS CRITICAL TO THE PEDESTRIAN EXPERIENCE. 

 
E. THE REMAINDER OF THE SOUTH BOUNDARY LINE IS ADJACENT TO 97TH 

AVENUE.  GIVEN THE BUILDING HEIGHTS OF 45 FEET, 4 INCHES, THE 
SOUTH SETBACK MINIMUM WOULD BE 68 FEET.  THE PROPOSED 
SETBACK ON THE SITE PLAN IS 25 FEET. 

 
JUSTIFICATION: THE 2013 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN ENVISIONS URBAN 
PLANNING THAT BRINGS BUILDINGS CLOSER TO THE STREET EDGE, HIGH 
QUALITY MATERIALS, AND IMPROVED SITE LANDSCAPING AND PEDESTRIAN 
AMENITIES. AS THE SITE PLAN DEMONSTRATES, ST. MARK VILLAGE ACHIEVES 
THE OBJECTIVES OF THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN WITHIN THE 25 FOOT 
SETBACK BY BRINGING BUILDINGS CLOSER TO THE STREET EDGE TO CREATE 
A STREET WALL, INSTALLING BULB-OUTS AT THE SIDEWALK ON BOTH SIDES 
OF 97TH AVENUE AS A TRAFFIC CALMING SOLUTION AND PEDESTRIAN 
AMENITY, AND UTILIZING GREEN INFRASTRUCTURE RAIN GARDENS THE 
ENTIRE FRONTAGE ALONG 97TH AVENUE, WHICH SERVE AS A VISUAL AMENITY 
USING SUSTAINABLE WATER QUALITY METHODS. 
 

2) LANDSCAPE SETBACK AREAS: 
REQUIREMENT NOT MET: 35' LANDSCAPED SETBACK AREA (25' ALONG 
FEDERAL BLVD.) NOT PROVIDED.  NO PARKING IS PERMITTED IN THESE 
SETBACK AREAS. 
 

JUSTIFICATION: THE 2013 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN ENVISIONS URBAN 
PLANNING THAT BRINGS BUILDINGS CLOSER TO THE STREET EDGE, HIGH 
QUALITY MATERIALS, AND IMPROVED SITE LANDSCAPING AND PEDESTRIAN 
AMENITIES. IN LIEU OF THE 35' LANDSCAPED SETBACK AREA, ENHANCED 
LANDSCAPING PLANTINGS HAVE BEEN PROVIDED AT A RATE 3 TIMES THE 
NUMBER OF REQUIRED PLANTINGS AND ADEQUATELY SCREENING ON-SITE 
VEHICULAR PARKING AND MOVEMENT. 

 
3) SETBACK OF POOL / CLUBHOUSE: 

REQUIREMENT NOT MET: 100' SEPARATION BETWEEN POOL/CLUBHOUSE AND 
PROPERTY LINE. 
 



ATTACHMENT 2 
 

Page 3 of 7 

 

JUSTIFICATION: PRIVACY LANDSCAPING WILL BE INSTALLED NORTH OF THE 
POOL LOCATION IN ORDER TO SCREEN THE ACTIVITY AREA. FURTHER, AN 
EXISTING LANDSCAPING BERM WITH MATURE LANDSCAPING ALREADY EXISTS 
APPROXIMATELY 16-22 FEET NORTH OF THE PROPOSED POOL LOCATION AND 
A 75 FOOT WIDE UTILITY EASEMENT PROVIDES ADEQUATE BUFFER TO 
EXISTING NEIGHBORS TO THE NORTH. IN ADDITION, THE AREA SOUTH OF AN 
EXISTING FENCE ALONG THE NORTH PROPERTY LINE IS TO BE ADDRESSED BY 
A FUTURE ODP AMENDMENT WHICH IS EXPECTED TO PROVIDE FOR A 
SUBSTANTIAL TREE SCREEN IN THIS AREA, PER ACCEPTANCE BY THE 
NORTHPARK EAST ASSOCIATION. 
 

4) DETACHED SIDEWALKS: 
REQUIREMENT NOT MET: NO DETACHED SIDEWALK (MINIMUM 5' WIDE, WITH 
STREET TREES / LANDSCAPING BETWEEN CURB AND SIDEWALK) PROVIDED 
ALONG 97TH AVENUE. 

 
JUSTIFICATION: 4 FOOT WIDE ATTACHED SIDEWALKS ALONG 97TH AVENUE 
ARE ALREADY IN PLACE AND CONSTRUCTED, ARE CONSISTENT WITH THE 
ENTIRE LENGTH OF 97TH AVENUE FROM FEDERAL TO LOWELL. DETACHING 
THE SIDEWALKS ALONG 97TH AVENUE WOULD MAKE THE ST MARK VILLAGE 
PARCEL LOOK OUT OF PLACE WITHIN THE SURROUNDING NEIGHBORHOOD 
CONTEXT. FURTHER, DUE TO 97TH AVENUE NOT BEING AN ARTERIAL 
ROADWAY, THE PEDESTRIAN EXPERIENCE IS NOT DIMINISHED AS LIMITED 
VEHICULAR TRAFFIC EXISTS ALONG THE STRETCH OF 97TH AVENUE BETWEEN 
FEDERAL AND LOWELL. 
 

5) PARKING: 
REQUIREMENT NOT MET: SHORTAGE IN PARKING SPACES PROVIDED; (273 
PROVIDED, 347 REQUIRED, 74 SHORT).  (NOTE: ON-STREET PARKING SPACES 
MAY NOT BE COUNTED.) 
 

JUSTIFICATION: PARKING STUDY PROVIDED TO THE CITY OF WESTMINSTER 
SUPPORTED A PARKING REDUCTION BETWEEN 21% AND 41% LOWER THAN 
MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS. A PARKING RATIO OF 1.26:1.00 IS UTILIZED, A 21% 
REDUCTION. THE REDUCTION IS AT A TYPICAL RATE FOR THE METRO AREA. 
 

6) COVERED AND/OR GARAGE PARKING: 
REQUIREMENT NOT MET: NO CARPORTS OR GARAGES PROVIDED. 
 
JUSTIFICATION: ST MARK VILLAGE IS TO BE A RENT-RESTRICTED AFFORDABLE 
COMMUNITY AND IN ORDER TO MAINTAIN AFFORDABILITY, REQUESTS 
COVERED PARKING REQUIREMENTS BE ELIMINATED AND INSTEAD, POTENTIAL 
FUTURE ROOFTOP SOLAR PHOTOVOLTAIC BE AN ALTERNATIVE PROJECT 
COMPONENT SHOULD PROJECT BUDGET SAVINGS DURING CONSTRUCTION 
ALLOW, HELPING TO MAINTAIN AFFORDABILITY OVER THE LONG TERM. 
 
 

7)   LANDSCAPED ENTRY MEDIAN: 
REQUIREMENT NOT MET: ENTRANCE LANDSCAPED MEDIAN NOT PROVIDED. 

 



ATTACHMENT 2 
 

Page 4 of 7 

 

JUSTIFICATION: IN ORDER TO MAINTAIN THE TRADITIONAL DESIGN OF ST 
MARK VILLAGE, WHICH COMPLIMENTS THE NEIGHBORING ST MARK'S 
CATHOLIC CHURCH, A MEDIAN/ISLAND HAS BEEN OMMITTED HOWEVER, ST 
MARK VILLAGE FEATURES TWO ENTRY TOWER DESIGN COMPONENTS 
CENTERED BY A STONE CLUBHOUSE CAPPING THE ENTRY DRIVE TO ACHIEVE 
THE DESIRED PLACEMAKING AND SITE IDENTIFICATION PURPOSES THAT 
MEDIAN/ISLANDS PROVIDE AT A PRIMARY ENTRANCE. 

 
8. GROUND-LEVEL LIGHTING: 

REQUIREMENT NOT MET: GROUND-LEVEL LIGHTING NOT PROVIDED. 
 
JUSTIFICATION: DUE TO THE INFILL NATURE OF THE DEVELOPMENT, 
PROPOSED SIDEWALKS ARE IN CLOSE PROXIMITY TO BUILDING LIGHTING 
THAT WILL SUFFICIENTLY ILLUMINATE GROUND LEVEL PATHWAYS AND 
ADDITIONAL GROUND LIGHTING IS NOT NEEDED. 

 
9. HOT TUB AND SPLASH PAD: 

REQUIREMENT NOT MET: HOT TUB AND SPLASH PAD NOT PROVIDED. 
 
JUSTIFICATION: IN LIEU OF A HOT TUB AND SPLASH PAD, A POOL IS TO BE 
PROVIDED TO BETTER ACCOMMODATE THE FAMILY DEMOGRAPHICS OF THE 
TO-BE-CONSTRUCTED COMMUNITY. 
 

10. SWIMMING POOL DECK WIDTHS: 
REQUIREMENT NOT MET: MINIMUM DECK WIDTHS AROUND POOL NOT 
PROVIDED. 
 
JUSTIFICATION: MINIMUM SWIMMING POOL DECK WIDTHS MEET OR EXCEED 
2015 INTERNATIONAL SWIMMING POOL AND SPA CODE. 

 
11. BUILDING AND PARKING SPACING: 

REQUIREMENT NOT MET: MINIMUM 15' SPACING BETWEEN BUILDINGS AND 
PARKING AREAS NOT PROVIDED. 
 
JUSTIFICATION: DUE TO THE INFILL NATURE OF THE SITE AND IN AN EFFORT 
TO PROVIDE AS MUCH ON-SITE PARKING AS FEASIBLE BASED ON 
NEIGHBORHOOD FEEDBACK THE 15' MINIMUM DIMENSION IS PROPOSED TO 
VARY FROM 12' TO 45' WITH ENHANCED LANDSCAPING PROVIDED WHERE 
BUILDING FRONTS AND PARKING INTERACT. 
 

12. PARALLEL BUILDING SPACING: 
REQUIREMENT NOT MET: MINIMUM 40' SPACING BETWEEN PARALLEL 
BUILDINGS NOT PROVIDED. 
 
JUSTIFICATION: PROPERTY IS AN INFILL DEVELOPMENT SITE THAT CANNOT 
MEET THE INTENT OF THE PROPERTY'S ZONING IF PARALLEL BUILDING 
SPACING OF 40' IS MAINTAINED. INSTEAD, EVERY OTHER BUILDING HAS A 
DIFFERENT OVERALL FORM, SCALE, OR ORIENTATION TO BREAK UP THE 
VIEWING PLANE. 

 
 



ATTACHMENT 2 
 

Page 5 of 7 

 

13. NON-PARALLEL BUILDING SPACING: 
REQUIREMENT NOT MET: MINIMUM 35' SPACING BETWEEN NON-PARALLEL 
BUILDINGS NOT PROVIDED. 
 
JUSTIFICATION: PROPERTY IS AN INFILL DEVELOPMENT SITE THAT CANNOT 
MEET THE INTENT OF THE PROPERTY'S ZONING IF PARALLEL BUILDING 
SPACING OF 35' IS MAINTAINED. INSTEAD, EVERY OTHER BUILDING HAS A 
DIFFERENT OVERALL FORM, SCALE, OR ORIENTATION TO BREAK UP THE 
VIEWING PLANE. 

 
14. PRIMARY AND ACCESSORY BUILDING SPACING: 

REQUIREMENT NOT MET: MINIMUM 25' SPACING BETWEEN PRIMARY AND 
ACCESSORY BUILDINGS (CLUBHOUSE) NOT PROVIDED. 
 
JUSTIFICATION: PROPERTY IS AN INFILL DEVELOPMENT SITE THAT CANNOT 
MEET THE INTENT OF THE PROPERTY'S ZONING IF PARALLEL BUILDING 
SPACING OF 25' IS MAINTAINED. INSTEAD, EVERY OTHER BUILDING HAS A 
DIFFERENT OVERALL FORM, SCALE, OR ORIENTATION TO BREAK UP THE 
VIEWING PLANE. 
 

15. PARKING LOT SETBACKS FROM INTERIOR PROPERTY LINES: 
REQUIREMENT NOT MET: PARKING LOT SETBACKS (15') FROM INTERIOR 
PROPERTY LINES NOT PROVIDED. 
 
JUSTIFICATION: THE WISHBONE RESTAURANT PROPERTY HAS A BLOCK WALL 
WITH THICK TREE CANOPY ON THE PROPERTY LINE. WHEN COMBINED WITH 
ADDITIONAL LANDSCAPING TO BE INSTALLED AT ST MARK'S VILLAGE, THERE 
WILL BE AN ADEQUATE YEAR ROUND BUFFER PROVIDED IN LESS THAN THE 15 
FOOT SETBACK REQUIREMENT. 

 
16. TREATMENT OF UPPER-FLOOR BUILDING MASSING: 

REQUIREMENT NOT MET: ONE-STORY STEP-DOWN IN BUILDING HEIGHTS NOT 
PROVIDED. 
 
JUSTIFICATION: IN LIEU OF A STEP-DOWN IN BUILDING HEIGHTS, WHICH 
WOULD NOT FULFILL THE INTENT OF THE SITE'S ZONING, THE BUILDING 
DESIGN REFLECTS COMPONENTS OF A STEPPED DESIGN AND OTHER DESIGN 
ELEMENTS THAT CONVEY A SENSE OF PLACE AT RELATABLE AND RELEVANT 
HUMAN SCALE, WITH OVERALL HEIGHT BEING ONE STORY HIGHER THAN 
ADJACENT EXISTING PROPERTY. EACH BUILDING FAÇADE EXHIBITS VARYING 
ROOF AND PITCH ELEMENTS OF NOT LESS THAN 4 ELEVATIONS. THE 
COMMUNITY ENTRY FEATURES TWO SIGNATURE TOWERS ON THE BUILDING 
CORNERS WHICH BREAK THE FAÇADE AND CONVEY SIGNIFICANCE. THE 
BUILDING ALONG FEDERAL BOULEVARD FEATURES A TOWER THAT TIES INTO 
THE ENTRYWAY DESIGN FOR CONSISTENCY OF EXPERIENCE. THE TYPICAL 
FAÇADE DESIGN CONVEYS A STIMULATING AESTHETIC THAT COMPLIMENTS 
THE NEARBY ST MARK CATHOLIC CHURCH WHILE ALSO FULFILLING THE 
HIGHEST AND BEST UTILIZATION OF THE ZONING INTENT. 

 
 
 



ATTACHMENT 2 
 

Page 6 of 7 

 

17. EXTERIOR BUILDING MATERIALS AND COLORS: 
REQUIREMENT NOT MET: BUILDING EXTERIOR CLADDING SURFACES, 
INCLUDING AT LEAST 2 FEET AROUND THE BASE OF THE BUILDING, PATIO AND 
BALCONY AREAS, BUT EXCEPTING WINDOW, DOOR, OR RAILING PORTIONS, ON 
ALL SIDES OF ALL PRIMARY AND ACCESSORY BUILDINGS, ARE NOT FINISHED 
WITH THIRTY PERCENT (30%) OR MORE OF ALL WITH MASONRY (BRICK OR 
STONE). 
 
JUSTIFICATION: IN AN EFFORT TO KEEP THE PROJECT AN AFFORDABLE 
DEVELOPMENT, THE DESIGN UTILIZES STONE IN PROMINENT PUBLIC FACING 
LOCATIONS ONLY, INCLUDING SIGNATURE STONE ENTRY TOWERS ALONG 97TH 
AVENUE AND A STONE TOWER ALONG FEDERAL BOULEVARD IN LIEU OF 
STONE OR MASONRY ON 30% OF ALL EXTERIOR CLADDING SURFACES. THE 
DESIGN ALSO UTILIZES TWO ALTERNATING COLOR SCHEMES TO HELP 
DIFFERENTIATE AND DISTINGUISH EACH BUILDING TYPE. 

 
18. BALCONY ENCLOSURE: 

REQUIREMENT NOT MET: BALCONIES ARE FRONTED WITH RAILINGS RATHER 
THAN OPAQUE WALLS. 
 
JUSTIFICATION: ENCLOSED BALCONIES PROVIDE FOR A DATED LOOK AND 
FEEL AND ARE NOT IN KEEPING WITH CURRENT ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN OR 
TENANT EXPECTATIONS. BALCONIES ARE RECESSED WITHIN UNITS (IE NOT 
PROTRUDING FROM THE BUILDING FAÇADE) PROVIDING ENCLOSURE 
THROUGH DESIGN AND A BETTER, MORE USABLE TENANT EXPERIENCE.  

 
19. SITE LANDSCAPING PERCENTAGE: 

REQUIREMENT NOT MET: MINIMUM OF 40% OF SITE LANDSCAPED IS NOT MET. 
 
JUSTIFICATION: PROPERTY IS AN INFILL DEVELOPMENT SITE THAT CANNOT 
MEET THE INTENT OF THE PROPERTY'S ZONING IF 40% OF THE SITE IS 
LANDSCAPED. HOWEVER, THE PROPERTY IS LOCATED WITHIN 500 FEET OF 
SQUIRES PARK AND APPLICANT HAS PROVIDED USABLE OPEN SPACES ON-
SITE THAT WILL BE BETTER BY THE EXPECTANT FAMILY DEMOGRAPHIC, 
INCLUDING AMENITIES SUCH AS A LANDSCAPED GARDEN AREA WITH 
DEDICATED SEATING, A BARBEQUE PATIO AND LOUNGE AREA WITH GRILLS, 
POOL, AND A CHILDREN'S PLAYGROUND. 

 
20. PARKING LOT LANDSCAPING ISLANDS: 

REQUIREMENT NOT MET: PROPER PROVISION/QUANTITY, SPACING, AND 
PLANTING OF PARKING LOT LANDSCAPE ISLANDS NOT PROVIDED. 
 
JUSTIFICATION: PARKING LOT LANDSCAPING ISLANDS ARE PROVIDED AT THE 
LENGTH OF EACH BUILDING, BUT THE VISUAL SCALE OF PARKING IS 
MITIGATED THROUGH THE DRIVE WAY DESIGN AND CLUBHOUSE LOCATION. 
ON THE EAST SIDE OF THE SITE, THE DRIVEWAY JOGS SOUTH TO BREAK UP 
THE VISUAL PARKING MASS. ON THE WEST SIDE OF THE SITE, THE 
CLUBHOUSE LOCATION WITHIN TWO PARKING AISLES BREAKS UP THE VISUAL 
PARKING MASS. WHILE SELECT PARKING AISLES ARE LONGER THAN TYPICAL 
THEY ARE 1) WITHIN EXISTING PRECEDENT IN THE CITY OF WESTMINSTER, 2) 
DO NOT FACE PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY, AND 3) ARE MITIGATED THROUGH 



ATTACHMENT 2 
 

Page 7 of 7 

 

INTELLIGENT DESIGN INCLUDING ENHANCED LANDSCAPING WITH TREE AND 
SHRUB PLANTINGS WHICH EXCEED REQUIRED MINIMUMS BY THREE TIMES. 

 
21. SCREENING OF PARKING: 

REQUIREMENT NOT MET: PROVISION OF LANDSCAPED BERMS TO SCREEN 
PARKING AREAS FROM ADJACENT DEVELOPMENTS AND STREETS. 
 
JUSTIFICATION: DEVELOPMENT'S PARKING IS INTERIOR TO THE SITE WITH 
SCREENING BEING PROVIDED ON THE NORTH AND SOUTH PROPERTY LINES 
BY BUILDINGS. TO THE WEST AND EAST, PARKING IS SCREENED BY A 
COMBINATION OF BUILDINGS AND LANDSCAPING. ALONG THE SHARED 
PROPERTY BOUNDARY WITH WISHBONE RESTAURANT, SCREENING IS 
PROVIDED BY AN EXISTING CINDER BLOCK WALL FIVE FEET IN HEIGHT AND 
EXISTING MATURE LANDSCAPING. FURTHER, ENHANCED LANDSCAPING IS 
PROVIDED SITE-WIDE TO IMPROVE OVERALL AESTHETIC BETWEEN BUILDING-
PARKING INTERACTION AND PARKING-STREET INTERACTION. MINIMUM TREE 
AND SHRUB PLANTINGS EXCEED REQUIRED MINIMUMS BY THREE TIMES TO 
PROVIDE ADDITIONAL SCREENING AND BETTER OVERALL AESTHETIC. 

 
22. REMOVAL OF BILLBOARD: 

REQUIREMENT NOT MET: BILLBOARD IS A NON-CONFORMING SIGN THAT 
SHOULD BE REMOVED AS A CONDITION OF DEVELOPMENT. 
 
JUSTIFICATION: PROPERTY OWNER WILL REMOVE SIGN AFTER LEASE 
TERMINATION IN 2021. 

 
23. MULTI-USE PATHS: 

REQUIREMENT NOT MET: NO 10’ WIDE MULTI-USE PATHS WITHIN PROJECT. 
  
JUSTIFICATION: AS AN INFILL DEVELOPMENT PROJECT, THE OPPORTUNITY          
FOR NEW PATHS IS LIMITED BY EXISTING CONDITIONS. AS AN ALTERNATIVE, 
THE PROJECT HAS PROVIDED ON-SITE LANDSCAPED PATHWAYS AND SEATING 
AS A DESTINATION RATHER THAN A MULTI-USE PATH. 

 



ATTACHMENT 3 
 

Page 1 of 20 
 

Public Comments Received: May 15 to August 8, 2019 
 
The following comments were received via email by Staff (with date-of-receipt listed).  Staff 
attempted to provide concise answers to specific questions posed, where possible.  All inquiries 
were acknowledged via return email, which occasionally generated follow-up inquiries. 
 
Mark & Jean Whitney (5/15 and 5/21): 
 
“I really don't care about the apartments either way. Just more interested in the [traffic] flow 
pattern and getting a turn lane in at 97th. I know there is politics involved in everything. I know 
the church is bound to make much money on this sale/approval but I am only interested in the 
safety/traffic flow issue.” 
 
James Hensinger (5/15 and 5/21): 
 
(Mr. Hensinger first noted that he had missed the Planning Commission Meeting on May 14th, 
and asked for a synopsis of the proposal being considered.  Once he received this, he asked 
the following questions:) 
 
“Thank you very much for the response. I appreciate your thoroughness in addressing my 
questions. 
 
“Can you provide a link to the definitions of the various zoning classifications being applied in 
this request? 
 
“I can understand the re-zoning of the water tower. It is always nice to dot the “I’s,” and keep the 
city paperwork in order. This change seems to be only a “clean up the paperwork” activity. 
 
“The re-zoning of the Wishbone property seems unnecessary for its present use. How does the 
change affect the Restaurant? Does the change make the property more useful to future 
developers? 
 
“My primary concern is with the R-36 designation. I believe there is an Excel 75’ easement 
along the north property line. Is the easement outside the lots under consideration? Is there a 
map showing the easement, and the numbered lots? 
 
“I live in NorthPark East, but not within three hundred feet of the lots being considered for a 
zoning change. Is there a way to ensure that I will receive notifications of meetings? Can you 
provide a contact for the developer, or can you add me to a distribution list? My contact 
information is below. 
 
“I and several of my neighbors are concerned about the future use of the property and the 
potential impacts on our community. Is attending the meetings the only way for us to express 
our concern?” 
 
Lorraine Sherry (5/15 and 5/16): 
 
“Please consider entry/exit onto Federal Blvd. and rush hour traffic. Residential use is OK, but 
keep it in the context of the neighborhood - two story homes or townhomes, no Soviet 
skyscrapers or slot homes. Please, the City is now ruining 92nd & Sheridan with those 



ATTACHMENT 3 
 

Page 2 of 20 
 

monstrosity buildings – it’s turning into a cityscape, not a suburban close-knit neighborhood 
that’s existed for ~35 years. This is a quiet, peaceful neighborhood where people walk the 
greenspaces or to the supermarket and socialize with each other. What would you do with all 
those cars? All that exhaust? All that noise? Make it homeowner-owned not rental. We’d love 
more townhomes to fill out the space by the south fence. 
 
“I read the verbose document. We at NPE received NO invitation from the City to attend the 
meeting. Americans aspire to own their homes. There will be no townhomes at this St. Marks 
Village, nor owner-occupied condos. Those apartments will be FOR RENT. And to fit 216 rental 
apartments in that small space will mean building out to the edges of the parcel. No discussion 
of the height of the proposed buildings. Note that some new apartment houses on Sheridan 
north of 92nd are 5 stories high. No discussion of greenspace, walkways, medians, lawns that 
allow water to perc into the soil, trees, etc. Added traffic - families with small children and people 
with diminished mobility issues aren't going to give up their cars that easily, transit or no. Will 
underground parking hold 216 cars? In NPE, we have 2-car garages. This bright idea will have 
a huge impact on all 511 homeowners in NPE. It is not in the context of our neighborhood. 
Residential is OK, affordability is OK, but not the way the document describes.” 
 
Michael and Kaye Patterson (5/16): 
 
“To whom it may concern; 
 
“This area that the city is considering for a very dense low income apartment area, by the 
Wishbone Restaurant, seems to be a very bad idea in so many ways.  
 
“This particular area is a very congested piece of land to add hundreds of more drivers using 
Federal Blvd. as its main thoroughfare. It is also an area of town that has seen a significant 
uptick in crime. What is the impact on the local schools!  Funny that our water cost have greatly 
increased yet the city wants to add high density residential areas. These areas soon could 
become run down communities and eyesores. 
 
“Our City Council seems eager to take as many low income dense communities as possible to 
fill vacant lots in town. They seem unconcerned with the quality of current residence living 
conditions. It seems to me that Westminster City Council may have some underlying reasons for 
wanting to fill every available piece of land with large housing projects.  
 
“Please reconsider this small piece of land for this type of development. Westminster has 
always been a very nice community but the City Council seems bent on changing that.” 
 
Tamar Beaman (5/17): 
 
“I live at the NorthPark neighborhood, (in the townhome section) which spans from Federal to 
Lowell and from 102nd south to 98th.  The south side of our collective property of townhomes 
and single family homes, borders the vacant lot that exists between Wishbone Restaurant and 
the big water tower and another tower being constructed.  One of our retired residents learned, 
after reports of a meeting held May 14, that there are plans to develop the vacant lot to the 
south of NorthPark. Specifically, there's some concern among our residents about the proposed 
rezoning of this 6 acre lot to R-36 in order to build a 216 unit low-income apartment complex 
called St. Mark Village Apartments. 
 
“Among the chief concerns are: 



ATTACHMENT 3 
 

Page 3 of 20 
 

 
“1. How many stories are these apartments proposed to be? The fear is they will be several 
stories high which will not only drastically change the appearance of the neighborhood views (by 
blocking them) but will negatively infringe on the privacy of the Northpark residents living along 
the property line by people being able to see into their yards and our common areas.  
 
“2. What's it going to look like? How much of the acreage will be used up by buildings, parking 
lots, and greenspace? Is there an architectural drawing of the proposed complex from both 
street view and birds-eye view? Can we see that somewhere? 
 
“3. 216 units seems like a very high density population to put on such a small lot. If each 
apartment has at least 2 people, then you can double the amount of cars to 432; what is the 
plan to deal with the additional traffic flow through the immediate neighborhood? 
 
“4. How will all this extra population affect the teacher student ratio at the local schools? 
 
“5. Why weren't residents of NorthPark and/or its property managers for NorthPark (Advance 
HOA for the townhomes) notified about this in time to get the word out for us to attend the public 
comment meeting that was held on/about May 14, 2019?   We only learned about it after the 
fact.  We are a shared community with common areas so it doesn't just affect neighbors on the 
south side of NorthPark, it affects all of us.   
 
“6. When and where is the next public comment meeting? We want to learn more and comment 
publicly.  
 
“7. The proposed apartments are low-income and/or low-rent; does this include Section 8 
voucher recipients and/or Section 8 project-based funding? What government entity will be 
funding/regulating this and who will be the onsite management? 
 
“This high density increase in population so close to our NorthPark townhome and SF home 
complex doesn't just affect the neighbors on the south side of our collective property, it 
potentially affects all of us since we all walk the trails and enjoy the beauty and quiet of the area.  
Many apartment complexes are not well designed to fit into the existing neighborhood 
aesthetics, so there is concern that this will be a high rise or multistory which will destroy the 
ambiance of the neighborhood.  It certainly will add more traffic along Federal, Lowell and 
adjoining roads, resulting in more light changes that inhibit traffic flow along Federal. 
Unfortunately too, many times the overcrowding in low-rent apartments with high density 
population adds an increase to neighborhood vandalism and crime. 
 
“I experienced this when I used to live in Thornton at a town home complex that was across the 
street from Aztec Villa Apartments and Parkview Terrace Apartments, the majority of which 
were Section 8 tenants.  In the 17 years I owned my home there, I saw a Dramatic increase in 
population at the apartments, many of which were occupied by more than one family. This 
overcrowding leads to a lot of "hanging in the hood" behavior, noisy activity in the parking lots 
with music blaring, cars revving up and being worked on, bored teens doing graffiti on our 
fences and townhome walls, and an increase in other crimes, especially car break-ins, and 
drug-related crimes. The Thornton Police were a constant presence in the neighborhood, which 
soon got a negative reputation.  The noise and the traffic were the reason I had to sell my home. 
I deliberately chose the NorthPark neighborhood in Westminster because it was quiet, pretty 
and mostly free of through traffic.  I am afraid that high density apartments so close by will 
destroy all that.  



ATTACHMENT 3 
 

Page 4 of 20 
 

 
“I would appreciate any of the above questions you can answer.  If there are any public 
documents we can view of these proposed apartments and how they are envisioned to look and 
operate, and fit into the community, please let me know.” 
 
Myrna Lacina (5/18): 
 
“This is to inform you that I am NOT in favor of a 216 unit multi housing development going up 
there at St Marks Village. It needs to be single family homes or townhomes which are owner 
occupied. Anything else is inappropriate there.” 
 
Sheran and Rich Hehn (5/20): 
 
“We are writing to you regarding our disapproval of rezoning to build apartments next to the 
Wishbone Restaurant and water towers on Federal Blvd. 
 
“Why not single family homes that would have lawns, trees and shrubs to help with CO2 and 
climate change. 
 
“Single family homes would increase our Westminster tax base, also increasing surrounding 
property values. Single family homes would place less demands on our water, sewer and 
schools. Apartments would add a significant amount of burden to all our infrastructures and 
traffic to an already burdened Federal Ave. Has a study been done to evaluate the impact? 
 
“This rezoning proposal should have been posted in the Northpark news letter to inform the 
neighborhood. This does not feel right that we are hearing about this through a neighbor.” 
 
Lorraine Sherry (5/22): 
 
“Many thanks for addressing my concerns in my e-mails to you. I appreciate your response. I 
would like to attend some of those meetings. But I am confused about some of the issues, I 
have lots of questions, and I am looking for clarification. My understanding is that these 
meetings are for decision making rather than for Q/A and clarification by affected, current 
residents.  
 

1. “Setback: As a member of NPE (NorthPark East) Landscape Advisory Committee, I 
have a copy of the ODP map for Filing 14, but I am not very good at interpreting what I 
see on official maps. I do know that Excel Energy’s 75 foot easement cannot be built on, 
but it’s not clear to me whether the St. Mark’s Village setback from NPE’s property line is 
50 feet or some other number. 

 
2. “Zoning: In the city documents online, I see that R36 buildings could run 3 to 5 stories 

high, and would be more appropriate near other high-density areas, such as the (under 
construction) new city center or near transit hubs like the new light rail line. NPE has 
R3.5 to R8 zoning, and the condo development by the elementary school schoolyard 
has R18. NPE is a quiet residential neighborhood. Wouldn’t R18 be a more sensible 
upper limit for residential zoning for St. Mark’s Village rather than R36? Townhomes or 
condos would be more appropriate than tall, densely occupied buildings. Can this be 
considered at the zoning meeting? Clearly, “commercial” is appropriate for Wishbone 
and “public” for the water tower area, but R36 is very high compared to neighboring 



ATTACHMENT 3 
 

Page 5 of 20 
 

residential subdivisions, especially the single family homes on the three “courts” at the 
south end of NPE. 

 
3. “Bike path: Is the bike path mentioned in the online document the pedestrian and dog 

walk path in the easement, that runs along the NPE side of the NPE south fence? That 
fence was built by Writer Corporation and rebuilt in the same location at NPE’s expense 
when the original fence deteriorated.  

 
4. “Park: Is the park mentioned in the online document Squire’s Park? Would families and 

children have to go through the school yard to get to Squires Park? How else would they 
access it on foot? If by car, where would they park? 

 
5. “Recreation: What amenities would be included in St. Mark’s Village? I would hope that 

families would have their own recreation area and not be tempted to cross subdivision 
boundaries to use NPE’s pool and recreation area. We have had ongoing problems with 
non-residents cutting through our common areas and hopping over the NPE pool fence 
to avoid the card-reader gate. 

 
6. “Transit: To my knowledge is only the local 31 bus. I have ridden it to downtown. The 

closest park and ride to major bus lines is behind city hall at 92nd and Sheridan, not 
walking distance from NPE. And the new light rail is at 72nd, certainly not walking 
distance. The closest hospital is down at 84th street. So families would need at least one 
family car, possibly two, especially if both parents work and there are teenagers in the 
household. Where would 216 cars park? How would this affect current traffic patterns, 
especially at rush hour? Would a large number of St. Mark’s Village residents’ cars then 
be cutting through NPE streets to get to the school, Squires park and King Soopers? 

 
“I’ve tried to do my research, would like to attend meetings, but am timid about speaking out 
because I am simply not sure I understand all the issues involved with high density public 
housing right across from our quiet neighborhood. I thank you for your time. I am sure you are a 
busy man. Any clarification would be very much appreciated.” 
 
Lorraine Sherry (6/2): 
 
“I have been in touch with Mr. German and so has my friend Tamar Dexter and several of our 
other NorthPark East residents. I am OK with re-zoning Wishbone and the water towers, but 
NOT with the proposed “St. Mark’s Village” rentals. I would like to find out more about this 
proposed high-density low-income apartment house complex abutting our south fence at 
NorthPark East. This will be a VERY HIGH population density compared with our single-family 
homes and 2-story townhomes! I am particularly concerned about how close the buildings, trash 
pickup, and noise will be to our south fence. I have three concerns. 
 

1. “Our population density is R3.5 for the single family homes and R8 for the townhomes. 
The proposed density for the 3-story high apartment houses is R36. This is wholly 
incompatible with our 30-year old quiet, owner-occupied subdivision. Our main 
“demographic” is retirees aging in place, who use the common areas for play, relaxation, 
and the south sidewalk for dog walking or their own daily walks.  

a. ?? How can we as homeowners request the City to lower the apartment density 
to maybe R18??  

2. “Our southernmost townhomes (and their patios and lawn/common areas) abut the foot 
path, used primarily by our residents for their daily walks or dog walks. No bikes or 



ATTACHMENT 3 
 

Page 6 of 20 
 

scooters. The foot path lies wholly inside NorthPark East’s south fence, on NorthPark 
East property. Some of our townhomes are very close to the south fence. We have had 
an ongoing battle with graffiti painted by non-residents on our south fence. It’s also easy 
for non-resident teenagers to hop the fence onto our property.  

a. ?? How will we be able to secure our property and keep non-residents from 
trespassing on NPE common areas?? 

3. “?? How does the City intend to deal with the huge new crush of traffic entering Federal 
Blvd. from 97th during rush hours??  

a. ??Will parents try to cut through NorthPark East to drive their kids to school?? 
 
“I plan to attend the City Council meeting on June 10th, at 7 PM at City Hall. If this changes, will 
we be notified? I also plan to attend the July 23rd meeting about the ODP. I would like more 
information about the proposed PDP and ODP.” 
 
Lorraine Sherry (6/5): 
 
“Today, we measured the distances from the numbered NorthPark East townhome pads (slabs) 
shown on the vicinity map and the south fence. 
 
“After comparing these measurements with the ODP (revised 11/12/93), it has come to my 
attention that there is a discrepancy between the actual location of the NorthPark East south 
fence and the 75 foot wide utility easement that we understand is required by law. Evidently the 
NorthPark East property line lies further south than the south fence. Please check to verify that 
these numbers are correct.  
 
#3420 – 65 feet 
#3410 – 65 feet 
#3380 – 61 feet 
#3360 – 61 feet 
#3330 – 61 feet  
#3210 – 64 feet 
#3260 – 71 feet” 
 
Lynn Yoder (6/6): 
 
“Thanks you for your reply. That helped answered my questions. 
 
“This project directly affects me because I live right behind the property line in North park East. I 
am not against progress growth for Westminster but this projected proposal has so many 
negative  
Issues for our city that I am scared to death of having low income property individuals looking 
right into my front door. The proposed project zoning does not fit this area.  
 
“Negative Issues: 
 
“Parking.  216 family units all stuffed into such a small area. Statics shows that every family has 
2 cars per household. That is 432 vehicle in this complex that is impossible to find parking for 
that many.  
They will have to park on both sides of 97th st which is very narrow. Think about this, 432 cars 
leaving this space from just one exit point. That will not work. This project does not fit this area 
for controlled growth. I think Wishbone restaurant better wake up because they will be parking in 



ATTACHMENT 3 
 

Page 7 of 20 
 

their lot even though no parking sign are posted. People don’t respect other or property 
anymore, that a sad day in america. They do what they want. 
 
“Traffic flow on 97th. Trying to get that many cars onto Federal North bound without a traffic light 
will cause many accidents. Another traffic light at 97 th and Federal is not the solution. 
that would give us 6 traffic light from from 104 th south to this intersection. We don’t need 
another traffic light on Federal in this area. I know you are familiar how people turn now into 
Wishbone restaurant from north bound Federal. They come to the light at 98th Federal and 
make a u turn in our resident and return to Federal southbound. I have sat at that light behind 
six cars and by the way it takes 2 light cycles to make it thru because it only lets 3 car max at 
one light. As I turned in 3 cars ahead of me all made the u turn and out. Unacceptable traffic 
flow. Please help!! 
 
“Affordable Housing. I call it low income housing. This type of housing (R-36) create so many 
issues that a city once building a project like this never recovers from the eyesore that is 
causes. 
High transit individual. Move to the state,, stay 6 months tear the place up and move on. 
Leaving behind many problems.  
Drug problems, noise is all hours of the day, kids everywhere. These type of housing units leave 
trash because they have no skin in the game so they don’t care what they leave behind. 
Theft issues. People live so close to each other that they quarrel and that leads to shooting. 
Look what is happening in this country of ours. Killings because people are so stressed out 
about issues of overcrowding conditions. As you know, we are finding that many projects like 
this have issues with 4 families living one unit to make ends meet. Too many people for such a 
small space. 
This type of housing does not fit in this area. We have a very nice quite place where we live and 
we want to keep it that way. Move this project to the old Nolans RV place down by the tracks on 
Federal.  
 
“Property value I fully expect that a low income property built as requested will lower all our 
property values in North Park.  
 
“Federal Blvd. I hate to say this but I have to be honest with you. I will not drive south on 
Federal from 98 th ave after dark. I fear for my safety as stoped at 92 nd and 88th all the way 
down to highway 76.  
this part of Federal is an eye sore for Westminster. Mom and pop LQ stores, pot shops, ugly tire 
stores with tires everywhere, marijuana dispensaries, old food trucks with creepy homeless 
people all over the place. When we have visitors that come, I tell them to never come up federal 
at anytime during the day always bypass this area.  
 
“Excel Energy I understand the developer are trying to get an variance for the overhead lines so 
they can build right next to the property line. Should they be awarded this variance this would be 
a very dangerous mistake. 
Excel Energy for years have butchered our trees where I live because they exceed the fifty foot 
variance. Cut down 5 next to my house. Why all of a sudden its ok to allow a developer to build 
a three story building within 20 feet of these lines. It’s all about the money.If they build like 
planned on the property line 3 story building would rise up to 35 ft tall and be within 20 feet of 
those lines. Someone will get killed. 
 



ATTACHMENT 3 
 

Page 8 of 20 
 

“Mr German, Let me ask you the Planning Division and the City Council of Westminster a 
question. If anyone of this team lived where I do, right across the fence from this proposal, 
would you vote to approve it as written? 
Sorry to say, but I know not one of this team would vote to have this project in their backyard. 
Help us out here we are the people of Westminster and we care about thing like this. 
 
“COME ON CITY OF WESTMINSTER, YOU ARE BETTER THEN THIS! PLEASE DON"T SELL 
US DOWN THE RIVER. 
 
“Thank you” 
 
James Speed Hensinger (6/10): 
 
“I started a thread on Nextdoor.com re the re-zoning of the property next to the Wishbone 
restaurant to R-36. In case you don’t know about the thread, here is the link. I don’t know if you 
will need to join to read the postings. I also created two event pages on NextDoor.com. One to 
announce the meeting date change from June 10th to the 24th, and one for the actual meeting 
on June 24th. Does the City use Nextdoor.com for public announcements? I know 
Westminster’s Police Dept. is active on NextDoor. 
 
“https://nextdoor.com/news_feed/?post=111353771&is=notification_center 
 
“No one has posted in favor of the proposal. 
 
“I know that it may be unorthodox, but would you consider adding this information to the City 
Council member’s briefing for the June 24th meeting? 
Thank you.” 
 
Lorraine Sherry (6/10): 
 
“Thank you very much for both of your responses, Mr. German. I do plan to attend the public 
hearing on June 24th. Thank you for the invitation and for all your information.” 
 
Larry and Myrna Lacina (6/10): 
 
“We are NOT in favor of the zoning change in order to build the 216 affordable housing 
development at 97th and Federal Blvd. We are not in favor of building this complex at that 
location. 
 
“We live in North Park East which is very close to this complex they are trying to get passed 
through.” 
 
Lynn Yoder (6/11): 
 
“Thanks you for your response especially the part with the assurance that nothing would violate 
the 75’ easement request. Be assured, I will attend every meeting with many other residents 
from the Northpark area. Thanks again and make it a good day.” 
 
 
 
 

https://nextdoor.com/news_feed/?post=111353771&is=notification_center


ATTACHMENT 3 
 

Page 9 of 20 
 

Jonathan Rash (6/13): 
 
“I am a homeowner and resident in the North Park Subdivision at Federal and 104th in 
Westminster. I am writing in regard to the proposed housing project planned for the vacant lot 
west of the Wishbone Restaurant on 97th and Federal, just south of the Northpark fence line. 
 
“I am a 100% disabled, and retired Marine. My wife and I bought a townhome in Northpark in 
2016 and we absolutely love our dream home and the neighborhood we live in. It's tidy, clean, 
relatively free from crime, and our investment here is doing very well as property values are 
steadily climbing making our decision to move to Westminster a very good one. Except now, I 
hear you are wanting to build a "low income" housing project on our doorstep which is of great 
concern to me. I have not always lived in nice neighborhoods like this. Before joining the 
Marines I worked manual labor jobs starting out in 1978 making only $3.50 an hour. I have 
worked digging ditches, driving supply trucks and labor for construction companies never 
making more than minimum wage and seldom having any benefits. As a result, I have lived in 
some less than well off neighborhoods, but I took care of my family. My children have been 
beaten up, had their bicycles stolen out from under them etc. But through it, all my wife and I 
never complained or asked for anything and we never took a single penny of public funds or any 
public help.  
 
“It has taken us almost 40 years of hard work to be able to buy the home we have now. Each 
move we made, each job we took added to our skills and increased the value we gave our 
employers. During all those years I worked two jobs and was also in the Marine Corps reserves. 
My wife and I worked hard to provide the best life possible for our two boys and to improve our 
lives along the way. I was also activated twice after 9/11and was sent to Iraq. In 2006 I suffered 
a severe back injury while on active duty at Camp Pendleton, and that is why as stated above I 
am 100% disabled. 

“I tell you all this because I am now very concerned about what could possibly happen to the 
home and neighborhood my wife and I have worked and sacrificed our whole lives for. If you 
proceed with this development it will only be a short matter of time before there will be trash and 
graffiti all along Federal Ave, between 97th and 104th, the crime rate will undoubtedly increase, 
and as a result property values will decline. People like myself and my wife who saved and 
sacrificed so much for so long, to be where we are today, will lose what we have worked so 
hard for.  
 
“I urge you to find another more suitable location for this housing project.  
 
“*You cannot strengthen the weak by weakening the strong. 
* You cannot help little men by tearing down big men. 
* You cannot lift the wage earner by pulling down the wage payer. 
* You cannot help the poor by destroying the rich.” 
 
Tamar Beaman (6/15): 
 
“I live at NorthPark Townhomes and was planning on attending the June 10 hearing regarding 
the rezoning of the subject property to R36 so that a developer can build a 216-unit affordable 
apartment complex. The meeting was rescheduled to June 24 and unfortunately I cannot attend 
due to a medical procedure that day. So I am hereby registering my objections to this 
development.   
 



ATTACHMENT 3 
 

Page 10 of 20 
 

“1. This is too small of a location to have this density of population essentially wedged in 
between existing neighborhoods of single family homes and our townhomes at NorthPark. I 
understand a variance is requested to having the buildings offset only 15 feet from our NP south 
fence, rather than the usual 50 feet. This is too close! Also, with 3 story apartments, and the fact 
that they are uphill from NP, it will feel like the buildings are looming over us at NP, breathing 
down our necks. The residents at these apartments will be able to look down into our homes 
and yards and open space, literally violating our privacy at NP.  
 
“2. Noise. With such an increase in population density comes noise.  Noise from construction of 
the apartments, noise from potentially 432 more vehicles of the residents PLUS even more cars 
belonging to guests, noise from people hanging outside talking, blasting music, etc.  Typically 
apartment dwellers feel cooped up and thus they congregate outside, usually not quietly either. 
Noises from the banging and grinding of garbage trucks emptying dumpsters and don't always 
wait till after 7am to do their rounds.  
 
“3. Increased traffic flow onto Federal and Lowell for general purposes, increased traffic through 
NP's residential streets to get to Rocky Mountain Elementary School. These areas are already 
congested enough. You can't drive down Federal without having to stop at every light from 
people driving up to the sideroads and triggering the lights. People will cut through our property 
to head over to Lowell because it has less lights. And naturally, there will be increased traffic by 
the new apartment dwellers of parents driving their kids to school at RMN (because God forbid 
anyone ever walk to school anymore).  
 
“4. Kids will climb our fence and try to sneak into our swimming pools. This was a constant 
problem at my former townhouse complex which was surrounded by densely populated 
apartments. Kids were also tearing up our playgrounds and basketball court. And beyond wear 
and tear, there was a destructive element too by older kids, teens and adults - vandalism of 
cars, graffiti on walls and fences, egg-throwing and the like.  
 
“5. All of this brings down our property values at NP.  
 
“I speak from personal experience, not fear. I moved from my former noisy, over-populated 
neighborhood in Thornton that was a mix of owner-occupied townhomes and apartments. The 
apartments were Section 8 aka affordable, yet still families were double-occupying them. This 
prompted many homeowners to sell and the buyers were investors who turned them around and 
used them as rentals. All of the aforementioned problems made it unbearable. I had to sleep 
with earplugs every night, I couldn't enjoy a quiet evening on my porch or patio, we had to 
upgrade our security system after being broken into, and we had to purchase a security camera 
to monitor our cars parked in our carports. Our fences were climbed, broken, graffitied.  Our 
neighborhood trashed. What once was a reasonably pleasant and respectful neighborhood 
became chaotic.  
 
“I moved to NorthPark in Westminster because it is quiet here! And because the neighbors are 
mostly fellow homeowners that respect each other with courtesy by not having noisy vehicles, 
noisy music and in-your-face attitudes. Please don't ruin that! Please don't disturb our peace. 
 
“Affordable housing needs some breathing room and the lot in question (between Wishbone and 
the Water Towers) is too small to allow that breathing space. There is inadequate buffer space 
around it - it would be right on top of our townhomes and single family homes at NorthPark. If 
someone wants to develop it, they should develop single family homes there.  Better yet, leave 
it as open space.” 



ATTACHMENT 3 
 

Page 11 of 20 
 

Patricia Ball (6/24): 
 
“Dear Westminster City Council Members and Planning Commission: 
 
“I am writing this letter as a concerned neighbor in the NorthPark East housing development.  I 
am writing to express my family's opposition to the application for an amendment to the 
Comprehensive Plan for properties located at the northwest corner of Federal Blvd. and 97th 
Avenue. 
 
“Traffic is a huge concern!  What is the plan for entry/exit from Federal Blvd?  Rush hour traffic 
is already a nightmare on Federal Blvd. and also on 104th and 120th Avenues. The relatively 
new traffic light at 98th and Federal messes up traffic flow and has an unnecessary red arrow 
that prevents us from turning left into our neighborhood when there is no oncoming traffic.  By 
the time there's a green arrow, there is finally oncoming traffic, which then has to stop.  If there 
were a blinking arrow, or an arrow that turns yellow then disappears, then oncoming traffic 
would not need to be stopped as often. Adding high-density housing in that property will add to 
already too-congested roads in the area. 
 
“Safety and privacy considerations...we have seen many more loiterers (some quite scary-
looking, or drug-users) in the area in recent years.  I now feel anxiety whenever I have to enter 
the King Soopers parking lot, due to tons of traffic, aggressive and hostile drivers, people 
approaching cars to ask for handouts, etc.  My car has been backed into once while I was in it, 
and hit/scraped a couple of other times while I was in the grocery store.  Additionally, I am a 
single mother with four kids.  Apartment buildings so close to the other side of the fence will be 
able to see into my house, our yards, our cars, everything!!  I already experience significant 
noise pollution from Federal Blvd.  This proposal looks to add even more noise directly to the 
south of my house. 
 
“Speaking of King Soopers, by the time I can get there after work or on the weekend, 
sometimes they are even out of the items for which I'm shopping.  This was not a problem when 
I first moved to North Park 10 years ago. 
 
“Property values...WHY does it have to be high-density low-income housing?  This is NOT 
consistent with the rest of the neighborhood on the west side of Federal Blvd. (NorthPark, 
NorthPark East, Hollypark, Environs, etc.!  I have worked very hard to buy a house on my own 
in Westminster for me and my four children.  I just refinanced my home to pay for some big 
projects and appliance updates for my home.  I am extremely concerned that our property 
values will plummet and I will be upside-down on my home.  I'm also very concerned that it will 
make my home difficult to sell!  If you must develop that space, we would not be opposed to low 
density residential housing, which would be more consistent with the neighboring NorthPark 
neighborhood. 
 
“Thank you for your consideration.” 
 
Lori Goldstein (President, North Park HOA) (6/25): 
 
“Hello Mayor and Counsel; 
 
“Thank you for the wealth of information you were able to provide us last night at the City 
Counsel meeting. It was very thorough and informative.  
 



ATTACHMENT 3 
 

Page 12 of 20 
 

“I did not want to get up to speak because you had so many others ready and willing, but I do 
want to go on the record with my concerns. 
 
“First of all, I am all in on providing living opportunities for those who cannot easily find 
affordable housing.  
I have two concerns. One being the space is not very big, if this space is zoned R36 (I think that 
is the right term) that is a lot of people in a small space. The Environs is R18. I am not sure 
about North Park East, but it appears to be about the same. The second issue is the traffic. If 
CDOT is not being cooperative, please don't consider building on it until they do. 97th Ave runs 
right through the Environs. The traffic impacts will be horrendous. Already, there are the issues 
on 98th where people do U turns, or illegal left turns from Federal to 97th. There needs to be a 
plan (in my opinion) before the building begins.  
Adding the development of Holly Park to the mix will have even more impact on traffic as it is. I 
know that should have been built up at least 15 years ago, so I hope the space can 
accommodate that plan.  
 
“I ask that you be thoughtful in your decisions for re-zoning. If you have not visited this space, 
please do so. Make sure you incorporate the traffic issues and the space issues in your 
decision. Please do not rush into anything for the sake of having more affordable housing. Make 
a decision that will offer a quality place where people can enjoy living.” 
 
James Speed Hensinger (6/25): 
 
“Good evening. 
 
“Tonight, I am interested in speaking only about the St Mark apartment development portion of 
this re-zoning bill. 
 
“I’m here tonight to urge the Council not to approve re-zoning Lots #11, 12, 45, 46, 47, & 48 to 
R-36 for the following reasons: 
 
“I believe the map in your packets showing the “BEFORE” zoning status of these properties on 
page 9 of 28 may be in error.  It shows the lots as having R-36 zoning.  The correct current 
zoning is Multi-Use, which requires commercial development in conjunction with a 36 dwellings 
per residential classification. 
 
“This is a minor point, but it makes one wonder. 
 
“I believe that a development of 36 dwellings per acre whether it is under Multi-Use or R-36 
zoning is in appropriate for this part of our community. 
 
“Some of my concerns are: 
 
“Traffic  216 units will probably add more than one car per unit to the traffic load on Federal 
Blvd.  Since some of the proposed units are one bedroom, and some three bedrooms, as a 
reasonable guesstimate, figure 1.5 cars per unit or 324 cars.  This is a lot of vehicles to provide 
parking for and access to 97th Ave.  On Federal traffic is already a problem in the area north of 
92nd to 104th during rush hour.  Federal is a heavily used commuter route. 
 



ATTACHMENT 3 
 

Page 13 of 20 
 

“Public transportation.  RTD has only a single route, #31, serving the area.  If this is to be 
affordable housing, won’t that place a greater burden on public transportation than other kinds 
of housing?  How will people get to and from work with only a single bus route? 
Conformity with the community.  A quick look at the maps in your packets, will show you that 
there are no other properties nearby zoned for R-36. Indeed, there are several areas including 
the North Park East community where I live, zoned for R-3.5.  Juxtaposing R-36 against R-3.5 
seems inappropriate, and I question why the properties were ever considered for high-density 
zoning such as R-36. 
 
“A High-density residential development of affordable housing should be sited near to significant 
transportation resources such as a light rail station, not in an area with restricted traffic flow and 
limited public transportation. 
 
“I ask the council not to pass the bill as presented, and to instruct the planning department to 
consider downgrading the zoning to R-18.” 
 
Don Fiddes (6/26 and 6/29): 
 
“I understand that growth is inevitable and that there are no easy answers. I am all in on the 
new downtown and I’m glad that the “old” downtown is being promoted as “historic” but the 
entire front range is growing like never before. I fear that transportation is not keeping pace and 
open space (always at the top of surveys as what makes Westminster great) is being 
compromised.  
I know that Westminster Forward is a comprehensive plan to address the big picture but I think 
we still need to look at each project more closely. 
Rather than open space being considered as a percentage of total land we might want to look at 
it as ratio per person.” 
“Good evening! I am writing you in regards to two new developments at Federal and 97th Ave. I 
fully support the home development on the south side of 97th provided it complements (scale) 
the existing units. The folks who originally bought into that development are so deserving of 
having that project being completed! 
 
“However, I have major concerns in regards to the proposed project on the north side of 97th 
between the new water tower and the Wishbone restaurant. It is not because it is going to be 
developed but because the project it is going to be more than two stories tall and accommodate 
more than 200 units! This is far to dense for this space and there is not a single development on 
Federal Blvd. from I-70 to 120th ( and beyond) that exceeds two stories. This is the exact same 
issue that was rejected at Sheridan and 112th only a short while ago!” 
 
“I also find it ironic that we are constantly told to conserve water, that with climate change we 
cannot depend on Mother Nature to provide a constant supply of water yet we continue to build, 
build, build! In addition we do not have a transportation system to handle the volume we 
currently have. 
I have been supportive of the new downtown and believe that four to five storey units are 
appropriate for that area, but do we need to do this on every available parcel of land? 
 
“Please remember the lyric “you don’t know what you had till it’s gone”!!! 
I am looking for your support to reduce the density of this project. My neighbors also support 
this position. 
 
“Thank you for your sincere consideration.” 



ATTACHMENT 3 
 

Page 14 of 20 
 

Paul Gannon (6/27): 
 
“I am writing to you today as a deeply concerned resident of the NorthPark East community. I 
attended the city hall meeting on 6/24 and my Home Owners Association meeting on 6/25. 
Based on this information and my own due diligence and research I have concluded that this 
proposal is ill advised. The size and the scope of this project are grossly inappropriate for the 
proposed location.  
 
“There are several concerns that I have. The most obvious is the tract of land to support such a 
project is not large enough. When you add up the amount of people, cars, and needed parking 
there simply is not enough room for ample living comfort. Undoubtably this three-story 
behemoth will become an obvious eye sore and the beginning of cancerous form of urban blight 
that will lead to spiraling home values in NorthPark.  
 
“Furthermore, the inability of the residents of this proposed community will be unable to make a 
left turn (proceed North on Federal Blvd) out of their own community! Ridiculous. The two closet 
grocery stores are King Supers and Safeway, both located on 104th & Federal. Most people will 
want to use the closest shopping available, this will add to the traffic congestion and a much 
greater incident of automobile accidents for traffic on Federal Blvd. This represents a clear and 
present danger to public safety. Our safety and the safety of our children cannot be ignored. I 
was not satisfied with the traffic studies presented at the City Hall meeting. Not enough 
consideration was giving to public safety. 
 
“In addition, I was unconvinced by the representative of the builder that they have taken into 
consideration any other opinions other than their own.   
Finally, I am not opposed to affordable housing on principal, however, I am opposed to short 
sighted non-strategic proposals based solely on the motivation for profits. Again, I stand firmly 
against the St Mark Village project.” 
 
Del and Mary Stansbery (6/27): 
 
“My wife and I live in North Park and are not against the affordable housing. We will be 
attending the July 2 meeting in support of the planned affordable housing. We both work at the 
Westminster United Methodist Food Bank and see the working poor come thru all the time and 
understand the need for this” 
 
Amy and Randy Lodes (6/30): 
 
“Dear Mr. Mayor and Esteemed Council Members,  
 
“My name is Amy Lodes and I live at 10123 Grove Loop Unit B in the NorthPark East 
neighborhood. I attended the June 24th City Council Meeting and had the opportunity to voice 
my dissent for this project. I appreciate your thoughtful consideration in deferring the vote on the 
rezoning request based on density and traffic concerns. 
 
“I listened as the developer gave all sorts of reasons why this project should move forward and 
his impassioned plea that everyone deserves a place to live. I, like most of the other residents 
that spoke, firmly believe in community and having roots. A safe and secure place to live is a 
right all of us deserve. 
 



ATTACHMENT 3 
 

Page 15 of 20 
 

“What he failed to mention – and I am not even certain you are aware as this was never brought 
up to Council on June 24th – is that the developer is SUING the NorthPark East HOA over the 
fence that borders his land and our neighborhood. This lawsuit was filed in Adams County back 
in April 2019 and our HOA is just now informing residents of this lawsuit. A copy of which I am 
attaching for you. 
 
“This non-disclosure was in bad faith and drastically alters the outcome for NorthPark East 
residents beyond just a 3 story, high-density affordable housing project! The developer is also 
asking for the HOA to pay all attorneys and court costs as it relates to the lawsuit – this could go 
into the tens, if not hundreds of thousands of dollars.  
 
“Do you realize what this means for 480+ HOMEOWNERS in your city?? We could be assessed 
thousands of dollars in a special assessment by our HOA to pay for the developer’s lawsuit 
(should they win) on a project that the majority of NorthPark East residents vehemently oppose!! 
 
“I cannot imagine that the spirit of new projects and development in Westminster is one that 
rewards one party (the developer) and punishes another (the NPE residents). 
 
“I believe that time is of essence in understanding the full scope of what this developer is doing 
to the NorthPark East residents and neighborhood. The HOA Board of Directors is meeting on 
July 2nd at 7:30pm, immediately following the developers “meet and greet” at 6pm, to vote on 
whether to take a settlement from the developer or fight the lawsuit. 
 
“I implore you to think of the consequences to nearly 500 HOMEOWNERS in NorthPark East 
vs. the developers 216 affordable housing units for RENTERS (people who will typically pass 
through the neighborhood in 6 months – 2 years). I have owned my home in NorthPark East for 
5 ½ years, many of the folks that spoke at Council on June 24th, have lived there since the 
development began in 1999 (or earlier as I do not know the exact date the development began) 
– 30 years of time, money and resources spent building a life, paying off a home – only to have 
a developer swoop in and threaten to take that away from us.  
 
“He should be ashamed as he did NOT act in good faith at the June 24th Council meeting by 
withholding the fact that he is suing our HOA. 
 
“I would appreciate if this letter could be entered into public record. I will also be there on July 
8th to read this letter into record as well. We still strongly oppose the St. Marks Village project!” 
 
Mark and Jean Whitney (7/1): 
 
“Thanks Mr. German. I just thought it was interesting it was at the Catholic Church and not a 
neutral site? I have also been following the law suit the developer has against North Park East. 
 
“I see the church is getting a petition going to have their members sign it to be in favor of the 
development. If I was city council member I think I would put more weight on people who live in 
NPE and are directly living there and are affected by the development, than members of the 
church who do not live in the area and are not affected by it--who knows.” 
 
“Interesting” 
 
 
 



ATTACHMENT 3 
 

Page 16 of 20 
 

Betty Longi (7/3): 
 
“I volunteer at westminster food bank,Lowell and 76th. Wanted to let you know that I am all for 
the pending affordable housing project in the area.  
Hope the city council approves!” 
 
Margaret Hinman (7/4): 
 
“I am beginning to have several concerns about the contract that 3100 LLLP has and the 
development of St. Mark Village: 
 
“1.  Transparency 
 
“3100 LLLP’s behavior regarding their interactions with the NorthPark East Board of Directors of 
which I am a director gives me pause.  First of all our first contact with them was when they 
asked for a quit claim deed for a piece of gap property and, when we did not reply immediately, 
giving them the deed, they upped the ante and also requested hostile takeover of some property 
that was NorthPark East Association property south of our fence by suing for ownership.  At the 
meeting on Tuesday night, they claimed that they had to sue because we did not respond to 
their requests although we referred the matter to our attorney and were taking time to do due 
diligence regarding their claims before responding.  I question the transparency of their efforts in 
that they first asked for the quit claim and then the disputed property.  Is this common practice 
to not be forthright about what they want in a timely manner? 
 
“Secondly, they are asking (suing) for a piece of property that is of no value with regard to 
development other than adding to their acreage in their request for the zone change.  The 
disputed property is solely on public utility easement and cannot be developed, according to my 
understanding.  Is the City, and the City Council aware of this? 
 
“Thirdly,  considering that they have not be quite honest, in my eyes at least, about what they 
are doing, are they going to develop the property and then “sell” it back to St. Mark’s Church or 
the Archdiocese of Denver, and thus make it a profitable endeavor for the church/archdiocese 
while being tax exempt as church property? If that is the case, the use of City services such as 
police, fire and ambulance services without paying for them can overburden those services and 
give the rest of the taxpayers the bill.  I would like to believe that the Catholic Church is acting in 
an honest, honorable manner but I have become a cynic in my old age and do not trust either 
them or the developer with respect to this issue.  Is this worth some research on the part of the 
City as to the honesty of the principals in this endeavor? 
 
“Finally,  has the City done its due diligence in vetting the developer, particularly considering 
some of the questionable items that have come up?  Is the developer honest in terms of 
producing what is promised?  Have previous projects by the developer been of the quality that 
the City would expect?  If the developer is trying to develop such a high density, low income 
housing project in a location without much to recommend it for such a project, is that what the 
developer does for a living and is that what the community and the eventual residents deserve? 
 
“2.  The Wisdom of allowing the developer to go ahead with the project as it is in the proposed 
location 
 
“216 one, two and three bedroom rental units (total residency capacity of over 500 people—two 
people in a one bedroom unit, up to 4 in a two bedroom unit and up to six in a three bedroom 



ATTACHMENT 3 
 

Page 17 of 20 
 

unit) on 6.5 acres of land with limited parking and poor access to the necessities of life looks to 
me like a lifelong disaster waiting to happen.  The combination of the number of residents in a 
tight environment, human behavior when people are so crowded and the lack of recreational 
amenities and space to get away from your neighbors is going to negatively impact not only the 
residents but also the city infrastructure and the neighbors outside the community itself. 
 
“Residents can walk to the grocery stores at 104th and Federal if they do not have a car.  There 
is also a pharmacy but there are no general and emergency medical facilities within walking 
distance of the development.  The one medical building within walking distance is limited to 
specialists—an eye doctor, a dentist, an orthodontist, a dermatologist, and a physical therapist.  
This means that if an injured person has no car, the only option is 911.  There are also 
restaurants and fast food places but there are no recreational facilities within walking distance.   
 
“The community itself, as currently designed has no recreational facilities, no basketball courts, 
no swimming pool, no children’s playground, no place for adults to hang out outside of or 
probably inside their buildings and no easy access to them outside of the community.  When 
children are in school, they will have a place to be but summer without something to do in the 
community increases the chance that there will be altercations and fights and vandalism in the 
community and the trespassing onto the private facilities such as the swimming pools and tennis 
courts in NorthPark and NorthPark East.   
 
“Public transportation in general in the area is limited and driving into and out of the community 
will be a nightmare with the lack of proper traffic control on Federal. 
 
“Does the City services infrastructure such as police, fire and ambulance services have the 
personnel and the equipment to administer to that community?  What is the enrollment capacity 
of Rocky Mountain Elementary and do they have the space and the personnel to meet the 
needs of that population?  How does that impact the increase in the number of free lunches in 
school and where do some of those children get food when school is not in session?  In other 
words, can the City and the school system meet the needs of these residents as it is currently 
staffed? 
 
“Is it wise to have another high density rental community in the same area as the Environs or 
does it make more sense to have such a community located elsewhere that would not have the 
impact of increased high density housing in that area?  That is a question for the City to address 
and I hope that they do for the sake of all of the residents of Westminster. 
 
“To me, it would be better to have such a housing project that is more humane and speaks not 
only to a place to live and sleep but a place where the residents can have easier access to the 
world around them and where they can thrive rather than just exist.  This benefits not only those 
people but the community in general and keeps the City of Westminster a desirable place to 
live. 
 
“Thank you.” 
 
Ann Grove (7/5): 
 
“Dear Ms. Seitz, 
 
“I am a homeowner in Northpark. I am asking you to vote NO on the proposed zoning change 
this Monday of the land around the Wishbone. The public outlined many valid reasons why this 



ATTACHMENT 3 
 

Page 18 of 20 
 

area is a poor choice for expansion at the last council meeting. The traffic flow into this area 
should be enough for a no vote from you, which will halt this builder from going forward to 
expand on this land.  
 
“Sincerely, Ann Grove” 
 
Lorraine Sherry (7/6): 
 
“Question: how does the St. Mark’s developer’s plan include ACCESS TO family health care? 
The medical office building at the King Soopers parking lot just contains offices for optometrists, 
physical therapists, dermatologists, and is closed on Sundays. For 24/7 health care (Flu, 
sprained ankle, etc.), St. Mark’s residents must go to the family care hospital and emergency 
room on 84th Street, several blocks west of Federal Blvd. Definitely NOT walking distance. 31 
Bus service is sparse and unreliable. Does he expect residents with a sudden health problem – 
family “one car” unavailable, but not needing an ambulance – to call Uber? Please ask him to 
address this issue. Thank you for your help.” 
 
Carol Mauracher (7/6): 
 
“I would approve Senior Affordable Housing in this area as long as it is truly affordable and not 
just labeled as affordable.  
 
“What would happen to existing families living in this area?” 
 
Lorraine Sherry (7/17): 
 
“I drove past “the other” Green Court that goes through Holly Park Subdivision and exits onto 
96th Avenue. It’s never been completed and I consider it impassible. But that is the supposed 
route where the 216 families are supposed to drive from St. Mark’s Village in order to turn left 
onto Federal Blvd. I have questions, below. 
 
“Questions: 

1. Is the City supposed to use our tax money to pay for completing Holly Park’s Green 
Court to City standards?  

2. What would we or the City gain from this, considering that the high-priority I-36/Church 
Ranch ramp repairs will cost Westminster $$$$? 

3. Is the contractor for St. Mark’s Village going to pay to fix the road? It is not on their 
subdivision…I would expect that whoever finishes Holly Park would complete the road 
as part of their own PDP/ODP. We have been waiting YEARS for them to finish their R 
3.5 or R 8 development there. 

4. What utilities for current (and future) Holly Park residents would be disturbed by St. 
Mark’s contractors working on the road in the Holly Park subdivision?  

5. What upgrade, including extent and timeline, is planned for the Holly Park Green Court? 
Have Holly Park residents been informed about this plan? 

 
“We plan to attend the St. Mark’s planning commission meeting at City Council scheduled for 7 
PM July 23. I hope these questions (among others) could be addressed then.” 
 
 
 
 



ATTACHMENT 3 
 

Page 19 of 20 
 

Laura Harvey (7/25): 
 
“I am strongly against the st mark development that will be next to the Northpark neighborhood. 
This is not the type of development appropriate for that land/space and community.” 
 
Teri Garcia (Zinanti) (7/25): 
 
“Hi. 
 
“I've been hearing about the proposed plans for affordable housing. I have not, unfortunately 
been able to attend the meetings due to my work schedule. 
I am wondering why they don't make this project an affordable "SENIOR" housing? 
I see so many Seniors living on such a limited income. They have contributed to our 
communities for so long and should be offered the same "affordability" as others. 
 
“I would like to suggest that they make this project/building(s) for affordable "Senior" housing 
instead of another affordable housing that I see popping up everywhere. 
 
“I live in the Nothpark neighborhood, have for 20 years now. Love the community and believe 
that having an affordable senior housing is a fair opportunity for the seniors in our community. 
 
“Thank you for your consideration.” 
 
Mark & Jean Whitney (8/5): 
 
“Hi Mr Sheehan. I am e-mailing you about a concern I have had since 2011 when I contacted 
Ben Kiene and Alazar Tesfaye at CDOT. My concern is over no left turn lane being available 
going north on Federal into 97th avenue. Because of this cars drive up to 98th ave go one 
block, turn left into the North Park subdivision, make a u turn around the median and go back 
onto Federal to go south to turn right onto 97th. I live on the corner of 98th and Grove so I get to 
see this traffic everyday. It's like a major parade of cars especially on the weekends since on 
97th is a popular restaurant the Wishbone, St Mark's Catholic church (who has changed their 
front entrance from 96th to now 97th ave and the Environs home and town home complex. Now 
to make it even worse, besides the major increase in traffic, because of major population 
increase since 2011, they are going to build a 200+ apartment complex on 97th just past the 
Wishbone. Plus they are going to finish off the lot just south of the Wishbone with more town 
homes. 
 
“The u-turning into 98th to Grove and back around is going to be unbelievable plus I feel unsafe. 
Some cars don't even dip into 98th they just make a u turn right out on Federal-very unsafe.  
Right across the street from the Wishbone, on the east side of Federal is a nursery and cars can 
turn left into there going south on Federal plus come out of there to turn left onto Federal to so 
south. 
 
“Please help. I feel it is unfair to me as a tax paying citizen to have all this traffic go by my house 
just for u-turning so cars can get to 97th to turn onto it. Besides the noise it is unsafe. My house 
has been here 25 years way before the Wishbone was built and now more apartments and 
townhomes being built on 97th.” 
 
 
 



ATTACHMENT 3 
 

Page 20 of 20 
 

Rich and Sheran Hehn (8/6): 
 
“My husband & I do not want the board to change the zoning of the property on Federal Blvd 
Cordially,  
 
“Rich & Sheran Hehn” 
 
 
 
 
Staff Note: 
On the following pages are scans of letters that were mailed to Staff. 



July 9, 2019

Mr. David German

City of Westminster

Dept. of Community Development

Planning Division

4800 W.92"™ Ave. Westminster, CO. 80031

RE. St. Mark Developmentoff Federal Ave.

Mr. German; Sir:

Donald L. Roth

4850 W.75th. Ave. #E

Westminster, CO. 80030

970-629-2144

teebird970@earthlink.net

I am an owner of property at the N.P.E. location. It is my understanding that this

referenced proposedproject is being requestedto be a low-income housing facility.

This proposal was discussed at the Council meeting, on the evening of June

242019. A considerable amount of residence and others spoke about this

proposalin a negative connotation.

I would like to make a couple commentsfor your kind consideration.

1) Having lived in a community that had this type of housing, | was fully aware

that these type facilities are prone to very poor up-keep. The residents, or

owner(s) do little, if anything, to keep the facility area and/or their occupancy

in a reasonable looking condition.

2) Regardless what the owners are professing about care, it has been my

experience that their main reason for ownership is to make money, or reduce

their taxable income.(this has beenverified by a personal friend and owner

of such a facility)

3) Due to these conditions and circumstancesthere is a high potential of being

an undesirable location for the present and future owners in the area.

Therefore, reducing the property values.

4) Westminster hasa great situation of NO “slum” areas. SO really consider very

seriously this factor and reject the present proposal!!

Based on the above comments, it is my recommendation that the City of

Westminster decide a negative approvalof this project!!

A concerned property ownerand citizen:

Donald Roth - 4850 W. 75" Ave. “E”, Westminster, 80030

7Lisa[Ae
ACC: Honorable Mayor-Mr. Atchison .,  



















4* 4
Growing Home

July 8, 2019

Dear Westminster City Council,

On behalf of Growing Home' s staff, Board of Directors, and participants, it is my pleasure to

write this letter of support of the proposed St. Mark Village affordable housing community to

be developed by St. Charles Town Company. As a 20- year-old Westminster- based nonprofit
organization working to create a thriving and equitable Westminster and Adams County one

family at a time, Growing Home is acutely aware of the need for additional affordable housing
in the community. Due to recent population increases, higher costs of living and environmental
factors, poverty and homelessness are prevalent in the area, particularly southwest

Westminster. Families are finding it harder than ever to keep a roof over their head and food
on the table. The proposed development would help to shrink the void of affordable housing in
the area.

Growing Home has been proud to partner with the City of Westminster for the past 20 years in
supporting those most vulnerable in our community. Growing Home' s mission is to guide

children and their families to a brighter future. Our participant-centered approach to
strengthening families, nurturing children, and connecting community fills a critical gap for
families and children who are experiencing immediate and long-term barriers to stability and
success. Through evidenced- based programs, we improve outcomes for children, their parents,
and their community. Each year Growing Home helps over 2, 000 families. Our model makes us
a leader in the two- generation approach to poverty alleviation and community equity.

We are proud to support this development as we value the diversity of our community and
welcome this opportunity to bring more housing options to Westminster. We strongly

encourage you to make all necessary accommodations to allow the St. Mark Village
development to move forward as soon as possible.

Thank you for your time and consideration. Please feel free to reach out to me at 720- 407- 1974
or karen@growinghome. org if you have any questions or would like additional information.

Sincerely,

anti Cee—

Karen Fox Elwell

President& CEO

3489 W. 72nd Ave. Suite 112 • Westminster, CO 80030

303- 426- 0430 • 303- 426- 0560 fax • www.growinghome. org







Letter of Support

Fo

St Mark Village

Dear Westminster City Council Members,

The undersigned members of the Westminster and surrounding communities have signed this letter to

communicate our support of the proposed St Mark Village community to be developed by St. Charles
Town Company. We value the diversity of our neighbors and welcome this unique opportunity to bring
more housing options to Westminster.

We strongly encourage you to make all necessary accommodations to allow the St Mark Village

development to move forward as soon as possible.

Kindly,

Your Constituents



Oi I£ aged

I f L.     9L- F.nF.     2 co^ f,   van..)„       itlw c4j r>,rit:-

1 '  Y 1 14"$. 0'- 4-0,- ' n.    i k  ' . g  /•   L'  u•, +. 1• M J'' I   \-% V 1 L
i I 1t

f l".-       5 ., 3 :<9/  Fn.     / E,>? 1   ? aal.  A,,(

Tzey tfhi// yp(/_2-27nm-_,

1 1G 1 e*p s ssF
v-

HQ//'- o c 1'• h'    ' 6ik 7.. 9 R 96  Z,      9       ' U 1 /N

v0

1,0'(F) psi-- sz_,- fob r,   .'?,,^t1,- Y 1-   L 19" 4    ")

7,,W -  v

1 ' 7. YY 1,.iIC- Mu- 4 q.   na  ' M iS f
i 2)' u d S 31, 0)

i- ryn     ) ..^.

n11S
firm- 1,,,,,

11 ,
Y.-^' i.'r

y  ,c f, 1,- a bff 1:..A ci.  _ 45 1/- k* O t I/ ( l  __Fyn 15., 1 w, 1, 4\

1
MA P.

kS

61119,      ' 9rii n,) 14- L', h- zn fr      fS    , V) Li04
1," 1, 1Ia- r,V, a 1fo>

NW it lige- Z Gy -Pr
tih lb  -

j 'IvIL..,7 c1' I j   "l Io+ vr)4 r?..  j  
It&   _

Y

V94,
SO"'11,€- O- tj     ,41 i ,,     OP 07 c.    w1 kW     ,

0v / t3 7"t-    ` 0 :;/ 2-13( v/
U/ Y' M 3 pf 6/ Shj 7

7'''.

1-
7,/ 2 Z.J4Z-,/ Wv, PE k;373 *G'.)   " Z-172 C"' UP-P* 4 1•Zra7f h  ,.

4-9a r i,   v      £-t 5-$r S    Y'    °° R z S l0)      s 55 ° 9 '  7111 v r o

7. Doi- ve-otot TrX      -S Ail it'     silA '. 111.J/ 1 rpIs,,(iih
3Ht11VN9IS 3 NOHd3131 SS] Haav 3 W VN

E19VTflIA MIIVK   'AS

LIIObIIIS



SUPPORT

ST.   MARK VILLAGE

NAME ADDRESS TELEPHONE SIGNATURE

011(4 Z 4\.n c ti 1   ( o 1 t'  42 a.. A L.A)      7) 0

I h LSA 3,1 l o fi 'lit/ 4 0e r/ 
a t/  L/ 1- L?`

i*       i\kAs mirco, t
7-)-cio5svy 4114

r  _ .  v J Ot. tits3 z

av„ , S stl zjg3q 1c1, g       f1,,e s0-3  / 65_7-

fl144G-5 t'' ko, -.4-    
4' Yd50. 5'Y  . 4V 3oj/ Y  / 6/7f /,'     c t-   / 

r      
u4 y0n

Z. 1frulda,,412, VO` lO C'.7 303iy     -(. . 1 0 21:2A-4-icsV
j<Y

I2S 2  /. 3E: ache r.  t SSA 7491./ a,c/

ltrs/ 4/9 CNiiNdtOz !.- S6    . 3   (fc-H-$T 3 6. 9. 5"62,-4-3-04- 13

414V
9rfeh92- /7 7015 W,i l6

1
t/_ 

l O  o        dz a,‘

757.3

Oit'J z9OO& flstl( Q 702-622- -(o e

M. a C, c.... :-, 4l 7 2-0 P1   ,n Pri t: y 7` 7 cp ow Cr€ U--

VI.     I . L.{ I. 1i` i juv\ kc'z St-  700  "3' 1[       1 RQliOtt_
Page 4 1 10



SUPPORT

ST.   MARK VILLAGE

NAME ADDRESS TELEPHONE SIGNATURE

owt I?-- t-D-6-1 Ipiii_A t.tivaiiff-tod, 611)- w- 3/ 02—    ( itAl   /177.   -----;.
n1   IA.i.Fc1 c

it) P'L0 4c'   l L'ti  ' ( 1,), W);13.A63..  . ,;  ,      7t,  - 6
o      [' Lick()     li 2). t(G9 I trc A   

f.),2   ..
1 l .- L7.-  '  f...,,-

f!..- Ov,, v:. t' c. ti. ed-..,. 12 J 0 j G z n.:_    3v 3    ?       l J      i1`'

Ce  . 1G., 1   6 L y 3 0
w LL L•3 0L.'act  ( c C. fig,    l(, t,  ---

d_.
r. ` lc. I, c' i

L/
o )  L.    o4 ill cir, 3/ 7rrc3) 6cc    _    -, 6-  1<- U

11 ti j e 3- y`- y- a      ,, 7/   / t Yvix v 1     C4     ! 1' h ;
l b

l r
Vt

y    %,

c t t, h 905 7 La Su   ' i 1" 1.     30, 3 - G-5(1 -i:  1 G c iVe'  /      -

bl/ Y- - V v -
I 41_   ,.- ! (  /- /.//, r 4' •   

C/ 
I V       `/_.Y!.L;  t' -7-  i  /';4/), ,

f L r

ti`iLx_C,75Lt iV) D A)  ?     l.  30-.  • Lin-. 10 ii t' Q' L.,._ 1dt.- s

t '
7 1

Y;Iceli

1- ryai, i,' S.,`  1- w,c, 0.,-G ,    Art   , f.,     f / ' f   .'f0 i -V.,,,,-CY- CC,-   ,,  L,    .  7,/,   -i.7,  -

r. i"t ,', A ej  ' 170A-pp1( 1-1` fe:  pi.    363• 57l s'. 70  : i'

1...„,,.,,rvicly
y AA    1 - z ,  r 7.1 chit/..:—-  ,, > j Z.7 o zS3 7c 3

Cikt h ki1r pi d r 7 IVAC)  v;nIS e c   - 1 V 726- ` I= 1 cI ICc' 1   ` t, k ' t̀n—__Z

4-      :, ice,.,  4.,e4 l dl

v" Page 4j10



SUPPORT

ST.    MARK VILLAGE

NAME ADDRESS TELEPHONE Sf TORE

PO h      •. S.       k4 C. MA- A.4 1 i5'Ll CIM12-41._a..-Lt LA. S..t-    Z IT7-9

92t Wir)

e1-
4-4-,    -e--. 9AD 115s-Vacci-)7-     12o - to 2/6- 07  '

icwroeQc'       6 NI IJ,   16F-14-4141 A IL 22-10- tili-"Hi Y

17611.

4(       1

i    '4
4-

1. 
lo

t/
2 11/

2 t/

fd:4 te( sLI:5 1(V4t-cri141/
7) (

ti qi CO , I07 DA a   -"     c8e-   -1
A

4-
a   -,:/auto A iotIcci aria la 1,- iil 7d\O- Ni-qa—

c ,  \vu.,Ataki\laiLitio) stodosk-vvion   -obermirti      .t4c.

3,0,\ .\vickice,  c -Aki-LI   - 1 ILI- 1- 1-- PI 503-L0197 r--)arce ei ks

nv&u. 6:1 3(A C: i 2- 72:-l(e', 0177.14e54 alf----/
C, lai-Vvy\ C%-v,  (- totp t--)1 1 rre f L- k-) 120- 313 .7946  '-'' V`  ) r01-

7     -- P------

1 \

A IT\ IL A YYlet..-el 14: 11). 2-LI 1• C-16c1c1 (____ 
1  -:'(

1----/; -  ---:'     ':. ----

0_-e,,       0 63 c
f'      ) 

Lk)'   303'' 73  ')--.>/    '    V-oaq  ,,       ---
7-/- 5,,6, ,_:-_,. , 2.,  // 1,76...„ -36-1-,,,,     - ;.)  -a-?:.3 3-3,-_, ‘.-4-,- 3:::::-/--.)_ 4.:A/-

Page 51 10



SUPPORT
I

1

ST.    MARK VILLAGE

NAME ADQRESS      //

I

TELEPHONE SIGNATURE

6' fr;i 1.//{: 7;i/ ip,f'1 ell da ba.e_es%' X       -     36c'   //   Lr>/./;,776-i       (ie,;t.,_

q  ,;      9/;76,- 7)It I!0P!    ::3_ y 6 45//  -    ?k\ l 1' i°

l/4,zk r s 4eW   '. 11144'( Y. J .   4; f./s7r l 141 -   -
9 1. 99` {      ro,ve1i 3  14 rJ -fit 18( /..iii'l ), V,,__A-1/ iz

kJ'sae, rA     /. 2 I0 U .  'to S 6..    s -- y 21 s

l 2/0/ se‹,,-J--
itittk '' t/    52X w iu4nd e1 t lg- U6y3

v

rik 'et ri,/
nlvicd4i t

J0 N,,)  VA c- (      10 70 sg Z v A-,;    z 3/ Ltc s . (/‘ Li( __  LCc .----

L.MOAA.g 6 h1. 1_     Z L.- u to 1
h

LA-       361 ALL_ u 5: 1(    Z- Gc- 11 a r 1 rf..   ,,, i v C'.

Qji, 4._, 13 q Pi lec   .ztv%4Jo"  5/ 9zo Zsyq ii'
Vl t   «. iG' U i(' L ! Y ( tyll CUO.

ti(       
ZG  `, c2c     ZG       

il
L 115 l t

L
Cott L14-, ce so-1 ki,-,. 1 Da4. 0k n   <<-)      og ' ag(3 1Qi)   

7_1)AcLs' vlrtf nca 9,  )  1: olbi.
11< 1 3t,3 4/ 3`/ 65c)

aL
b-A IA

5'     ',--;),

4 7 ri Lo • i Z*. ,, t&
1 c.o,,lic j.,11,4- -(

616e  --.:(./*,
AL  /', t.

V.   
J     _

y

1    `      l J.We L.'  9 1'       
3   /'/&    rcc-       %    `-y

Page 5110



SUPPORT

ST.    MARK VILLAGE

NAME ADDRESS TELEPHONE SIGNATURE

Lam, IS T6d\ 1" Q,
t1)    ( i 44'-t NQy611 : t.  Pi. Pov 3 m 4GR- vic,    dt9,01/0,Atbf

Qi  /      e(    QQccv Wd I4f' S-r, tkl c+   v3-

J V a vUia A'  CM a p e,     3 o 3- q+a 6 i    ,.6Y..

rd f6/ li)    4 g eLZ i0we11,    4)    5 •-Y 7 I3',; zsv d' 4
s-iv3AVitr-s 4fell/ t,) .  II24-

4('

i-    305.       -ttp1 j

0:  'y 0- ,\'\'      I    ' 3 v is A.   Zs LILLA. J C l ( U•.

C4Leri' t 14   -  3a7 9 W( 0i.4 £.   : .    • 7 a v- 3 61_ 9 74/ ---

la a no 1L Rai 99' 5'5 w (Q/ V- 4i/ L 3°3- 9De- 1/ 4// 0' J

liee  &r/?,rt lvlV U GRo 4 I oc   # 0 3 - 915- y/63 sd; 2/--

ed'dar Mot 4 -    E. , it 2a140.e 489 J     -aSS' 31 f%, e,_

2)7,    Ai 394 ) to 10 411( 4 ? la ct.    303-- Y6,3- 9/    7/a

ilitr64144Oi aovi-L,    ' ' 1fD E  / 1z 17aplz6c/a       ,,w
u

C -  a,   G.4620, 21   ,-, O( p,
CJ. ! in 4,0t 30'6- Y4( 9- 0 Sal,       ( c,  ,

r
e---."----- '

hauld(   Ksi  - z  _    u 16. 11 L014' /*+ c 477d- 13i(2R6
MR-kYKAY suave c z w. 9,7   - Au6 3O3- S13-700(5

TS. us; , 1;.,,  ., , 1(. e (-.      
0 2 S, i ii: 16it id, lVek...a 5c13 - y29g. i7,5      . ap,  K.Li,,   } dip  ,

Page 6110

i



SUPPORT

ST.    MARK VILLAGE

NAME ADDRESS TELEPHONE SIGNATURE

S C4- Ill UAo641—   'MI  ( htZalouKaL Blvd      +73(0713)

aoJ0Po_SS'k+iga  <  9O` 73 4A,Jde£- f 3a3^ 4180- 7/ ift•       XV4)
IAc rcei l lv ra .     q( I. 7 ki ry S- - 14c.tfra

r

3036735- 2YQ%     yig ti

ika i f.,
t A,J:,    1 I d-7 1 AAy Si• 

A) - 31'1‘`)` A";"'  
raJ - gl-r'lis/ a/   2Z'-)

er,i4=,.  a.-el;-   i 161 I S*     
c 6'     .

3¢ 3- Yd 5 3/ sl     \, at.     ?       '- ..

n
a. e5r'.: 1 g,

J :r,.  De 13( I I e 7776 0/ tiar. 6l, sr    «.3p 30s-. LW-) 7f'L IF.   10P46d,"
Alf4 0i71 ,      '9a 1L-r'. ca, d74 7e) - 4/    G'       L

tOtteitt LiLfi—      9°71 64.1.4 Er 31)3 0.? i,3V
1-44,,t tJ NL7a 1'-(--,- 0s SP o17  .$ ;' Cl33j

ittiv‘ek-lb*-Al     (
i)   

cat, 0‘       . 16 1    _._,:  o--;)6M3- g?-9-7

7osll r' Cz r   \ G/:,   4 7 5, 0,/,0/4-;    i r^../ // ,' ifcL!L-   7    / ) Ci'

p?
Jt 4 t i,,/ (1, . 9o-  tUv      . 1.       ,-,    -44 -y7,za (       6C t:-.  

4vi r il (  ?(1 ,/ /, I      . Lci_zt 7(:   c ( /' 7ft? 5 3  / 7X c;' Lf'( i  -  (3

Z4A,t- t-%    . e / l iL9rl.  / 37,5-7 1/411.4e et,:',')..:'.;(
L 1 1?- 1 0 - r l,    L4;L'

I      Page 6110

I / 49



SUPPORT

ST.    MARK VILLAGE

tlA(
N E ADDRESS TELEPHONE SIGNATU

cCA i7.   Y{' I(: VIUI' 1(   1rl`? o d [ 11 4{, If/ l CfTELEPHONE2 IZJ     it_'/   '       e. le 14t*

u.      . n  li.G4r, ,     ' 140 IV q0:.   Act.     ios 4..1. b fa 7 1  ,     . Lf    x-•-w=-/" 4.;
J)

i h t tc,:  F,& vv I o t/ ?   , LA4.    kink-   3 z-rl•- 3 - yo'fv K-.     rq( f, L)    '      .

1,,.r 4, C  /(,)/) 13  £ lief Cr 2i'
s -

xa:3    -- 

Qc-i—     Wuk___  Ay 11AI/1-70AA,-*- LesTilt r-

5)( 1.   , A 1.s-9 7-..2_

c- lam" v --? ey.4_,-, 1   / 3 r4/       0,241 141,-ro-,. 7 37.  C. mac (/,       r,-

4)    cr,c;
1/    

6

y.SD w..44-t.:,Lt--•ki:  0. 1 3// fi-.   72? g g,v'-A C- k1      ,
iti 11/fri, t-   ,-, 2 90:  6:!.   '. // ) 1<,   7, :    

l‘

Z-- ("We.

Q/Cc(i)  fDfJD to 3ral Ave  ? yyyo ie
iii,9A.,/i?d,

oci,j  ‘
E-)P-4 1)1141/-er.4) 1-       i- 1a ---9e21 47 AA01--( 0---Zek-ed-

1:

je-
55---- t-,,.?_›. 4--::/k      ,/. 5 kf` k,,v  `' j/ 7, ((,'       ?   ;{2 7 3) 3     '  l.L i,,    r"t,.     

V —

7.-
G roJ_   '

I t,, t, fv ,  l ! J./   / t c .,. 2l  ` f-   c
1

i   %l

e/ t n /) rc t 14), 70 ?,c-f/  4/ .%a/ flit     ,    3 - 95k j "/ a- 3 C 4)/

pi 9 '17 ii.,  6- c.•  t-),ci    ,, fr/ .4 - 7,5- 1(     (
i ekcyfrio

C

pit
c--

J
Page 7110



SUPPORT

ST.    MARK VILLAGE

NAME ADDRESS TELEPHONE SIGNATURE

BR NA G(8&     321DO KASS..62.  PL.   7a0-% 3- 730 Avid--,1,4--R- 1

Gi-VisTI/ETEKilyjitax 913E 1i) v» ha CA 303 ( las- ion eivisti I ticI
ER/c,  Nleyc2 I31,68c w-N1 363- 9 z 9- o   '-   4----       

1,/ el
y ii Au, el, f t'    // 3-$5 I)  /26)(, cii, Y 4- 1 L" 3 Y 3 6'• J&/ c2    / Jr Ao[

e,
wv

vrW1
y

6) 1( 1444,)   2 tcZy 4 I f4 CO,    3  / 3 s 2c b-    
1,

1
3 e  « w--

4-)

Allk S ri l 1 ( V4 1,• a. - C4-.     5 u e2.       _l•      3 - ate-    

j b kile"      r,14ti4 (,_; 9` I +-11 CI 1-    a'")1 C.)  3' I  '  i_,_c-i."C,_t.-    JZtr
10i- iU • 141 64 Ju6(e1P 13 4 2, L, J 11 11h EI7u 3 i 17 4 3 Z i,ittek e'(

7ul-I•,,t,4-     , 14 7, 1 06 v FiyF f   -S   ' t G)       W I,' 72 4'   ,    ,  Zr Wael-i-r-,.
F F; v ja -(F, (

J

IN1-414 AP, LI- 71510• IGd-" a PI.    3"t;3 .541/- 1.  ( 3   ( 74.4-;-

f 79c1c':, , o 2ivo 1' L 3U 3.-yf 77c,     

7k /ZC5 die- sr-       303 3r-6,1 1)    
i

6 a/ fE Ci) 14/7Lj5kr t 3MMc. Vrw( rr Sf' 34/6g--3/'    
letio=A

Page 8 1 10



SUPPORT

ST.    MARK VILLAGE

NAME ADDRESS TELEPHONE SIGNATURE

II
i)&.,z 114eieS

N, 

7.3D/`
y

iLi .       4_    yj_o c 3/ cO o I/ 14//. <` .1
9,     I .  (      4r   , 3trite  , Ojai -, c/ 1- 7, 1 7/ l 16, _ 4/  i

et_   ,  ba.   es_   / DA0 .)  Osc1    / a C V       ; 3 >3 - `/' q(!-' rem/    1 A    - 77,2- ' 4—

Yai L-n dt7 Lit-  10'? t-' P1.     3"() oil     l̀O LeCLtel(
k . o t,    40.I 17 c).  in) MAMA)     A , 03 i,  -( t73)     

G    .  OV0-'      y L 6 t W I O.      az_ 11 o 3 Y( oily G

O,L.L4,-       7' 17I t-  1 i 54-  301 - 241„. 1 i0.Z 1/4\4_,,,
7woc, S(._, L

4wig V, i(" 1, 4 Cyr    % co?, t   '- 110  •
1)( 14-

1- '

rM O,  ') C.,

44 6Yt L y ay"      J1,; c a ! 7 ( ea?/     2     . rs' - / 1/(   :,( 1   ,      7

A litioet, L   /+ 1(
J q a/( X AAA- L LS  . 57.    . 70Y 1059- K3 fetaKikz E//  - A,/

P 7Jt  ? l('Vc4.%      / Uo) 1      ,,,•s41 ( r S.     72- h37- D"-/ tS r.-P- --
Mirir jt,ip   -i iii-,1,   2-7. 71  \ IL Ic(1- 7:- FLAJ  - 4/ zIk)-- i.t.    th:   --4,,,..      --if
Cy vie; s   '   1 I.3 Qa)_  K. rci,>>e a-

3- 9 i 6..- a s 3 1      & cQ _ J'`    -,
J

Jo i4dv _  14 4- m19A    :  q--/'3  (- I-)• I i tilt:10"; 1,      V'IL-) `-3` 14-  ' 2•- ( 7 4-oi,c4./(-> 6.  9.4./'z

0 (Ay i7o i rl",  lo`/ t" A JQ IA/  2o(-' 1` i -%.n c      ,f,

ge/u_  (daz., t
0 dd.4.       `U-...,      7 f) 7- 0 i() 4 P a F.E 10

Zei-2,   h Ll 1 Lrw(. i



SUPPORT

ST.    MARK VILLAGE

NAME ADDRESS TELEPHONE SIGNATURE

7
e C .  -)   _   6 L7_ r r//      

tAZ3• -     • a' 74v l I/a r :      '     >

EINMjlillMOIMMIEEITMIPTIIMIRIMIII" IMIMIMIMMMir7WAI

M4111111EN C, 7 G-•_

02 ate/ 4J Q
11.

Zi 3 03- YG- a  ('     / j.iGt v Q p o7a : 1
mow.

I/3c(
I

8.1,'.    i,  -     ,  •  .      e. t__    S•   303   / 9z 9_12    :- Atii     ._

e e rhof z$       ./ vim o -      e 3-- O 3- 041 go .  d /  ,

iR ri its  /   t  A    )`A 41 1-     1516
A s       ar. r/ 7S"  cJ  is..    el       ,0 O3-   6S. t 2)  VW d

C ALi6 619HLINIti)    0313 YATEo 4i.    IC31-`/'? 41GS jAd# I

0,-       107,1 Vooisr5- a3. a- 39       /  , f

Page 10110

1



SUPPORT

ST.    MARK VILLAGE

NAME R01.4.     TELEPHONE SIGNATURE

Ja    5 ltia lam 14/ 1 Cr Mix / t y 303--16.1-- Q7c,,   !       y( s    ,

inu,     1. > a 1144461 1 d3 -V44 -194

kwai/ e/ 11,'// oSS92-,    j jf.      i/66.2

l Al Per       / O$ 8' Z r f L--6S' 4r

G& R PD A)  / 41,97  ::    / 3 7,i2 U-aY#"CR-      f) 3_ y LO - y P 7a yetkr
L/?ftfl k6 Ke-4       '3/ o c. l' ysr `may/ R       ;? oJ- 5' d o -/ Joa,

as'   {    S C 117L q (, Lf   . U.   
r. 

3. 3 3. 77 5s2.2

411k6 Jk-, 4 r

A01.4-      6,i6cI1 T a3 yc7 yc gel,._
of Ia 6S bd ev if-       64   - 047

G At.,,       > /4. S3? / f4ze(  S'.     StiiI 16w ll«
Or-3 SIG<vaHe(  

o chTe<op 9y ciI C j1&
J-'L u`p-‘ QISO cr

1"fai  /f51-24/ 1/.     ice 44-       -

Page 10110



i
J

3
m

c,

c.    a

o
m

co,

1 CS• C

Cy ,

Cv

m

m

r,-    \

1



NAME ADDRESS TELEPHONE.    `-.    iGNATURE

I lAtkil wiz_   ..ifTS),( uil 11 1(ki lystonyie,-?. s la5-: t:i,     11. -. v.ccu,  

Vc7      ' -,.   Lii E..„,,, L.,..,    
0600 ef_it:,p,,,     -  / 2.1, 4

c,( tat    .k.-;,?-x-,   U,
ucrt s 0../4:40 7'' _  : S4 74 w i G iftr4 3- 4'1.9:91/1t' 47 Z

941.    no'T,. . 1. 10       ' 1.       Yo c`/ion   •   d t-z__-

11 tG    .,.  `‘ z55 Cx.-)/ p7/ 75%'/. 3 Cs' N. -. 0 F&z"" r-     ,.    /7,14
04 Await,  gideqg 6g:# ji 1-66/ 0 f.      -. 5fi-   -A5 1/

1)(
A;

1 It al) s1, 151 gal 0 lv torAi bie 1,,A9) 6.11,,,  of  ,- iJ Say ct- -   .

rn,      ),- 1 rS Z W S/. 5 S  /.`       etuS V, iaE j,  1       

r,l\ ' I u; ) Y')       2)04-   \"`'^`n1 i 11 ter, Z'o7 ' .       - o c1
6l co,,...). .       .  

ii-.9y71.       if-a    -   ,  ,y. _     -.,- 

11  ) 71/ y/       ---.b/Z f.)   ,:ith fe.&---0 32).    %
y•ii:-

Z-    __,/ -,-/- tr->.
1       /

i •    in)     44011 JV74 a'     LR- e-- h.  I1 . 23,6-•`fW v    ? 

Le 4\  , Li .   •   J   ,.      ,       -   ,, ,. 
i_       60352-L1- N1z— „ (ts.  ,gc....it,14,4 - .   —,

11/04e 1e,t  ,1// 6c/1Cciii; e/ c)  SI- 3 z.i' Iz-    -1
116 L_/ n-

r4any _i Mu/ Vb vvkc ,: L 7J6u , 1 9
it/( 

vZ_- 303- 170 3.441    %;` utr  ': 4t   ` ii, e-e'` u3/4

Vikk.4-tot,k, I' 4 78 ffLos Si 7.;9- 491- ( z.lf ,       1 I. .. _.-.   ..   ..,,
j



NAME ADDRESS TELEPHONE SIGNATURE
f      ‘, 4 s-=);

i:ertiCif:     
N

t .

Paixgin ieizisi ;)   ci I 4/./ 3(/
7-1/

0/te6le     ..34-.   i   . a

ki-t 0.--)a fflil 4 J-     .144
7.4.)314 1 3 tidAt# 1 a 4,-/ y

303- y32- e.-iv    '•    4   ..)-3-4,....e..e--

1(  

7
c,      .5-'((-18A7;??

I r-Ott_.) II fr.,)• t
446 G:- /° Si"' Pr kh(1, 11-1/414 i?o--54/- vs:t„,--       ....--    

13977 21(44,vrI/ 1
1 A/it ek tr e-- //`-t 2•  '  /   5- °,(trel--)94-7    '   70

1•,-,,
f-ipi  ::= 4,4,.. 4- 7, — ,

Y / I a  ?Fr r. P3'  3 6--.,,, --,  ,-.  • v- ;  - 3i ‘

Adipitian_Ave-A-    foGGiC7-      4/.: 4foo 0 err-   ‘P-7-    k--1// f/2 e.
J.yrelrAr4 KA Rol.eir.    isici S-Q 5e k vl 9y).- s - 4-.,17- 74.54 b,,,,,, Arl 6.0-i-Lk_,

i, c_k_, L-\ tkP,-tAA il•WVII2.444 et 7-.7)

0 A- 1-  7--c.)(  71 )... ellitt).. R.2‘.. 4-ca

7thr., Q.1.   . 17u\ ci_  ( 672,-  E-7--.,  11 5-“N> k-ue_    •gol) 4/ 0(1- Rb*  1'  K Q   "-------

VAAL-  a,l;VVq.,A 11) 2

7 z_c) 0,5-z-:3 i'I? 7.7-
r -: - ----•--- -,     •

1
i)

I/ 167S ikE6i. (:).4"-      t 3-
I.) y•--)

1.--E-Ci-e-,--) r- lic 673.3 Z- _//,c16A, r .    R.J?) • 72t--/  -,-?    

4



NAME ADDRESS TELEPHONE

SIGNATURE4; 7 4C7471W4.
7.z

0) 14L1     •  •     ik)   7--a ." .2-47+ 1

yI`Gp- 4•4- fic)Q,. e,:'     ( QC(   )4g.(  51- V-7- 501)- i5l3

1     , =7     / IG v-,// j,J,n711 3°5 3/./  yir''11y

eh r,skc J t3$  J - n J iOr,  i 1l- m-' 12& 7

JO...fp
h 1*( 1(    ) 19 it'olkuAryLsi.   60s-    5 5a-Pc 44--

4<ara Tt la eL     ‹d- 31

flMc  '    U blsa j/   69- kJ/ - 71 i,,,1.   •  up,   , o5., J,;,,',. 01. -

1`
f

Q_  1- 4--7 i.--. An.,lf d c v 3 - 4 6 1 ' 0/

7J(/,      .•,,,.,.,`    /1-4-.--7
L,  l Asi\ a 30s 931 r3

eariziato f we td    / 54 63a-ACA l if

6-7.   f t ) 5 P.  .
eic   . 3o 3sa sf7 /

Gam,\ y-   0((  l.,U 3C)'3sa i  _/     e1/ u 77)„ ,       ._

i lvt t v S q It(  (be ria. 3 S   ' i 4 h,. l

ti



NAME ADDRESS TELEPHONE e9....g72 IATURE

rf)\ at-01 ;     I3 )      re
CoQC2T Ce . 75  0 .` S-

r--
AJ `   . a3) 4-2>- 2972-       6- k,-

Pt 1 t)(cNn 3 r ia, Pi 0 ll a 3iL1
w ` 34.' 4  ( kv(      720-- k, cl( 9-. S Ly 0 etivi a

ju fto.   SoivCC    `" I 7.:!, ( Ai IU.-,(. i Avc-  3 .
4  -`

1 - 3v2 5 tat,:  (/ 1/ r4

A/ 1„ tr(,._,      31( 0 / w `r?   ZUU, ktaen_o, --

it 44v j, 44.,::ii       &r'' ilt>ki,G#lii { 7•      '    it,79G, ;   . J.,/,  ,, eVA       ' it

G•t_ f1 O) YID 8-      j 1- 6 L. e 1(. 1  u3 2/ 3 5: 9•0) 
ri 0 ti.

1.: tr( BTU I G' 111 Z,       ':1
i.i  (       • )

134'       L
I':  /

1`   /'

71 mil'

17



I

NAME ADDRESS TELEPHONE SIGNATURE   ,,

kYkj•
YA) 0    /0407 0-i-ebha; 3-9#97,400k-

Qe w  (* Z ACL9k,

Ai Pi D 9Dj II! if/  i t '`  "  
7,' c - 00 3e,. 1

t
V. 1.- ox,,e   ( v l( cZ fA,-tit(( 1. 044 FPO- PA- 371 l     _

1);. 0 C " AA_  L• k a La .   ( o n& 361 - Poi4 I(    , 0' ,,,( c../ .

k) u4

4,..
iiySi-c,{ A 135 5 W& - f 3U3 ' l ,O 1W 3

7,,,,-

0,_ „..)-- e_   

yR  ( yg U w  "n: 
1"'

C, krdte

a.44Y(.      7 1 Z,       (

7&''''‘,-----:-'

iki--t-A4"----4e--; 3 736 71)   6---,2-9- 3.    3/ ar-0,197-01-       .. rce..e.efe....,-----? fx,/,2,

r Mori of n t)   ) 164,   Lo v4 101A, 
j..oc  . 3)   , g-// 30 modr. J

vrf ,fu it (f,      90 7-3 I4 %u3r` f vt
l" iC' f h,' 

y6  '-  82, If     __j I

G .1-1)e.
e.-

S- e '‘\--,--.--9      ? ((,) Ti A." 9 el-,  :':::'-el'- ,-
e/.( Z) Y(4(111.417)   t.-3f=iti-

4m     '` 4ii, l' enii"2 6-6' q itk2, Y' c.) '( IZ s 3  • 7̀1 9- 6z.g.' `t,) lZ'-,Cli: ii,A., k)G te.     4  _

l _



Ifs     •       r    '  +s   (

7YJ - 7'r7•7141017 670F•  ,      ' 7     ' Y    ' yr14

7 l         .v F"'-     a4   / fj  / fr/ r'(/ Z'    lr

mac   ---    <      <      51_1 09I       ) 3p,11450
Y I SLR e   ,11v 11 r1c qeM10 1,1101 gYA4 I.V1h)sralic0

J .      51 Ikv', .1
311f11VN9IS 3NOHd3131 SS31Iaav 3WVN



NAME ADDRESS TELEPHONE SIGNATURE

Niacei q(-7 k St-{'   303.     A4)

chef ICCPd 17l 37-30 VI t0 VC'      CC/3/ 303`

v4 t ive61,4414C4aZ 4614-

givoy f1 rG 10 Pico 141 itt.tmos W34 3u W '

Page 2110



NAME ADDRESS TELEPHONE SIGNATURE

c.u-) feh e,mj i     •- 1a4 W,     
n1 4,4- S,    I O t.  W e s-1M n fc r I    - 1

l r %5 Ab 0An 34 1 lnv.     
rz A  _ St,;-le_ I/ O Yam 20"` 

q,g 1k\y-
Gt gal°       12, 3 [iv- I (( ot'`   o nskrfo w l-       l`(& P

I/)Lrf J4S/ o     $ 3YF7 A) 7a`
1,

4-rk Sug;  j i5r,,tjrs r 7oa3
2 5152ag-( Roo )

P  "-. 61-     349 w i 1 21—
Q
N 0

Q
Q 

Y

kl) C C` WfU Cu 4VV(1,   1L,k0)-   - C6K 4- `7') .,\W 8(221  :'    257.T t Q  :    x.3, • ' 9,

l s   &,_    s l QO Ohs 5\--- U\ eg-4 ev\     -'-- L 29 3-t  --G5 3(si_      S`

Ca G)ov zr      , 12  I
l

cA.v1I- yQe er 122 Zci 6' 4.0, 0 G     t   ,
hoc

N' rninia ) 0hSijZ-LoO W-  W5p1. iltlisirn) rt W 7Z0 55(bi   - -) F
wtitF«..c A., tc.r

Cri,ti-c,,l C.Qrddva.  3 1% I       .+Z Avtl scl: LO$     d  - TK- - t¢r't`   C
t j 844 AQ 20

aA,0 LcrQ 6oeroa 3 99 e nd Av fOlte ,.   1.r-

111,d-Zi iiTA5 te9 w*:-,-tc ). 1cL AN) _-  igo-W-13-- fig/

Page 2110



PERMITTED USES

MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL

PROHIBITED USES

ANY USES NOT SPECIFICALLY LISTED AS

PERMITTED SHALL BE DEEMED

PROHIBITED. THE PLANNING MANAGER

SHALL DETERMINE IF AN UNLISTED USE

OR SET OF USES FALLS INTO THE

DEFINITION OF A LISTED PERMITTED USE.

VICINITY MAP

SCALE 1" = 2000'

PROPERTY OWNER

3100 W 97TH AVENUE , LLLP

1850 PLATTE STREET, SUITE 200

DENVER, CO 80202

720-598-1300

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE

I, AARON MURPHY, A LAND SURVEYOR REGISTERED IN THE STATE OF

COLORADO, HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE ABOVE LEGAL DESCRIPTION

HAS BEEN PREPARED OR REVIEWED BY ME TO BE AN ACCURATE

DESCRIPTION OF THE PDP PROPERTY BOUNDARY.

_________ ___________________________________

   DATE AARON MURPHY, PLS 38162

FOR AND BEHALF OF HARRIS KOCHER SMITH

ADDRESS: 1120 LINCOLN ST., SUITE 1000

DENVER, CO 80203

PHONE:       303-623-6300

ST
 M

AR
K 

VI
LL

AG
E

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

DE
VE

LO
PM

EN
T 

PL
AN

DA
TE

:

CASE# PLN19-0038

1120 Lincoln Street, Suite 1000

Denver, Colorado 80203

P: 303.623.6300  F: 303.623.6311

HarrisKocherSmith.com

A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT
IN THE CITY OF WESTMINSTER

COUNTY OF ADAMS, STATE OF COLORADO
SHEET 1 OF 5

FIRST AMENDED PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN
LOTS 11, 12, 45, 46, 47 AND 48

HOLLYHURST SUBDIVISON

CONSULTANT FIRMS

ARCHITECT

KTGY ARCHITECTS

820 16TH STREET, SUITE 500

DENVER, COLORADO 80202

303-825-6400

CIVIL ENGINEER

MICHAEL MOORE, PE

HARRIS KOCHER SMITH

1120 LINCOLN STREET, SUITE

1000

DENVER, COLORADO 80203

303-623-6300

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT

SANDI GIBSON

OUTSIDE LA

2623 BURGESS CREEK RD

STEAMBOAT SPRINGS,

COLORADO 80487

970-871-9629

MECHANICAL, ELECTRICAL, &

PLUMBING ENGINEER

COREY STENMAN

JORDAN & SKALA ENGINEERS

555 17TH STREET, SUITE 700

DENVER, COLORADO 80202

303-586-2375

DEVELOPMENT TIMING & PHASING

IN THE EVENT THE DATE OF APPROVAL OF A PROPERTY'S PDP OR LATEST PDP AMENDMENT IS

MORE THAN FIVE (5) YEARS OLD AND NO BUILDING PERMIT HAS BEEN ISSUED, THE PDP OR

AMENDED PDP SHALL BE REQUIRED TO BE SUBMITTED FOR REVIEW AND RECONSIDERATION IN

ACCORDANCE WITH CITY CODE.

THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT TIMING AND PHASING FOR THIS PROJECT IS AS FOLLOWS:

BEGIN CONSTRUCTION: WINTER 2019

END CONSTRUCTION: WINTER 2021

THE DEVELOPMENT WILL BE CONSTRUCTED IN ONE PHASE

0

SCALE: 1" =

2000 2000 4000

2000'

ZONING & LAND USE

CURRENT ZONING & LAND USE: PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT FOR MIXED USE

PROPOSED ZONING & LAND USE:PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT FOR MULTIFAMILY

APARTMENTS

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN DESIGNATION: MUNICIPAL AREA

SITE USAGE DATA

MULTI-FAMILY WITH 216 UNITS AND 36 DU/AC DENSITY

LOTS 11, 12, 45, 46, 47 & 48 HOLLYHURST 261,360 SF (6.0 AC)

TOTAL AREA

261,360 SF (6.0 AC)

BUILDING COVERAGE

86,538 SF (1.99 AC;

33.11%)

PAVING AND DRIVES COVERAGE

124,493 SF (2.86 AC;

47.63%)

LANDSCAPE COVERAGE

50,329 (1.15 AC;

19.26%)

03
/15

/20
19

SHEET INDEX
Sheet Number Sheet Title

1 COVER
2 NOTES
3 NOTES
4 NOTES
5 OVERALL PLAN

ZONING & LAND USE
ZONING LAND USE COMP PLAN DESIGNATION

SUBJECT SITE: PLANNED UNIT DEVLEOPMENT (PUD) MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL R-36 RESIDENTIAL
NORTH: PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD) SFA AND SFD RESIDENTIAL R3.5 AND R-8 RESIDENTIAL
EAST C-1 COMMERCIAL (FEDERAL HEIGHTS) VACANT (NOT IN CITY OF WESMINSTER)

SOUTH: PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD) SFA AND SFD RESIDENTIAL; CHURCH R-3.5 AND R-8 RESIDENTIAL; PUBLIC/
QUASI-PUBLIC

WEST: PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD) MUNICIPAL ELEVATED WATER TANK PUBLIC/ QUASI-PUBLIC

03
/15

/20
19

05
/20

/20
19

CLERK AND RECORDER'S CERTIFICATE:

______________________

RECEPTION NO.

ACCEPTED FOR FILING IN THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY CLERK AND RECORDER OF

ADAMS COUNTY OF BRIGHTON, COLORADO ON THIS _________ DAY OF

______________, 20___, AT _____:____ O'CLOCK __.M.

___________________________

ADAMS COUNTY CLERK AND RECORDER

___________________________

BY: DEPUTY CLERK

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

A PARCEL OF LAND SITUATED IN THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 17, TOWNSHIP 2

SOUTH, RANGE 68 WEST OF THE 6TH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, CITY OF WESTMINSTER, COUNTY

OF ADAMS, STATE OF COLORADO,

LOTS 11, 12, 45, 46, 47 AND 48, HOLLYHURST, RECORDED IN BOOK 3 AT PAGE 54

EXCEPT THOSE PORTIONS THEREOF CONVEYED TO THE DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAYS IN

DEEDS RECORDED IN BOOK 920 AT PAGE 379 AND DEED RECORDED IN BOOK 926 AT PAGE 293,

COUNTY OF ADAMS, STATE OF COLORADO,

MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTH QUARTER CORNER OF SAID SECTION 17,

THENCE NORTH 00°01’39”  EAST ALONG THE EAST LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER, A

DISTANCE OF 894.55 FEET;

THENCE SOUTH 89°24’25”  WEST A DISTANCE OF 91.40 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WEST LINE OF

THE PARCEL DESCRIBED IN BOOK 926 AT PAGE 293, A POINT ON THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT

11 EXTENDED EASTERLY, AND THE POINT OF BEGINNING;

THENCE CONTINUING SOUTH 89°24'25" WEST ALONG SAID EXTENSION AND THE SOUTH LINE OF

SAID LOT 11, HOLLYHURST SUBDIVISION, A DISTANCE OF 468.44 FEET TO A POINT ON THE EAST

LINE OF SAID LOT 45, HOLLYHURST SUBDIVISION;

THENCE SOUTH 00°33'57" EAST ALONG SAID EAST LINE, A DISTANCE OF 161.90 FEET TO A

POINT ON THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF WEST 97TH AVENUE AS DESCRIBED IN BOOK

1815 AT PAGE 496;

THENCE SOUTH 89°24'25" WEST ALONG SAID NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, A DISTANCE OF

521.58 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WEST LINE OF LOT 48, HOLLYHURST SUBDIVISION;

THENCE NORTH 00°34'05" WEST ALONG SAID WEST LINE, A DISTANCE OF 340.47 FEET TO A

POINT ON THE SOUTH LINE OF TRACT A, NORTHPARK SUBDIVISION FILING NO. 14 RECORDED

AT RECEPTION NO. B1228332;

THENCE NORTH 89°24'41" EAST ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID TRACT A, AND ALONG THE

SOUTH LINES OF TRACT B, NORTHPARK SUBDIVISION FILING NO. 11 RECORDED AT RECEPTION

NO. B689214, TRACT B, NORTHPARK SUBDIVISION FILING NO. 10 RECORDED AT RECEPTION NO.

B1081276, A DISTANCE OF 993.59 FEET TO THE WEST LINE OF SAID PARCEL DESCRIBED AT

BOOK 920 AT PAGE 379;

THENCE SOUTH 00°34'36" WEST ALONG SAID WEST LINE, AND ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID

PARCEL DESCRIBED IN BOOK 926 AT PAGE 293, A DISTANCE OF 178.53 FEET TO THE POINT OF

BEGINNING.

SAID PARCEL CONTAINS 261,513 SQUARE FEET OR 6.003 ACRES, MORE OR LESS.

BASIS OF BEARINGS:

BEARINGS ARE BASED ON THE EAST LINE THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 17,

TOWNSHIP 2 SOUTH, RANGE 68 WEST OF THE 6TH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ASSUMED TO BEAR

NORTH 00°01'39" EAST.

07
/26

/20
19

CITY APPROVAL:

ACCEPTED BY THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF WESTMINSTER

THIS ______________ DAY OF __________,20__.

___________________________

CHAIRMAN

___________________________

ATTEST: CITY CLERK

APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WESTMINSTER

THIS ______________ DAY OF __________,20__.

___________________________

MAYOR

___________________________

ATTEST: CITY CLERK

OWNER APPROVAL:

I, ________________________, AS MANAGER OF 3100 W 97TH AVENUE

DEVELOPMENT, LLC, THE GENERAL PARTNER OF 3100 W 97TH AVENUE, LLLP,

PROPERTY OWNER, DO SO APPROVE THIS ODP FOR REVIEW AND APPROVAL BY

THE CITY OF WESTMINSTER THIS ________ DAY OF _______, 20__.

3100 W 97TH AVENUE, LLLP

BY: 3100 W 97TH AVENUE DEVELOPMENT, LLC

A COLORADO LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

ITS GENERAL PARTNER

BY:____________________________________

_________________________, MANAGER

PROJECT SCOPE:

ST MARK VILLAGE IS A PROPOSED AFFORDABLE MULTIFAMILY DEVELOPMENT

BOUND BY A PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY EASEMENT TO THE NORTH, 97TH

AVENUE TO THE SOUTH, FEDERAL BOULEVARD TO THE EAST, AND CITY OWNED

PROPERTY TO THE WEST.

THE GENERAL DESIGN CONCEPTS INCLUDE THE FOLLOWING:

· DETACHED CLUBHOUSE WITH ON-SITE LEASING FACILITY

· FITNESS CENTER

· COMPUTER/BUSINESS ROOM

· OUTDOOR POOL IN A COURTYARD SETTING

· BBQ PATIO

· PLAYGROUND/TOT-LOT

· OUTDOOR GARDEN SEATING

· OUTDOOR TRELLIS PATIO

· GREEN INFRASTRUCTURE SUCH AS RAIN GARDENS

· RIGHT OF WAY BULB OUTS TO ACT AS TRAFFIC CALMING MEASURES ALONG

97TH AVENUE

THE SITE SLOPES GENERALLY FROM NORTH TO SOUTH AND IS CURRENTLY

VACANT, ROUGH GRADED LAND THAT IS PREVIOUSLY UNDEVELOPED.

David German
Planning Review
ATTACHMENT 4



ST
 M

AR
K 

VI
LL

AG
E

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

DE
VE

LO
PM

EN
T 

PL
AN

DA
TE

:

CASE# PLN19-0038

1120 Lincoln Street, Suite 1000

Denver, Colorado 80203

P: 303.623.6300  F: 303.623.6311

HarrisKocherSmith.com

PUBLIC RECREATION AREAS CARROLL BUTTS PARK 0.5 MILES
PUBLIC OPEN SPACE CARROLL BUTTS PARK 0.5 MILES
DRAINAGEWAYS SOUTH PLATTE RIVER 6.0 MILES

MAJOR DETENTION MIDDLE SOUTH PLATTE - CHERRY CREEK
DRAINAGE BASIN 6.0 MILES

PRIMARY SCHOOL ROCKY MOUNTAIN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 0.6 MILES
ELEMENTARY SCHOOL ROCKY MOUNTAIN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 0.6 MILES
MIDDLE SCHOOL SHAW HEIGHTS MIDDLE SCHOOL 2.0 MILES
HIGH SCHOOL NORTHGLENN HIGH SCHOOL 2.5 MILES
NEARBY SHOPPING AREAS NORTH PARK PLAZA 0.8 MILES
NEARBY FIRE STATIONS WESTMINSTER FIRE STATION #2 1.3 MILES
NEARBY BUS STOPS 97TH & FEDERAL 0.1 MILES

03
/15

/20
19

03
/15

/20
19

05
/20

/20
19

A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT
IN THE CITY OF WESTMINSTER

COUNTY OF ADAMS, STATE OF COLORADO
SHEET 2 OF 5

FIRST AMENDED PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN
LOTS 11, 12, 45, 46, 47 AND 48

HOLLYHURST SUBDIVISON

07
/26

/20
19



ST
 M

AR
K 

VI
LL

AG
E

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

DE
VE

LO
PM

EN
T 

PL
AN

DA
TE

:

CASE# PLN19-0038

1120 Lincoln Street, Suite 1000

Denver, Colorado 80203

P: 303.623.6300  F: 303.623.6311

HarrisKocherSmith.com

03
/15

/20
19

03
/15

/20
19

05
/20

/20
19

A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT
IN THE CITY OF WESTMINSTER

COUNTY OF ADAMS, STATE OF COLORADO
SHEET 3 OF 5

FIRST AMENDED PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN
LOTS 11, 12, 45, 46, 47 AND 48

HOLLYHURST SUBDIVISON

07
/26

/20
19

.



ST
 M

AR
K 

VI
LL

AG
E

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

DE
VE

LO
PM

EN
T 

PL
AN

DA
TE

:

CASE# PLN19-0038

1120 Lincoln Street, Suite 1000

Denver, Colorado 80203

P: 303.623.6300  F: 303.623.6311

HarrisKocherSmith.com

03
/15

/20
19

03
/15

/20
19

05
/20

/20
19

A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT
IN THE CITY OF WESTMINSTER

COUNTY OF ADAMS, STATE OF COLORADO
SHEET 4 OF 5

FIRST AMENDED PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN
LOTS 11, 12, 45, 46, 47 AND 48

HOLLYHURST SUBDIVISON

07
/26

/20
19

.



A

A

B

B

1120 Lincoln Street, Suite 1000

Denver, Colorado 80203

P: 303.623.6300  F: 303.623.6311

HarrisKocherSmith.com

CASE# PLN19-0038
0

SCALE: 1" =

100 100 200

100'

03
/15

/20
19

DA
TE

:

ST
 M

AR
K 

VI
LL

AG
E

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

DE
VE

LO
PM

EN
T 

PL
AN

03
/15

/20
19

05
/20

/20
19

A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT
IN THE CITY OF WESTMINSTER

COUNTY OF ADAMS, STATE OF COLORADO
SHEET 5 OF 5

FIRST AMENDED PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN
LOTS 11, 12, 45, 46, 47 AND 48

HOLLYHURST SUBDIVISON

07
/26

/20
19



DA
TE

:

1120 Lincoln Street, Suite 1000

Denver, Colorado 80203

P: 303.623.6300  F: 303.623.6311

HarrisKocherSmith.com

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

PARCEL ONE:

LOTS 12, 45, 46, 47, AND 48, HOLLYHURST SUBDIVISION, RECORDED IN BOOK 3 AT PAGE 54.

EXCEPT THAT PORTION THEREOF CONVEYED TO THE DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAYS IN DEED

RECORDED JULY 18, 1961 IN BOOK 920 AT PAGE 379, COUNTY OF ADAMS

STATE OF COLORADO

PARCEL TWO

LOT 11, HOLLYHURST SUBDIVISION,

EXCEPT THAT PORTION THEREOF CONVEYED TO THE DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAYS IN DEED

RECOREDED AUGUST 11, 1961 IN BOOK 926 AT PAGE 293, COUNTY OF ADAMS

STATE OF COLORADO

A PARCEL OF LAND SITUATED IN THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 17, TOWNSHIP 2 SOUTH, RANGE 68 WEST

OF THE 6TH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, CITY OF WESTMINSTER, COUNTY OF ADAMS, STATE OF COLORADO,

MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTH QUARTER CORNER OF SAID SECTION 17,

THENCE NORTH 00°01’39”  EAST ALONG THE EAST LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER, A DISTANCE OF 894.55 FEET;

THENCE SOUTH 89°24’25”  WEST A DISTANCE OF 91.40 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WEST LINE OF THE PARCEL

DESCRIBED IN BOOK 926 AT PAGE 293, A POINT ON THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 11 EXTENDED EASTERLY, AND THE

POINT OF BEGINNING;

THENCE CONTINUING SOUTH 89°24'25" WEST ALONG SAID EXTENSION AND THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 11,

HOLLYHURST SUBDIVISION, A DISTANCE OF 468.44 FEET TO A POINT ON THE EAST LINE OF SAID LOT 45, HOLLYHURST

SUBDIVISION;

THENCE SOUTH 00°33'57" EAST ALONG SAID EAST LINE, A DISTANCE OF 161.90 FEET TO A POINT ON THE NORTH

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF WEST 97TH AVENUE AS DESCRIBED IN BOOK 1815 AT PAGE 496;

THENCE SOUTH 89°24'25" WEST ALONG SAID NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, A DISTANCE OF 521.58 FEET TO A POINT ON

THE WEST LINE OF LOT 48, HOLLYHURST SUBDIVISION;

THENCE NORTH 00°34'05" WEST ALONG SAID WEST LINE, A DISTANCE OF 340.47 FEET TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH LINE

OF TRACT A, NORTHPARK SUBDIVISION FILING NO. 14 RECORDED AT RECEPTION NO. B1228332;

THENCE NORTH 89°24'41" EAST ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID TRACT A, AND ALONG THE SOUTH LINES OF TRACT

B, NORTHPARK SUBDIVISION FILING NO. 11 RECORDED AT RECEPTION NO. B689214, TRACT B, NORTHPARK

SUBDIVISION FILING NO. 10 RECORDED AT RECEPTION NO. B1081276, A DISTANCE OF 993.59 FEET TO THE WEST LINE

OF SAID PARCEL DESCRIBED AT BOOK 920 AT PAGE 379;

THENCE SOUTH 00°34'36" WEST ALONG SAID WEST LINE, AND ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID PARCEL DESCRIBED IN

BOOK 926 AT PAGE 293, A DISTANCE OF 178.53 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

SAID PARCEL CONTAINS 261,513 SQUARE FEET OR 6.003 ACRES, MORE OR LESS.

BASIS OF BEARINGS: BEARINGS ARE BASED ON THE EAST LINE THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 17,

TOWNSHIP 2 SOUTH, RANGE 68 WEST OF THE 6TH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ASSUMED TO BEAR NORTH 00°01'39" EAST.

R

Know what's below.

Call before you dig.

CALL 3 BUSINESS DAYS IN ADVANCE BEFORE YOU DIG, GRADE,

OR EXCAVATE FOR THE MARKING OF UNDERGROUND MEMBER

UTILITIES.

VICINITY MAP

SCALE: 1" = 2000'

PERMITTED USES:

MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE:

I, __________________________, A LAND

SURVEYOR REGISTERED IN THE STATE OF

COLORADO, HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE

ABOVE LEGAL DESCRIPTION HAS BEEN

PREPARED OR REVIEWED BY ME TO BE AN

ACCURATE DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY

BOUNDARY.

PROJECT SCOPE:

ST MARK VILLAGE IS A PROPOSED AFFORDABLE MULTIFAMILY

DEVELOPMENT BOUND BY A PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY EASEMENT TO

THE NORTH, 97TH AVENUE TO THE SOUTH, FEDERAL BOULEVARD TO THE

EAST, AND CITY OWNED PROPERTY TO THE WEST.

THE GENERAL DESIGN CONCEPTS INCLUDE THE FOLLOWING:

· DETACHED CLUBHOUSE WITH ON-SITE LEASING FACILITY

· FITNESS CENTER

· COMPUTER/BUSINESS ROOM

· OUTDOOR POOL IN A COURTYARD SETTING

· BBQ PATIO

· PLAYGROUND/TOT-LOT

· OUTDOOR GARDEN SEATING

· OUTDOOR TRELLIS PATIO

· GREEN INFRASTRUCTURE SUCH AS RAIN GARDENS

· RIGHT OF WAY BULB OUTS TO ACT AS TRAFFIC CALMING MEASURES

ALONG 97TH AVENUE

THE SITE SLOPES GENERALLY FROM NORTH TO SOUTH AND IS CURRENTLY

VACANT, ROUGH GRADED LAND THAT IS PREVIOUSLY UNDEVELOPED.

PROPERTY OWNER

3100 W 97TH AVENUE, LLLP

JORDAN ZIELINSKI

1850 PLATTE STREET, 2ND FLOOR

DENVER, COLORADO 80202

720-598-1300

CONSULTANT FIRMS

ARCHITECT

KTGY ARCHITECTS

820 16TH STREET, SUITE 500

DENVER, COLORADO 80202

303-825-6400

CIVIL ENGINEER

MICHAEL MOORE, PE

HARRIS KOCHER SMITH

1120 LINCOLN STREET, SUITE 1000

DENVER, COLORADO 80203

303-623-6300

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT

SANDI GIBSON

OUTSIDE LA

2623 BURGESS CREEK RD

STEAMBOAT SPRINGS, COLORADO 80487

970-871-9629

MECHANICAL, ELECTRICAL, & PLUMBING

ENGINEER

COREY STENMAN

JORDAN & SKALA ENGINEERS

555 17TH STREET, SUITE 700

DENVER, COLORADO 80202

303-586-2375

CLERK AND RECORDER'S CERTIFICATE:

______________________

RECEPTION NO.

ACCEPTED FOR FILING IN THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY CLERK AND RECORDER OF

ADAMS COUNTY OF BRIGHTON, COLORADO ON THIS _________ DAY OF

______________, 20___, AT _____:____ O'CLOCK __.M.

___________________________

ADAMS COUNTY CLERK AND RECORDER

___________________________

BY: DEPUTY CLERK

PROHIBITED USES:

ANY USES NOT SPECIFICALLY LISTED AS

PERMITTED SHALL BE DEEMED PROHIBITED. THE

PLANNING MANAGER SHALL DETERMINE IF AN

UNLISTED USE OR SET OF USES FALLS INTO THE

DEFINITION OF A LISTED PERMITTED USE.

SHEET INDEX
Sheet Number Sheet Title

1 COVER
2 PROJECT NOTES
3 PROJECT NOTES
4 PROJECT NOTES
5 PROJECT NOTES
6 OVERALL PLAN
7 SITE PLAN
8 SITE PLAN
9 SITE PLAN
10 GRADING PLAN
11 GRADING PLAN
12 GRADING PLAN
13 UTILITY PLAN
14 UTILITY PLAN
15 UTILITY PLAN
16 LANDSCAPE MASTER PLAN
17 LANDSCAPE PLAN - NORTHWEST
18 LANDSCAPE PLAN - CENTRAL
19 LANDSCAPE PLAN - NORTHEAST
20 LANDSCAPE PLAN - SOUTHWEST
21 LANDSCAPE PLAN - SOUTHEAST
22 DETAILED LANDSCAPE PLAN
23 LANDSCAPE NOTES & DETAILS
24 DETAILS
25 HYDROZONE PLAN
26 BUILDING A - ELEVATIONS
27 BUILDING A - ELEVATIONS
28 BUILDING B- ELEVATIONS
29 BUILDING B - ELEVATIONS
30 BUILDING B - ELEVATIONS
31 BUILDING C - ELEVATIONS
32 BUILDING C - ELEVATIONS
33 BUILDING C ELEVATIONS
34 BUILDING C - ELEVATIONS
35 CLUBHOUSE - ELEVATIONS
36 TRASH ENCLOSURE - ELEVATIONS
37 PHOTOMETRICS

DEVELOPMENT TIMING & PHASING

IN THE EVENT THE DATE OF APPROVAL OF A PROPERTY'S ODP OR

LATEST ODP AMENDMENT IS MORE THAN THREE (3) YEARS OLD AND NO

BUILDING PERMIT HAS BEEN ISSUED, THE ODP OR AMENDED ODP SHALL

BE REQUIRED TO BE SUBMITTED FOR REVIEW AND RECONSIDERATION

IN ACCORDANCE WITH CITY CODE.

THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT TIMING AND PHASING FOR THIS

PROJECT IS AS FOLLOWS:

THE DEVELOPMENT WILL BE CONSTRUCTED IN ONE PHASE.

ST
 M

AR
K 

VI
LL

AG
E

OF
FI

CI
AL

 D
EV

EL
OP

EM
EN

T 
PL

AN
03

/18
/20

19

03
/18

/20
19

DA
TE

:

0

SCALE: 1" =

2000 2000 4000

2000'

OWNER APPROVAL:

I, ________________________, AS MANAGER OF 3100 W 97TH AVENUE

DEVELOPMENT, LLC, THE GENERAL PARTNER OF 3100 W 97TH AVENUE, LLLP,

PROPERTY OWNER, DO SO APPROVE THIS ODP FOR REVIEW AND APPROVAL BY

THE CITY OF WESTMINSTER THIS ________ DAY OF _______, 20__.

3100 W 97TH AVENUE, LLLP

BY: 3100 W 97TH AVENUE DEVELOPMENT, LLC

A COLORADO LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

ITS GENERAL PARTNER

BY:____________________________________

_________________________, MANAGER

A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT IN THE
CITY OF WESTMINSTER, COUNTY OF

ADAMS, STATE OF COLORADO
SHEET 1 OF 37

THIRD AMENDED OFFICIAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN
LOTS 11, 12, 45, 46, 47 AND 48
HOLLYHURST SUBDIVISION

CASE# PLN19-0039

05
/20

/20
19

CITY APPROVAL:

APPROVED BY THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF WESTMINSTER

THIS ______________ DAY OF __________,20__.

___________________________

CHAIRMAN

___________________________

ATTEST: CITY CLERK

ACCEPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WESTMINSTER

THIS ______________ DAY OF __________,20__.

___________________________

MAYOR

___________________________

ATTEST: CITY CLERK

07
/26

/20
19

dgerman
Planning Review
ATTACHMENT 5



DA
TE

:

1120 Lincoln Street, Suite 1000

Denver, Colorado 80203

P: 303.623.6300  F: 303.623.6311

HarrisKocherSmith.com

R

Know what's below.

Call before you dig.

CALL 3 BUSINESS DAYS IN ADVANCE BEFORE YOU DIG, GRADE,

OR EXCAVATE FOR THE MARKING OF UNDERGROUND MEMBER

UTILITIES.

ZONING & LAND USE
ZONING LAND USE COMP PLAN DESIGNATION

SUBJECT SITE: PLANNED UNIT DEVLEOPMENT (PUD) MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL R-36 RESIDENTIAL
NORTH: PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD) SFA AND SFD RESIDENTIAL R3.5 AND R-8 RESIDENTIAL
EAST C-1 COMMERCIAL (FEDERAL HEIGHTS) VACANT (NOT IN CITY OF WESMINSTER)

SOUTH: PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD) SFA AND SFD RESIDENTIAL; CHURCH R-3.5 AND R-8 RESIDENTIAL; PUBLIC/
QUASI-PUBLIC

WEST: PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD) MUNICIPAL ELEVATED WATER TANK PUBLIC/ QUASI-PUBLIC

LOTS & COVERAGE
TOTAL SITE AREA: 261,360 SF = 6.00+AC
NUMBER OF LOTS: 1
BUILDING COVERAGE (SF & %): 86,538 SF /33.11%
PARKING AND DRIVES (SF & %): 124,493 SF / 47.63%
LANDSCAPE/OPEN AREA (SF & %): 50,329 SF / 19.26%
MINIMUM LOT SIZE: N/A

PROJECT/SITE DATA
BUILDING TYPE

BUILDING 1
(TYPE C)

BUILDING 2
(TYPE C)

BUILDING 3
(TYPE A)

BUILDING 4
(TYPE A)

BUILDING 6
(TYPE A)

BUILDING 7
(TYPE A)

BUILDING 8
(TYPE B) CLUBHOUSE

ODP BOUNDARY AREA (SF/ACRES): 261,360 SF = 6.00+AC
GFA (SF): 43,013 43,013 22,619 22,619 22,619 22,619 38,117 2,260
FFA (SF): 39,312 39,312 21,204 21,204 21,204 21,204 35,694 2,260
FAR/DU PER ACRE (#): 36.00
MAXIMUM BUILDING HEIGHT(S) (FT): 45'-4"

MINIMUM SETBACKS
PROPERTY LINE - (ADJACENT

AREA) BUILDING PARKING LANDSCAPING

WEST - (CITY TOWER PROPERTY) 10'-0" 2'-0" 2'-0"
NORTH - (NORTHPARK SUBDIVISION) 5'-0" 72'-7" 5'-0"
EAST - (FEDERAL BOULEVARD) 39'-7 1/4" 25'-0" 20'-0"
SOUTH - (WISHBONE RESTAURANT) 100'-9" 10'-0" 10'-0"
EAST - (WISHBONE RESTAURANT) 10-0"' 3'-10" 3'-0"
SOUTH - (97TH AVENUE) 25'-0" 10'-6" 25'-0"
BETWEEN PRIMARY BUILDINGS 20'-0" 7'-0" N/A

BETWEEN ACCESSORY BUILDINGS N/A N/A N/A

ST
 M

AR
K 

VI
LL

AG
E

OF
FI

CI
AL

 D
EV

EL
OP

EM
EN

T 
PL

AN
03

/18
/20

19

03
/18

/20
19

DA
TE

:

A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT IN THE
CITY OF WESTMINSTER, COUNTY OF

ADAMS, STATE OF COLORADO
SHEET 2 OF 37

THIRD AMENDED OFFICIAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN
LOTS 11, 12, 45, 46, 47 AND 48
HOLLYHURST SUBDIVISION

CASE# PLN19-0039

05
/20

/20
19

07
/26

/20
19



DA
TE

:

1120 Lincoln Street, Suite 1000

Denver, Colorado 80203

P: 303.623.6300  F: 303.623.6311

HarrisKocherSmith.com

R

Know what's below.

Call before you dig.

CALL 3 BUSINESS DAYS IN ADVANCE BEFORE YOU DIG, GRADE,

OR EXCAVATE FOR THE MARKING OF UNDERGROUND MEMBER

UTILITIES.

“ ” ST
 M

AR
K 

VI
LL

AG
E

OF
FI

CI
AL

 D
EV

EL
OP

EM
EN

T 
PL

AN
03

/18
/20

19

03
/18

/20
19

DA
TE

:

A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT IN THE
CITY OF WESTMINSTER, COUNTY OF

ADAMS, STATE OF COLORADO
SHEET 3 OF 37

THIRD AMENDED OFFICIAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN
LOTS 11, 12, 45, 46, 47 AND 48
HOLLYHURST SUBDIVISION

 CASE # PLN19-0039

05
/20

/20
19

07
/26

/20
19



DA
TE

:

1120 Lincoln Street, Suite 1000

Denver, Colorado 80203

P: 303.623.6300  F: 303.623.6311

HarrisKocherSmith.com

R

Know what's below.

Call before you dig.

CALL 3 BUSINESS DAYS IN ADVANCE BEFORE YOU DIG, GRADE,

OR EXCAVATE FOR THE MARKING OF UNDERGROUND MEMBER

UTILITIES.

03
/18

/20
19

03
/18

/20
19

DA
TE

:

.

ST
 M

AR
K 

VI
LL

AG
E

OF
FI

CI
AL

 D
EV

EL
OP

EM
EN

T 
PL

AN

A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT IN THE
CITY OF WESTMINSTER, COUNTY OF

ADAMS, STATE OF COLORADO
SHEET 4 OF 37

THIRD AMENDED OFFICIAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN
LOTS 11, 12, 45, 46, 47 AND 48
HOLLYHURST SUBDIVISION

CASE # PLN19-0039

05
/20

/20
19

07
/26

/20
19



DA
TE

:

1120 Lincoln Street, Suite 1000

Denver, Colorado 80203

P: 303.623.6300  F: 303.623.6311

HarrisKocherSmith.com

R

Know what's below.

Call before you dig.

CALL 3 BUSINESS DAYS IN ADVANCE BEFORE YOU DIG, GRADE,

OR EXCAVATE FOR THE MARKING OF UNDERGROUND MEMBER

UTILITIES.

03
/18

/20
19

03
/18

/20
19

DA
TE

:

.

ST
 M

AR
K 

VI
LL

AG
E

OF
FI

CI
AL

 D
EV

EL
OP

EM
EN

T 
PL

AN

A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT IN THE
CITY OF WESTMINSTER, COUNTY OF

ADAMS, STATE OF COLORADO
SHEET 5 OF 37

THIRD AMENDED OFFICIAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN
LOTS 11, 12, 45, 46, 47 AND 48
HOLLYHURST SUBDIVISION

CASE # PLN19-0039

05
/20

/20
19

07
/26

/20
19



15

8

2020

9

14

8

8

10

9

10

20

20
25

23

6 8

DS
DS

DS
DS

DS

DS
DS

DS

DS DS DS

DS

DSDSDSDS

DS DS DS DS DS

DS

DS DS DS

DS

DS
DS

DS
DS

DS

DS

DS
DS

DS

DS

DS DS DS DS DS

DS

DS DS DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS DS DS DS DS

DS

DS
DSDS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS
DS

DS

DS

DS

DSDSDS

DS

DS DS DS DS

DS

DS

DS

DS
DS

6

2

9
6

3

11

17

1120 Lincoln Street, Suite 1000

Denver, Colorado 80203

P: 303.623.6300  F: 303.623.6311

HarrisKocherSmith.com

0

SCALE: 1" =

80 80 160

80'

03
/18

/20
19

DA
TE

:

03
/18

/20
19

A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT IN THE
CITY OF WESTMINSTER, COUNTY OF

ADAMS, STATE OF COLORADO
SHEET 6 OF 37

THIRD AMENDED OFFICIAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN
LOTS 11, 12, 45, 46, 47 AND 48
HOLLYHURST SUBDIVISION

CASE # PLN19-0039

05
/20

/20
19

ST
 M

AR
K 

VI
LL

AG
E

OF
FI

CI
AL

 D
EV

EL
OP

EM
EN

T 
PL

AN
07

/26
/20

19



15

8

2020

9

14

8

8

10

10

DS

DS

DS

DS DS DS DS DS

DS

DS DS DS

DS

DS
DS

DS
DS

DS

DS

DS
DS

DS

DS

DS DS DS DS DS

DS

DS DS DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS
DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS
DS

2

9
6

XFMR
XFMR

XFMR

RESERVED
PARKING

R7-8
(12"x18")

RESERVED
PARKING

VAN
ACCESSIBLE

R7-8
(12"x18")

R7-8a
(12"x6")

1120 Lincoln Street, Suite 1000

Denver, Colorado 80203

P: 303.623.6300  F: 303.623.6311

HarrisKocherSmith.com

0

SCALE: 1" =

30 30 60

30'

M
A

T
C

H
L
I
N

E
 
-
 
S

E
E

 
S

H
E

E
T

 
 
9

MATCHLINE - SEE SHEET 8

KEY MAP
SCALE: 1" = 400'

03
/18

/20
19

DA
TE

:

03
/18

/20
19

A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT IN THE
CITY OF WESTMINSTER, COUNTY OF

ADAMS, STATE OF COLORADO
SHEET 7 OF 37

THIRD AMENDED OFFICIAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN
LOTS 11, 12, 45, 46, 47 AND 48
HOLLYHURST SUBDIVISION

CASE # PLN19-0039

05
/20

/20
19

ST
 M

AR
K 

VI
LL

AG
E

OF
FI

CI
AL

 D
EV

EL
OP

EM
EN

T 
PL

AN
07

/26
/20

19



2020
10

9

6
8

DS
DS

DS

DS
DS

DS

DS DS DS

DS

DSDSDSDS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DSDSDS

DS

DS DS DS DS

3

11

17

XFMR

XFMR

A

A

B

B

RESERVED
PARKING

R7-8
(12"x18")

RESERVED
PARKING

R7-8
(12"x18")

RESERVED
PARKING

R7-8
(12"x18")

1120 Lincoln Street, Suite 1000

Denver, Colorado 80203

P: 303.623.6300  F: 303.623.6311

HarrisKocherSmith.com

0

SCALE: 1" =

30 30 60

30'

MATCHLINE - SEE SHEET  7

KEY MAP
SCALE: 1" = 400'

03
/18

/20
19

DA
TE

:

03
/18

/20
19

A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT IN THE
CITY OF WESTMINSTER, COUNTY OF

ADAMS, STATE OF COLORADO
SHEET 8 OF 37

THIRD AMENDED OFFICIAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN
LOTS 11, 12, 45, 46, 47 AND 48
HOLLYHURST SUBDIVISION

CASE # PLN19-0039

05
/20

/20
19

ST
 M

AR
K 

VI
LL

AG
E

OF
FI

CI
AL

 D
EV

EL
OP

EM
EN

T 
PL

AN
07

/26
/20

19



20

20
25

23

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS DS DS DS DS

DS

DS
DSDS

DS

DS

DS

6

XFMR XFMR

RESERVED
PARKING

R7-8
(12"x18")

RESERVED
PARKING

VAN
ACCESSIBLE

R7-8
(12"x18")

R7-8a
(12"x6")

C

C

1120 Lincoln Street, Suite 1000

Denver, Colorado 80203

P: 303.623.6300  F: 303.623.6311

HarrisKocherSmith.com

0

SCALE: 1" =

30 30 60

30'

M
A

T
C

H
L

I
N

E
 
-
 
S

E
E

 
S

H
E

E
T

 
 
7

KEY MAP
SCALE: 1" = 400'

03
/18

/20
19

DA
TE

:

03
/18

/20
19

A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT IN THE
CITY OF WESTMINSTER, COUNTY OF

ADAMS, STATE OF COLORADO
SHEET 9 OF 37

THIRD AMENDED OFFICIAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN
LOTS 11, 12, 45, 46, 47 AND 48
HOLLYHURST SUBDIVISION

CASE # PLN19-0039

05
/20

/20
19

ST
 M

AR
K 

VI
LL

AG
E

OF
FI

CI
AL

 D
EV

EL
OP

EM
EN

T 
PL

AN
07

/26
/20

19

*REFER TO MANUAL ON UNIFORM TRAFFIC CONTROL
DEVICES (MUTCD) FIGURE 3B.22 INTERNATIONAL SYMBOL
OF ACCESSIBILITY PARKING SPACE MARKING FOR
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

Figure 3B-22. International Symbol of
Accessibility Parking Space Marking

Height of symbol:
Minimum = 28 inches
Special = 41 inches

Width of symbol:
Minimum = 24 inches
Special = 36 inches

*

Stroke width:
Minimum = 3 inches
Special = 4 inches

*



DS

DS

DS

DS DS DS DS DS

DS

DS DS DS

DS

DS
DS

DS
DS

DS

DS

DS
DS

DS

DS

DS DS DS DS DS

DS

DS DS DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS
DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

XFMR
XFMR

XFMR

1120 Lincoln Street, Suite 1000

Denver, Colorado 80203

P: 303.623.6300  F: 303.623.6311

HarrisKocherSmith.com

0

SCALE: 1" =

30 30 60

30'

MATCHLINE - SEE SHEET 11

MA
TC

HL
IN

E 
- S

EE
 S

HE
ET

 12

KEY MAP
SCALE: 1" = 400'

03
/18

/20
19

DA
TE

:

03
/18

/20
19

A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT IN THE
CITY OF WESTMINSTER, COUNTY OF

ADAMS, STATE OF COLORADO
SHEET 10 OF 37

THIRD AMENDED OFFICIAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN
LOTS 11, 12, 45, 46, 47 AND 48
HOLLYHURST SUBDIVISION

CASE # PLN19-0039

05
/20

/20
19

ST
 M

AR
K 

VI
LL

AG
E

OF
FI

CI
AL

 D
EV

EL
OP

EM
EN

T 
PL

AN
07

/26
/20

19



DS
DS

DS

DS
DS

DS

DS DS DS

DS

DSDSDSDS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DSDSDS

DS

DS DS DS DS

XFMR

XFMR

1120 Lincoln Street, Suite 1000

Denver, Colorado 80203

P: 303.623.6300  F: 303.623.6311

HarrisKocherSmith.com

0

SCALE: 1" =

30 30 60

30'

MATCHLINE - SEE SHEET 10

KEY MAP
SCALE: 1" = 400'

03
/18

/20
19

DA
TE

:

03
/18

/20
19

A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT IN THE
CITY OF WESTMINSTER, COUNTY OF

ADAMS, STATE OF COLORADO
SHEET 11 OF 37

THIRD AMENDED OFFICIAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN
LOTS 11, 12, 45, 46, 47 AND 48
HOLLYHURST SUBDIVISION

CASE # PLN19-0039

05
/20

/20
19

ST
 M

AR
K 

VI
LL

AG
E

OF
FI

CI
AL

 D
EV

EL
OP

EM
EN

T 
PL

AN
07

/26
/20

19



DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS DS DS DS DS

DS

DS
DSDS

DS

DS

DS

XFMR XFMR

1120 Lincoln Street, Suite 1000

Denver, Colorado 80203

P: 303.623.6300  F: 303.623.6311

HarrisKocherSmith.com

0

SCALE: 1" =

30 30 60

30'

MA
TC

HL
IN

E 
- S

EE
 S

HE
ET

 10
KEY MAP

SCALE: 1" = 400'

03
/18

/20
19

DA
TE

:

03
/18

/20
19

A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT IN THE
CITY OF WESTMINSTER, COUNTY OF

ADAMS, STATE OF COLORADO
SHEET 12 OF 37

THIRD AMENDED OFFICIAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN
LOTS 11, 12, 45, 46, 47 AND 48
HOLLYHURST SUBDIVISION

CASE # PLN19-0039

05
/20

/20
19

ST
 M

AR
K 

VI
LL

AG
E

OF
FI

CI
AL

 D
EV

EL
OP

EM
EN

T 
PL

AN
07

/26
/20

19



DS

DS

DS

DS DS DS DS DS

DS

DS DS DS

DS

DS
DS

DS
DS

DS

DS

DS
DS

DS

DS

DS DS DS DS DS

DS

DS DS DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS
DS

DS

DS
DS

DS

DS
DS

XFMR
XFMR

XFMR

1120 Lincoln Street, Suite 1000

Denver, Colorado 80203

P: 303.623.6300  F: 303.623.6311

HarrisKocherSmith.com

0

SCALE: 1" =

30 30 60

30'

MATCHLINE - SEE SHEET 14

MA
TC

HL
IN

E 
- S

EE
 S

HE
ET

 15

KEY MAP
SCALE: 1" = 400'

03
/18

/20
19

DA
TE

:

03
/18

/20
19

A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT IN THE
CITY OF WESTMINSTER, COUNTY OF

ADAMS, STATE OF COLORADO
SHEET 13 OF 37

THIRD AMENDED OFFICIAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN
LOTS 11, 12, 45, 46, 47 AND 48
HOLLYHURST SUBDIVISION

CASE # PLN19-0039

05
/20

/20
19

ST
 M

AR
K 

VI
LL

AG
E

OF
FI

CI
AL

 D
EV

EL
OP

EM
EN

T 
PL

AN
07

/26
/20

19



DS
DS

DS

DS
DS

DS

DS DS DS

DS

DSDSDSDS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DSDSDS

DS

DS DS DS DS

XFMR

XFMR

1120 Lincoln Street, Suite 1000

Denver, Colorado 80203

P: 303.623.6300  F: 303.623.6311

HarrisKocherSmith.com

0

SCALE: 1" =

30 30 60

30'

MATCHLINE - SEE SHEET 13

KEY MAP
SCALE: 1" = 400'

03
/18

/20
19

DA
TE

:

03
/18

/20
19

A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT IN THE
CITY OF WESTMINSTER, COUNTY OF

ADAMS, STATE OF COLORADO
SHEET 14 OF 37

THIRD AMENDED OFFICIAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN
LOTS 11, 12, 45, 46, 47 AND 48
HOLLYHURST SUBDIVISION

CASE # PLN19-0039

05
/20

/20
19

ST
 M

AR
K 

VI
LL

AG
E

OF
FI

CI
AL

 D
EV

EL
OP

EM
EN

T 
PL

AN
07

/26
/20

19



DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS DS DS DS DS

DS

DS
DSDS

DS

DS

DS

XFMR XFMR

1120 Lincoln Street, Suite 1000

Denver, Colorado 80203

P: 303.623.6300  F: 303.623.6311

HarrisKocherSmith.com

0

SCALE: 1" =

30 30 60

30'

MA
TC

HL
IN

E 
- S

EE
 S

HE
ET

 13
KEY MAP

SCALE: 1" = 400'

03
/18

/20
19

DA
TE

:

03
/18

/20
19

A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT IN THE
CITY OF WESTMINSTER, COUNTY OF

ADAMS, STATE OF COLORADO
SHEET 15 OF 37

THIRD AMENDED OFFICIAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN
LOTS 11, 12, 45, 46, 47 AND 48
HOLLYHURST SUBDIVISION

CASE # PLN19-0039

05
/20

/20
19

ST
 M

AR
K 

VI
LL

AG
E

OF
FI

CI
AL

 D
EV

EL
OP

EM
EN

T 
PL

AN
07

/26
/20

19



LANDSCAPING

STREET TREE PLANTING: REQUIRED PROVIDED/COMMENTS

97TH STREET
1 TREE + 3 SHRUBS / 550 SF OF ROW AREA =  
2,745  SF -  5 TREES + 15 SHRUBS

10 TREES PROVIDED IN LIEU OF SHRUBS

FEDERAL BLVD.
1 TREE + 3 SHRUBS / 550 SF OF ROW AREA =  
1,837  SF -  3 TREES + 9 SHRUBS

4 TREES + 9 SHRUBS PROVIDED

MINIMUM PLANT SIZES: REQUIRED PROVIDED/COMMENTS
1 TREE + 3 SHRUBS / 550 SF OF LANDSCAPE 
AREA =  50,329 SF -  92 TREES + 275 SHRUBS

173 TREES + 1315 SHRUBS

DECIDUOUS TREES
2" CAL. (NOT MORE THAN 20% OF EACH 
SPECIES)

2" CAL. = 33 TREES PROVIDED

DECIDUOUS TREES
3" CAL - 20% OF REQ. # OF DEC. TREES  -  18 
TREES

3" CAL = 19 TREES PROVIDED             
(21% or min.req.)

EVERGREEN TREES
6' HT. (MORE THAN 1/3 OF TOTAL AMT. OF 
TREES) = 57 TREES

6' HT - 65 PROVIDED (35%)

EVERGREEN TREES
8' HT (MUST HAVE 20% OF REQ # OF TREES) - 
10 TREES

8' HT - 10 PROVIDED (20%)

ORNAMENTAL TREES
2" CAL - NOT MORE THAN 1/3 OF TOTAL # OF 
TREES - 61 TREES

46 PROVIDED (30%)

SHRUBS 5 GALLON CONTAINERS 1315 PROVIDED

LANDSCAPE REQUIREMENTS:  07/31/19

TOTAL SITE:  261,565 SF
OVERALL SITE:

 3 0















SYMBOL QTY BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME SIZE HT. WIDTH

BO 8 Quercus macrocarpa Burr Oak 3" CAL. 50' 40'
HB 11 Celtis occidentalis Hackberry 3" CAL. 50' 35'
KC 6 Gymnocladus dioicus Kentucky Coffeetree 2.5" CAL. 50' 40'
SHL 14 Gleditsia triacanthos var. inermis 'Shademaster' Shademaster Honeylocust 2.5" CAL. 40' 30'
SM 8 Acer saccharum 'Green Mountain' Green Mountain Sugar Maple 2.5" CAL. 40' 20'
WC 5 Catalpa speciosa Northern Catalpa 2.5" CAL. 40' 30'
TOTAL: 52

CBS 10 Picea pungens 'Baby Blue Eyes' Baby Blue Eyes Spruce 8' HT. 25' 10'
PP 8 Pinus edulis Pinyon Pine 6' HT. 25' 10'
WBJ 57 Juniperus scopulorum `Wichita Blue` Wichita Blue Juniper 6' HT. 15' 4'
TOTAL: 75

ABP 2 Pyrus calleryana 'Autumn Blaze' Autumn Blaze Pear 2" CAL. 25' 20'
ABS 15 Amelanchier x grandiflora'Autumn Brilliance' Autumn Brilliance Serviceberry 2" CAL. 20' 15'
FAM 4 Acer ginnala 'Flame' Flame Amur Maple 2" CAL. 15' 15'
PEH 11 Carpinus betulus 'Fastigiata' Pyramidal European Hornbeam 2" CAL. 25' 10'
RP 14 Pyrus calleryana 'Redspire' Redspire Pear 2" CAL. 30' 20'
TOTAL: 46

AC 33 Ribes alpinum Alpine Currant 5 gallon
AYJ 36 Juniperus horizontalis 'Youngstonwn' Andorra Youngstown Juniper 5 gallon
BMS 13 Caryopteris x clandonensis 'Dark Knight' Dark Knight Spirea 5 gallon
CWSC 100 Prunus besseyi Pawnee Buttes Creeping Western Sand Cherry 5 gallon
DBRB 38 Chrysothamnus nausoesus nauseosus Dwarf Blue Rabbitbrush 5 gallon
DKL 160 Syringa meyeri 'Palibin' Dwarf Korean Lilac 5 gallon
DN 24 Physocarpus opulifolius 'Nanus' Dwarf Ninebark 5 gallon
EGE 26 Euonymus fortunei 'Emerald Gaiety' Emerald Gaiety Wintercreeper 5 gallon
FCBS 62 Caaryopteris x clandonensis 'First Choice' First Choice Blue Spirea 5 gallon
FCCR 21 Rosa FLower Carpet Coral Flower Carpet Coral Rose 5 gallon
IHD 47 Cornus alba 'Bailhalo' Ivory Halo Dogwood 5 gallon
LDP 128 Ligustrum vulgare 'Lodense' Lodense Privet 5 gallon
LMS 62 Spiraea x bumalda 'Monhub' LimemoundÆ Spirea 5 gallon
MSB 3 Symphoricarpos x doorenbosii 'Marlene' Marlene Snowberry 5 gallon
MWW 21 Weigela florida 'Elvera' Midnight Wine Weigela 5 gallon
PBB 62 Buddleja davidii nanhoensis `Petite Plum` Compact Purple Butterfly Bush 5 gallon
RGB 79 Berberis thunbergii 'Rose Glow' Rose Glow Japanese Barberry 5 gallon
RKOR 152 Rosa x 'Radcor' Rainbow Knock Out Rose 5 gallon
SC 89 Cotoneaster divaricatus Spreading Cotoneaster 5 gallon
TLS 31 Rhus trilobata Three-Leaf Sumac 5 gallon
WSR 101 Rosa Meidiland White White Meidiland Landscape Rose 5 gallon
TOTAL: 1315

DFG 100 Pennisetum alopecuroides 'Hameln' Dwarf Fountain Grass 1 gallon
FRG 11 Calamagrostis x acutiflora `Karl Foerster` Foerster Feather Reed Grass 1 gallon
MG 69 Miscanthus sinensis 'Morning Light' Morning Light Maiden Grass 1 gallon
VFRG 151 Calamagrostis x acutiflora `Overdam` Overdam Feather Reed Grass 1 gallon
TOTAL: 328

BC 18 Geranium x cantabrigiense 'Biokovo' Biokovo Cranesbill 1 gallon
CSD 7 Leucanthemum x superbum 'Silver Princess' Compact Shasta Daisy 1 gallon
TOTAL: 25

PLANT LIST:  07/31/19

SHADE TREES

SHRUBS

EVERGREEN TREES

PERENNIALS

ORNAMENTAL TREES

ORNAMENTAL GRASSES

AREA:
 QUANTITY 

(SF) 
5 CY/     

1000 SF
1 CY/     

1000 SF
TOTAL CY

FESCUE BLEND SOD 12,024           1,202 x 5 60.1            
RAIN GARDEN SEED 6,711              671 x 1 6.7               
LOW SHRUB BEDS 31,594            3,159  x 1 31.6            

TOTAL AMOUNT: 50,329.00      98.4            

SOIL AMENDMENT REQUIREMENTS: 07/31/19

NOTE:  APPLY BIOSOL MIX 7-2-3 OR APPROVED EQUAL AT THE RATE OF 25 LBS./1000 SF MIXED 
WITH MENEFEE GRANULAR HUMATE OR APPROVED EQUAL AT THE RATE OF 5 LBS./1000 A.F. TO 
SEED MIX AREAS.

SYMBOL QTY BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME SIZE HT. WIDTH

BO 8 Quercus macrocarpa Burr Oak 3" CAL. 50' 40'
HB 11 Celtis occidentalis Hackberry 3" CAL. 50' 35'
KC 6 Gymnocladus dioicus Kentucky Coffeetree 2.5" CAL. 50' 40'
SHL 14 Gleditsia triacanthos var. inermis 'Shademaster' Shademaster Honeylocust 2.5" CAL. 40' 30'
SM 8 Acer saccharum 'Green Mountain' Green Mountain Sugar Maple 2.5" CAL. 40' 20'
WC 5 Catalpa speciosa Northern Catalpa 2.5" CAL. 40' 30'
TOTAL: 52

CBS 10 Picea pungens 'Baby Blue Eyes' Baby Blue Eyes Spruce 8' HT. 25' 10'
PP 8 Pinus edulis Pinyon Pine 6' HT. 25' 10'
WBJ 57 Juniperus scopulorum `Wichita Blue` Wichita Blue Juniper 6' HT. 15' 4'
TOTAL: 75

ABP 2 Pyrus calleryana 'Autumn Blaze' Autumn Blaze Pear 2" CAL. 25' 20'
ABS 15 Amelanchier x grandiflora'Autumn Brilliance' Autumn Brilliance Serviceberry 2" CAL. 20' 15'
FAM 4 Acer ginnala 'Flame' Flame Amur Maple 2" CAL. 15' 15'
PEH 11 Carpinus betulus 'Fastigiata' Pyramidal European Hornbeam 2" CAL. 25' 10'
RP 14 Pyrus calleryana 'Redspire' Redspire Pear 2" CAL. 30' 20'
TOTAL: 46

AC 33 Ribes alpinum Alpine Currant 5 gallon
AYJ 36 Juniperus horizontalis 'Youngstonwn' Andorra Youngstown Juniper 5 gallon
BMS 13 Caryopteris x clandonensis 'Dark Knight' Dark Knight Spirea 5 gallon
CWSC 100 Prunus besseyi Pawnee Buttes Creeping Western Sand Cherry 5 gallon
DBRB 38 Chrysothamnus nausoesus nauseosus Dwarf Blue Rabbitbrush 5 gallon
DKL 160 Syringa meyeri 'Palibin' Dwarf Korean Lilac 5 gallon
DN 24 Physocarpus opulifolius 'Nanus' Dwarf Ninebark 5 gallon
EGE 26 Euonymus fortunei 'Emerald Gaiety' Emerald Gaiety Wintercreeper 5 gallon
FCBS 62 Caaryopteris x clandonensis 'First Choice' First Choice Blue Spirea 5 gallon
FCCR 21 Rosa FLower Carpet Coral Flower Carpet Coral Rose 5 gallon
IHD 47 Cornus alba 'Bailhalo' Ivory Halo Dogwood 5 gallon
LDP 128 Ligustrum vulgare 'Lodense' Lodense Privet 5 gallon
LMS 62 Spiraea x bumalda 'Monhub' LimemoundÆ Spirea 5 gallon
MSB 3 Symphoricarpos x doorenbosii 'Marlene' Marlene Snowberry 5 gallon
MWW 21 Weigela florida 'Elvera' Midnight Wine Weigela 5 gallon
PBB 62 Buddleja davidii nanhoensis `Petite Plum` Compact Purple Butterfly Bush 5 gallon
RGB 79 Berberis thunbergii 'Rose Glow' Rose Glow Japanese Barberry 5 gallon
RKOR 152 Rosa x 'Radcor' Rainbow Knock Out Rose 5 gallon
SC 89 Cotoneaster divaricatus Spreading Cotoneaster 5 gallon
TLS 31 Rhus trilobata Three-Leaf Sumac 5 gallon
WSR 101 Rosa Meidiland White White Meidiland Landscape Rose 5 gallon
TOTAL: 1315

DFG 100 Pennisetum alopecuroides 'Hameln' Dwarf Fountain Grass 1 gallon
FRG 11 Calamagrostis x acutiflora `Karl Foerster` Foerster Feather Reed Grass 1 gallon
MG 69 Miscanthus sinensis 'Morning Light' Morning Light Maiden Grass 1 gallon
VFRG 151 Calamagrostis x acutiflora `Overdam` Overdam Feather Reed Grass 1 gallon
TOTAL: 328

BC 18 Geranium x cantabrigiense 'Biokovo' Biokovo Cranesbill 1 gallon
CSD 7 Leucanthemum x superbum 'Silver Princess' Compact Shasta Daisy 1 gallon
TOTAL: 25

PLANT LIST:  07/31/19

SHADE TREES

SHRUBS

EVERGREEN TREES

PERENNIALS

ORNAMENTAL TREES

ORNAMENTAL GRASSES

COMMON NAME SCIENTIFIC NAME VARIETY
PLS lbs per 

Acre
Ounced per 

Acre
Percent of 

Mix
Sand bluestem Andropogon hallii Garden 3.0 6
Sideoats grama Bouteloua curtipendula Butte 3.0 6
Prairie sandreed Calamovilfa longifolia Goshen 3.0 6
Indian ricegrass Oryzopsis hymenoides Paloma 3.0 6
Switchgrass Panicum virgatum Blackwell 4.0 8
Western wheatgrass Pascopyrum smithii Ariba 3.0 6
Little bluestem Schizachyrium scoparium Patura 3.0 6
Alkali sacaton Sporobolus airoides 3.0 6
Sand dropseed Sporobolus cryptandrus 3.0 6
Pasture sage Artemisia frigida 2 4
Blue aster Aster laevis 4 8
Blanket flower Gaillardia aristata 6 12
Prairie coneflower Ratibida columnifera 7 14
Purple prairieclover (opt)  Dalea (Petalostemon) purpurea 3 6

Sub-Totals: 27.0 22 100
Total lbs per acre: 28.9

URBAN DRAINAGE NATIVE SEED MIX FOR RAIN GARDENS

*PLS = Pure Live Seed





QUANTITY (SF) TOTAL SF GALLON/SF/YEAR
HIGH WATER AREAS @ 18 GAL/SF 12,024                       216,432                    

TURF 12,024                       

LOW WATER AREAS @ 3 GAL/SF 38,305                       114,915                    
RAIN GARDEN  SEED 6,711                          
LOW SHRUB BEDS 31,594                        

TOTAL USAGE: 50,329                       331,347                    
6.6AVERAGE WATER USE/SF/YEAR OF PERMANENT IRRIGATION AREA

HYDROZONE LEGEND: 07/30/19

HYDROZONE AREA:



T.O.C. LEVEL 1

T.O.S. LEVEL 2

T.O.S. LEVEL 3

T.O.P. LEVEL 3

T.O. PARAPET

T.O. RIDGE

4
5
'-4

"

5 832 7154

T.O.C. LEVEL 1

T.O.S. LEVEL 2

T.O.S. LEVEL 3

T.O.P. LEVEL 3

T.O. PARAPET

T.O. RIDGE

4
5
'-4

"

584 3 1822

STONE - COLOR 1

ELEVATION LEGEND

FIBER CEMENT PANEL - COLOR 1

LAP SIDING - COLOR 1

ASPHALT ROOF TILES

BOARD AND BATTEN - COLOR 1

ELEVATION NOTES

1. ALL CONDENSERS WILL BE ROOF MOUNTED, AS ALLOWED BY 
CODE, AND WILL BE SCREENED FROM VIEW.

KTGY -  ARCHITECTURE + PLANNING
820 16TH STREET, SUITE 500
DENVER, CO. 80202
(303) 825-6400
CONTACT: Project Manager
ktgy@ktgy.com

SCALE:

1/16" = 1'-0" 1BLDG 3 WEST ELEVATION & BLDGS 4, 6, 7
NORTH ELEVATION

SCALE:

1/16" = 1'-0" 2BLDG 3 NORTH ELEVATION & BLDGS 4, 6, 7
EAST ELEVATION SITE KEY PLAN

12

3

4
C

6 7
8

# KEYNOTES - SDP

1 STONE - COLOR 1

2 FIBER CEMENT PANELING - COLOR 1

3 FIBER CEMENT LAP SIDING (VARIED EXPOSURE ) -COLOR 1

4 BOARD AND BATTEN - PAINT COLOR 2

5 ASPHALT ROOF SHINGLES

6 FIBER CEMENT BOARD FASCIA, EAVES, PARAPET

7 METAL HANDRAIL

8 VINYL WINDOW

9 BUILDING ENTRY

10 WATER ENTRY/BOOSTER PUMP CLOSET

11 EXTERIOR WALL MOUNT LIGHT SCONCE

12 STOREFRONT

14 DOWNSPOUT

15 PAINTED WOOD BRACKETS

16 MAILBOXES

17 GAS METER, PAINT TO MATCH ADJACENT ELEVATION

18 ELECTRIC METERS, PAINT TO MATCH ADJACENT ELEVATION

19 CAST STONE - MATCH STONE COLOR

20 OPAQUE METAL GATE, PAINT TO MATCH RAILINGS

21 METAL GATE

22 WALL MOUNT LOW VOLT CABINETS, PAINT TO MATCH ADJACENT
ELEVATION

1

03
/18

/20
19

DA
TE

:

03
/18

/20
19

A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT IN THE
CITY OF WESTMINSTER, COUNTY OF

ADAMS, STATE OF COLORADO
SHEET 9 OF 37

THIRD AMENDED OFFICIAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN
LOTS 11, 12, 45, 46, 47 AND 48
HOLLYHURST SUBDIVISION

CASE # PLN19-0039

05
/20

/20
19

ST
 M

AR
K 

VI
LL

AG
E

OF
FI

CI
AL

 D
EV

EL
OP

EM
EN

T 
PL

AN
07

/26
/20

19

259 26 9 79 8 SHEET 26 OF 38

26 OF 37
BUILDING A -
ELEVATIONS

SHEET 26 OF 37



T.O.C. LEVEL 1

T.O.S. LEVEL 2

T.O.S. LEVEL 3

T.O.P. LEVEL 3

T.O. PARAPET

T.O. RIDGE

4
5
'-4

"

5 83 92 7154

T.O.C. LEVEL 1

T.O.S. LEVEL 2

T.O.S. LEVEL 3

T.O.P. LEVEL 3

T.O. PARAPET

T.O. RIDGE

4
5
'-4

"

8310 4517

STONE - COLOR 1

ELEVATION LEGEND

FIBER CEMENT PANEL - COLOR 1

LAP SIDING - COLOR 1

ASPHALT ROOF TILES

BOARD AND BATTEN - COLOR 1

ELEVATION NOTES

1. ALL CONDENSERS WILL BE ROOF MOUNTED, AS ALLOWED BY 
CODE, AND WILL BE SCREENED FROM VIEW.

KTGY -  ARCHITECTURE + PLANNING
820 16TH STREET, SUITE 500
DENVER, CO. 80202
(303) 825-6400
CONTACT: Project Manager
ktgy@ktgy.com

SCALE:

1/16" = 1'-0" 1BLDG 3 EAST ELEVATION & BLDGS 4, 6, 7
SOUTH ELEVATION

SCALE:

1/16" = 1'-0" 2BLDG 3 SOUTH ELEVATION & BLDGS 4, 6, 7
WEST ELEVATION SITE KEY PLAN

12

3

4
C

6 7
8

# KEYNOTES - SDP

1 STONE - COLOR 1

2 FIBER CEMENT PANELING - COLOR 1

3 FIBER CEMENT LAP SIDING (VARIED EXPOSURE ) -COLOR 1

4 BOARD AND BATTEN - PAINT COLOR 2

5 ASPHALT ROOF SHINGLES

6 FIBER CEMENT BOARD FASCIA, EAVES, PARAPET

7 METAL HANDRAIL

8 VINYL WINDOW

9 BUILDING ENTRY

10 WATER ENTRY/BOOSTER PUMP CLOSET

11 EXTERIOR WALL MOUNT LIGHT SCONCE

12 STOREFRONT

14 DOWNSPOUT

15 PAINTED WOOD BRACKETS

16 MAILBOXES

17 GAS METER, PAINT TO MATCH ADJACENT ELEVATION

18 ELECTRIC METERS, PAINT TO MATCH ADJACENT ELEVATION

19 CAST STONE - MATCH STONE COLOR

20 OPAQUE METAL GATE, PAINT TO MATCH RAILINGS

21 METAL GATE

22 WALL MOUNT LOW VOLT CABINETS, PAINT TO MATCH ADJACENT
ELEVATION

1

03
/18

/20
19

DA
TE

:

03
/18

/20
19

A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT IN THE
CITY OF WESTMINSTER, COUNTY OF

ADAMS, STATE OF COLORADO
SHEET 9 OF 37

THIRD AMENDED OFFICIAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN
LOTS 11, 12, 45, 46, 47 AND 48
HOLLYHURST SUBDIVISION

CASE # PLN19-0039

05
/20

/20
19

ST
 M

AR
K 

VI
LL

AG
E

OF
FI

CI
AL

 D
EV

EL
OP

EM
EN

T 
PL

AN
07

/26
/20

19

267 9 79 8 SHEET 27 OF 38

27 OF 37
BUILDING A -
ELEVATIONS

SHEET 27 OF 37



STONE - COLOR 1

ELEVATION LEGEND

FIBER CEMENT PANEL - COLOR 1

LAP SIDING - COLOR 1

ASPHALT ROOF TILES

BOARD AND BATTEN - COLOR 1

ELEVATION NOTES

1. ALL CONDENSERS WILL BE ROOF MOUNTED, AS ALLOWED BY 
CODE, AND WILL BE SCREENED FROM VIEW.

T.O.C. LEVEL 1

T.O.S. LEVEL 2

T.O.S. LEVEL 3

T.O.P. LEVEL 3

T.O. PARAPET

T.O. RIDGE

4
5
'-4

"

58 3 27 154

T.O.C. LEVEL 1

T.O.S. LEVEL 2

T.O.S. LEVEL 3

T.O.P. LEVEL 3

T.O. PARAPET

T.O. RIDGE

4
5
'-4

"

5 839 2 715 4 1

KTGY -  ARCHITECTURE + PLANNING
820 16TH STREET, SUITE 500
DENVER, CO. 80202
(303) 825-6400
CONTACT: Project Manager
ktgy@ktgy.com

KEYNOTES - SDP

1 STONE - COLOR 1

2 FIBER CEMENT PANELING - COLOR 1

3 FIBER CEMENT LAP SIDING (VARIED EXPOSURE ) -COLOR 1

4 BOARD AND BATTEN - PAINT COLOR 2

5 ASPHALT ROOF SHINGLES

6 FIBER CEMENT BOARD FASCIA, EAVES, PARAPET

7 METAL HANDRAIL

8 VINYL WINDOW

9 BUILDING ENTRY

10 WATER ENTRY/BOOSTER PUMP CLOSET

11 EXTERIOR WALL MOUNT LIGHT SCONCE

12 STOREFRONT

14 DOWNSPOUT

15 PAINTED WOOD BRACKETS

16 MAILBOXES

17 GAS METER, PAINT TO MATCH ADJACENT ELEVATION

18 ELECTRIC METERS, PAINT TO MATCH ADJACENT ELEVATION

19 CAST STONE - MATCH STONE COLOR

20 OPAQUE METAL GATE, PAINT TO MATCH RAILINGS

21 METAL GATE

22 WALL MOUNT LOW VOLT CABINETS, PAINT TO MATCH ADJACENT
ELEVATION

SCALE:

1/16" = 1'-0" 1BLDG 8 SOUTH ELEVATION 1

SCALE:

1/16" = 1'-0" 2BLDG 8 SOUTH ELEVATION 2 SITE KEY PLAN

12

3

4
C

6 7
8

#

1

03
/18

/20
19

DA
TE

:

03
/18

/20
19

A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT IN THE
CITY OF WESTMINSTER, COUNTY OF

ADAMS, STATE OF COLORADO
SHEET 9 OF 37

THIRD AMENDED OFFICIAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN
LOTS 11, 12, 45, 46, 47 AND 48
HOLLYHURST SUBDIVISION

CASE # PLN19-0039

05
/20

/20
19

ST
 M

AR
K 

VI
LL

AG
E

OF
FI

CI
AL

 D
EV

EL
OP

EM
EN

T 
PL

AN
07

/26
/20

19

279 8 9 79 8 SHEET 28 OF 38

28 OF 37
BUILDING B -
ELEVATIONS

SHEET 28 OF 37



T.O.C. LEVEL 1

T.O.S. LEVEL 2

T.O.S. LEVEL 3

T.O.P. LEVEL 3

T.O. PARAPET

T.O. RIDGE

4
5
'-4

"

583 10 418 22

STONE - COLOR 1

ELEVATION LEGEND

FIBER CEMENT PANEL - COLOR 1

LAP SIDING - COLOR 1

ASPHALT ROOF TILES

BOARD AND BATTEN - COLOR 1

ELEVATION NOTES

1. ALL CONDENSERS WILL BE ROOF MOUNTED, AS ALLOWED BY 
CODE, AND WILL BE SCREENED FROM VIEW.

T.O.C. LEVEL 1

T.O.S. LEVEL 2

T.O.S. LEVEL 3

T.O.P. LEVEL 3

T.O. PARAPET

T.O. RIDGE

4
5
'-4

"

5 8 3221 18

KTGY -  ARCHITECTURE + PLANNING
820 16TH STREET, SUITE 500
DENVER, CO. 80202
(303) 825-6400
CONTACT: Project Manager
ktgy@ktgy.com

SCALE:

1/16" = 1'-0" 2BLDG 8 WEST ELEVATION SITE KEY PLAN

12

3

4
C

6 7
8

# KEYNOTES - SDP

1 STONE - COLOR 1

2 FIBER CEMENT PANELING - COLOR 1

3 FIBER CEMENT LAP SIDING (VARIED EXPOSURE ) -COLOR 1

4 BOARD AND BATTEN - PAINT COLOR 2

5 ASPHALT ROOF SHINGLES

6 FIBER CEMENT BOARD FASCIA, EAVES, PARAPET

7 METAL HANDRAIL

8 VINYL WINDOW

9 BUILDING ENTRY

10 WATER ENTRY/BOOSTER PUMP CLOSET

11 EXTERIOR WALL MOUNT LIGHT SCONCE

12 STOREFRONT

14 DOWNSPOUT

15 PAINTED WOOD BRACKETS

16 MAILBOXES

17 GAS METER, PAINT TO MATCH ADJACENT ELEVATION

18 ELECTRIC METERS, PAINT TO MATCH ADJACENT ELEVATION

19 CAST STONE - MATCH STONE COLOR

20 OPAQUE METAL GATE, PAINT TO MATCH RAILINGS

21 METAL GATE

22 WALL MOUNT LOW VOLT CABINETS, PAINT TO MATCH ADJACENT
ELEVATION

SCALE:

1/16" = 1'-0" 1BLDG 8 EAST ELEVATION

1

03
/18

/20
19

DA
TE

:

03
/18

/20
19

A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT IN THE
CITY OF WESTMINSTER, COUNTY OF

ADAMS, STATE OF COLORADO
SHEET 9 OF 37

THIRD AMENDED OFFICIAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN
LOTS 11, 12, 45, 46, 47 AND 48
HOLLYHURST SUBDIVISION

CASE # PLN19-0039

05
/20

/20
19

ST
 M

AR
K 

VI
LL

AG
E

OF
FI

CI
AL

 D
EV

EL
OP

EM
EN

T 
PL

AN
07

/26
/20

19

289 O29 9 79 8 SHEET 29 OF 38

29 OF 37
BUILDING B -
ELEVATIONS

SHEET 29 OF 37



T.O.C. LEVEL 1

T.O.S. LEVEL 2

T.O.S. LEVEL 3

T.O.P. LEVEL 3

T.O. PARAPET

T.O. RIDGE

4
5
'-4

"

58 3 27 154

STONE - COLOR 1

ELEVATION LEGEND

FIBER CEMENT PANEL - COLOR 1

LAP SIDING - COLOR 1

ASPHALT ROOF TILES

BOARD AND BATTEN - COLOR 1

ELEVATION NOTES

1. ALL CONDENSERS WILL BE ROOF MOUNTED, AS ALLOWED BY 
CODE, AND WILL BE SCREENED FROM VIEW.

T.O.C. LEVEL 1

T.O.S. LEVEL 2

T.O.S. LEVEL 3

T.O.P. LEVEL 3

T.O. PARAPET

T.O. RIDGE

4
5
'-4

"

5 832 715 4

KTGY -  ARCHITECTURE + PLANNING
820 16TH STREET, SUITE 500
DENVER, CO. 80202
(303) 825-6400
CONTACT: Project Manager
ktgy@ktgy.com

SCALE:

1/16" = 1'-0" 2BLDG 8 NORTH ELEVATION 2 SITE KEY PLAN

12

3

4
C

6 7
8

# KEYNOTES - SDP

1 STONE - COLOR 1

2 FIBER CEMENT PANELING - COLOR 1

3 FIBER CEMENT LAP SIDING (VARIED EXPOSURE ) -COLOR 1

4 BOARD AND BATTEN - PAINT COLOR 2

5 ASPHALT ROOF SHINGLES

6 FIBER CEMENT BOARD FASCIA, EAVES, PARAPET

7 METAL HANDRAIL

8 VINYL WINDOW

9 BUILDING ENTRY

10 WATER ENTRY/BOOSTER PUMP CLOSET

11 EXTERIOR WALL MOUNT LIGHT SCONCE

12 STOREFRONT

14 DOWNSPOUT

15 PAINTED WOOD BRACKETS

16 MAILBOXES

17 GAS METER, PAINT TO MATCH ADJACENT ELEVATION

18 ELECTRIC METERS, PAINT TO MATCH ADJACENT ELEVATION

19 CAST STONE - MATCH STONE COLOR

20 OPAQUE METAL GATE, PAINT TO MATCH RAILINGS

21 METAL GATE

22 WALL MOUNT LOW VOLT CABINETS, PAINT TO MATCH ADJACENT
ELEVATION

SCALE:

1/16" = 1'-0" 1BLDG 8 NORTH ELEVATION 1

1

03
/18

/20
19

DA
TE

:

03
/18

/20
19

A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT IN THE
CITY OF WESTMINSTER, COUNTY OF

ADAMS, STATE OF COLORADO
SHEET 9 OF 37

THIRD AMENDED OFFICIAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN
LOTS 11, 12, 45, 46, 47 AND 48
HOLLYHURST SUBDIVISION

CASE # PLN19-0039

05
/20

/20
19

ST
 M

AR
K 

VI
LL

AG
E

OF
FI

CI
AL

 D
EV

EL
OP

EM
EN

T 
PL

AN
07

/26
/20

19

29T 9 O30 9 79 8 SHEET 30 OF 38

30 OF 37
BUILDING B -
ELEVATIONS

SHEET 30 OF 37



STONE - COLOR 1

ELEVATION LEGEND

FIBER CEMENT PANEL - COLOR 1

LAP SIDING - COLOR 1

ASPHALT ROOF TILES

BOARD AND BATTEN - COLOR 1

ELEVATION NOTES

1. ALL CONDENSERS WILL BE ROOF MOUNTED, AS ALLOWED BY 
CODE, AND WILL BE SCREENED FROM VIEW.

T.O.C. LEVEL 1

T.O.S. LEVEL 2

T.O.S. LEVEL 3

T.O.P. LEVEL 3

T.O. PARAPET

T.O. RIDGE

4
5
'-4

"

58 3 2715 41 1919 19

T.O.C. LEVEL 1

T.O.S. LEVEL 2

T.O.S. LEVEL 3

T.O.P. LEVEL 3

T.O. PARAPET

T.O. RIDGE

4
5
'-4

"

5 83 27 154 1 19

KTGY -  ARCHITECTURE + PLANNING
820 16TH STREET, SUITE 500
DENVER, CO. 80202
(303) 825-6400
CONTACT: Project Manager
ktgy@ktgy.com

SCALE:

1/16" = 1'-0" 2BLDGS 1, 2 SOUTH ELEVATION 2

KEYNOTES - SDP

1 STONE - COLOR 1

2 FIBER CEMENT PANELING - COLOR 1

3 FIBER CEMENT LAP SIDING (VARIED EXPOSURE ) -COLOR 1

4 BOARD AND BATTEN - PAINT COLOR 2

5 ASPHALT ROOF SHINGLES

6 FIBER CEMENT BOARD FASCIA, EAVES, PARAPET

7 METAL HANDRAIL

8 VINYL WINDOW

9 BUILDING ENTRY

10 WATER ENTRY/BOOSTER PUMP CLOSET

11 EXTERIOR WALL MOUNT LIGHT SCONCE

12 STOREFRONT

14 DOWNSPOUT

15 PAINTED WOOD BRACKETS

16 MAILBOXES

17 GAS METER, PAINT TO MATCH ADJACENT ELEVATION

18 ELECTRIC METERS, PAINT TO MATCH ADJACENT ELEVATION

19 CAST STONE - MATCH STONE COLOR

20 OPAQUE METAL GATE, PAINT TO MATCH RAILINGS

21 METAL GATE

22 WALL MOUNT LOW VOLT CABINETS, PAINT TO MATCH ADJACENT
ELEVATION

SCALE:

1/16" = 1'-0" 1BLDGS 1, 2 SOUTH ELEVATION 1

SITE KEY PLAN

12

3

4
C

6 7
8

#

1

03
/18

/20
19

DA
TE

:

03
/18

/20
19

A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT IN THE
CITY OF WESTMINSTER, COUNTY OF

ADAMS, STATE OF COLORADO
SHEET 9 OF 37

THIRD AMENDED OFFICIAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN
LOTS 11, 12, 45, 46, 47 AND 48
HOLLYHURST SUBDIVISION

CASE # PLN19-0039

05
/20

/20
19

ST
 M

AR
K 

VI
LL

AG
E

OF
FI

CI
AL

 D
EV

EL
OP

EM
EN

T 
PL

AN
07

/26
/20

19

30 9 31 9 79 8 SHEET 31 OF 38

31 OF 37
BUILDING C -
ELEVATIONS

SHEET 31 OF 37



STONE - COLOR 1

ELEVATION LEGEND

FIBER CEMENT PANEL - COLOR 1

LAP SIDING - COLOR 1

ASPHALT ROOF TILES

BOARD AND BATTEN - COLOR 1

ELEVATION NOTES

1. ALL CONDENSERS WILL BE ROOF MOUNTED, AS ALLOWED BY 
CODE, AND WILL BE SCREENED FROM VIEW.

T.O.C. LEVEL 1

T.O.S. LEVEL 2

T.O.S. LEVEL 3

T.O.P. LEVEL 3

T.O. PARAPET

T.O. RIDGE

4
5
'-4

"

5 83 27 154 119

T.O.C. LEVEL 1

T.O.S. LEVEL 2

T.O.S. LEVEL 3

T.O.P. LEVEL 3

T.O. PARAPET

T.O. RIDGE

4
5
'-4

"

5 832 7 154

KTGY -  ARCHITECTURE + PLANNING
820 16TH STREET, SUITE 500
DENVER, CO. 80202
(303) 825-6400
CONTACT: Project Manager
ktgy@ktgy.com

SITE KEY PLAN

12

3

4
C

6 7
8

# KEYNOTES - SDP

1 STONE - COLOR 1

2 FIBER CEMENT PANELING - COLOR 1

3 FIBER CEMENT LAP SIDING (VARIED EXPOSURE ) -COLOR 1

4 BOARD AND BATTEN - PAINT COLOR 2

5 ASPHALT ROOF SHINGLES

6 FIBER CEMENT BOARD FASCIA, EAVES, PARAPET

7 METAL HANDRAIL

8 VINYL WINDOW

9 BUILDING ENTRY

10 WATER ENTRY/BOOSTER PUMP CLOSET

11 EXTERIOR WALL MOUNT LIGHT SCONCE

12 STOREFRONT

14 DOWNSPOUT

15 PAINTED WOOD BRACKETS

16 MAILBOXES

17 GAS METER, PAINT TO MATCH ADJACENT ELEVATION

18 ELECTRIC METERS, PAINT TO MATCH ADJACENT ELEVATION

19 CAST STONE - MATCH STONE COLOR

20 OPAQUE METAL GATE, PAINT TO MATCH RAILINGS

21 METAL GATE

22 WALL MOUNT LOW VOLT CABINETS, PAINT TO MATCH ADJACENT
ELEVATION

SCALE:

1/16" = 1'-0" 1BLDG 1 WEST ELEVATION 1 & BLDG 2 EAST
ELEVATION 1

SCALE:

1/16" = 1'-0" 2BLDG 1 WEST ELEVATION 2 & BLDG 2 EAST
ELEVATION 2

1

03
/18

/20
19

DA
TE

:

03
/18

/20
19

A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT IN THE
CITY OF WESTMINSTER, COUNTY OF

ADAMS, STATE OF COLORADO
SHEET 9 OF 37

THIRD AMENDED OFFICIAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN
LOTS 11, 12, 45, 46, 47 AND 48
HOLLYHURST SUBDIVISION

CASE # PLN19-0039

05
/20

/20
19

ST
 M

AR
K 

VI
LL

AG
E

OF
FI

CI
AL

 D
EV

EL
OP

EM
EN

T 
PL

AN
07

/26
/20

19

31T 9 O32 9 79 8 SHEET 32 OF 38

32 OF 37
BUILDING C -
ELEVATIONS

SHEET 32 OF 37



STONE - COLOR 1

ELEVATION LEGEND

FIBER CEMENT PANEL - COLOR 1

LAP SIDING - COLOR 1

ASPHALT ROOF TILES

BOARD AND BATTEN - COLOR 1

ELEVATION NOTES

1. ALL CONDENSERS WILL BE ROOF MOUNTED, AS ALLOWED BY 
CODE, AND WILL BE SCREENED FROM VIEW.

T.O.C. LEVEL 1

T.O.S. LEVEL 2

T.O.S. LEVEL 3

T.O.P. LEVEL 3

T.O. PARAPET

T.O. RIDGE

4
5
'-4

"

5 8 43 17

T.O.C. LEVEL 1

T.O.S. LEVEL 2

T.O.S. LEVEL 3

T.O.P. LEVEL 3

T.O. PARAPET

T.O. RIDGE

4
5
'-4

"

5 83 92 715 4

KTGY -  ARCHITECTURE + PLANNING
820 16TH STREET, SUITE 500
DENVER, CO. 80202
(303) 825-6400
CONTACT: Project Manager
ktgy@ktgy.com

SITE KEY PLAN

12

3

4
C

6 7
8

# KEYNOTES - SDP

1 STONE - COLOR 1

2 FIBER CEMENT PANELING - COLOR 1

3 FIBER CEMENT LAP SIDING (VARIED EXPOSURE ) -COLOR 1

4 BOARD AND BATTEN - PAINT COLOR 2

5 ASPHALT ROOF SHINGLES

6 FIBER CEMENT BOARD FASCIA, EAVES, PARAPET

7 METAL HANDRAIL

8 VINYL WINDOW

9 BUILDING ENTRY

10 WATER ENTRY/BOOSTER PUMP CLOSET

11 EXTERIOR WALL MOUNT LIGHT SCONCE

12 STOREFRONT

14 DOWNSPOUT

15 PAINTED WOOD BRACKETS

16 MAILBOXES

17 GAS METER, PAINT TO MATCH ADJACENT ELEVATION

18 ELECTRIC METERS, PAINT TO MATCH ADJACENT ELEVATION

19 CAST STONE - MATCH STONE COLOR

20 OPAQUE METAL GATE, PAINT TO MATCH RAILINGS

21 METAL GATE

22 WALL MOUNT LOW VOLT CABINETS, PAINT TO MATCH ADJACENT
ELEVATION

SCALE:

1/16" = 1'-0" 2BLDGS 1, 2 NORTH ELEVATION 2

SCALE:

1/16" = 1'-0" 1BLDGS 1, 2 NORTH ELEVATION 1

1

03
/18

/20
19

DA
TE

:

03
/18

/20
19

A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT IN THE
CITY OF WESTMINSTER, COUNTY OF

ADAMS, STATE OF COLORADO
SHEET 9 OF 37

THIRD AMENDED OFFICIAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN
LOTS 11, 12, 45, 46, 47 AND 48
HOLLYHURST SUBDIVISION

CASE # PLN19-0039

05
/20

/20
19

ST
 M

AR
K 

VI
LL

AG
E

OF
FI

CI
AL

 D
EV

EL
OP

EM
EN

T 
PL

AN
07

/26
/20

19

32 9 33 9 79 8 SHEET 33 OF 38

33 OF 37
BUILDING C -
ELEVATIONS

SHEET 33 OF 37



STONE - COLOR 1

ELEVATION LEGEND

FIBER CEMENT PANEL - COLOR 1

LAP SIDING - COLOR 1

ASPHALT ROOF TILES

BOARD AND BATTEN - COLOR 1

ELEVATION NOTES

1. ALL CONDENSERS WILL BE ROOF MOUNTED, AS ALLOWED BY 
CODE, AND WILL BE SCREENED FROM VIEW.

T.O.C. LEVEL 1

T.O.S. LEVEL 2

T.O.S. LEVEL 3

T.O.P. LEVEL 3

T.O. PARAPET

T.O. RIDGE

4
5
'-4

"

58 32 7 154 9

T.O.C. LEVEL 1

T.O.S. LEVEL 2

T.O.S. LEVEL 3

T.O.P. LEVEL 3

T.O. PARAPET

T.O. RIDGE

4
5
'-4

"

584 103 18

KTGY -  ARCHITECTURE + PLANNING
820 16TH STREET, SUITE 500
DENVER, CO. 80202
(303) 825-6400
CONTACT: Project Manager
ktgy@ktgy.com

KEYNOTES - SDP

1 STONE - COLOR 1

2 FIBER CEMENT PANELING - COLOR 1

3 FIBER CEMENT LAP SIDING (VARIED EXPOSURE ) -COLOR 1

4 BOARD AND BATTEN - PAINT COLOR 2

5 ASPHALT ROOF SHINGLES

6 FIBER CEMENT BOARD FASCIA, EAVES, PARAPET

7 METAL HANDRAIL

8 VINYL WINDOW

9 BUILDING ENTRY

10 WATER ENTRY/BOOSTER PUMP CLOSET

11 EXTERIOR WALL MOUNT LIGHT SCONCE

12 STOREFRONT

14 DOWNSPOUT

15 PAINTED WOOD BRACKETS

16 MAILBOXES

17 GAS METER, PAINT TO MATCH ADJACENT ELEVATION

18 ELECTRIC METERS, PAINT TO MATCH ADJACENT ELEVATION

19 CAST STONE - MATCH STONE COLOR

20 OPAQUE METAL GATE, PAINT TO MATCH RAILINGS

21 METAL GATE

22 WALL MOUNT LOW VOLT CABINETS, PAINT TO MATCH ADJACENT
ELEVATION

SCALE:

1/16" = 1'-0" 1BLDG 1 EAST ELEVATION 1 & BLDG 2 WEST
ELEVATION 1

SCALE:

1/16" = 1'-0" 2BLDG 1 EAST ELEVATION 2 & BLDG 2 WEST
ELEVATION 2 SITE KEY PLAN

12

3

4
C

6 7
8

#

1

03
/18

/20
19

DA
TE

:

03
/18

/20
19

A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT IN THE
CITY OF WESTMINSTER, COUNTY OF

ADAMS, STATE OF COLORADO
SHEET 9 OF 37

THIRD AMENDED OFFICIAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN
LOTS 11, 12, 45, 46, 47 AND 48
HOLLYHURST SUBDIVISION

CASE # PLN19-0039

05
/20

/20
19

ST
 M

AR
K 

VI
LL

AG
E

OF
FI

CI
AL

 D
EV

EL
OP

EM
EN

T 
PL

AN
07

/26
/20

19

33T 9 34 9 79 8 SHEET 34 OF 38

34 OF 37
BUILDING C -
ELEVATIONS

SHEET 34 OF 37



T.O.C. LEVEL 1

13 910 2

T.O. OF RIDGE

T.O.C. LEVEL 1

3516 152 18

T.O. OF RIDGE

T.O.C. LEVEL 1

184 391915

1
3
'-9

"

T.O. OF RIDGE

T.O.C. LEVEL 1

1 842 5 19

T.O. OF RIDGE

STONE - COLOR 1

ELEVATION LEGEND

FIBER CEMENT PANEL - COLOR 1

LAP SIDING - COLOR 1

ASPHALT ROOF TILES

BOARD AND BATTEN - COLOR 1

ELEVATION NOTES

1. ALL CONDENSERS WILL BE ROOF MOUNTED, AS ALLOWED BY 
CODE, AND WILL BE SCREENED FROM VIEW.

KTGY -  ARCHITECTURE + PLANNING
820 16TH STREET, SUITE 500
DENVER, CO. 80202
(303) 825-6400
CONTACT: Project Manager
ktgy@ktgy.com

SCALE:

1/16" = 1'-0" 1BLDG 5 NORTH ELEVATION

SCALE:

1/16" = 1'-0" 2BLDG 5 EAST ELEVATION

SCALE:

1/16" = 1'-0" 3BLDG 5 SOUTH ELEVATION

SCALE:

1/16" = 1'-0" 4BLDG 5 WEST ELEVATION

SITE KEY PLAN

12

3

4
C

6 7
8

# KEYNOTES - SDP

1 STONE - COLOR 1

2 FIBER CEMENT PANELING - COLOR 1

3 FIBER CEMENT LAP SIDING (VARIED EXPOSURE ) -COLOR 1

4 BOARD AND BATTEN - PAINT COLOR 2

5 ASPHALT ROOF SHINGLES

6 FIBER CEMENT BOARD FASCIA, EAVES, PARAPET

7 METAL HANDRAIL

8 VINYL WINDOW

9 BUILDING ENTRY

10 WATER ENTRY/BOOSTER PUMP CLOSET

11 EXTERIOR WALL MOUNT LIGHT SCONCE

12 STOREFRONT

14 DOWNSPOUT

15 PAINTED WOOD BRACKETS

16 MAILBOXES

17 GAS METER, PAINT TO MATCH ADJACENT ELEVATION

18 ELECTRIC METERS, PAINT TO MATCH ADJACENT ELEVATION

19 CAST STONE - MATCH STONE COLOR

20 OPAQUE METAL GATE, PAINT TO MATCH RAILINGS

21 METAL GATE

22 WALL MOUNT LOW VOLT CABINETS, PAINT TO MATCH ADJACENT
ELEVATION

1

03
/18

/20
19

DA
TE

:

03
/18

/20
19

A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT IN THE
CITY OF WESTMINSTER, COUNTY OF

ADAMS, STATE OF COLORADO
SHEET 9 OF 37

THIRD AMENDED OFFICIAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN
LOTS 11, 12, 45, 46, 47 AND 48
HOLLYHURST SUBDIVISION

CASE # PLN19-0039

05
/20

/20
19

ST
 M

AR
K 

VI
LL

AG
E

OF
FI

CI
AL

 D
EV

EL
OP

EM
EN

T 
PL

AN
07

/26
/20

19

34 9 35 9 79 8 SHEET 35 OF 38

2
7
'-3

 1
/2

"

2
7
'-3

 1
/2

"

2
7
'-3

 1
/2

"

35 OF 37
CLUBHOUSE-
ELEVATIONS

SHEET 35 OF 37



STONE - COLOR 1

ELEVATION LEGEND

FIBER CEMENT PANEL - COLOR 1

LAP SIDING - COLOR 1

ASPHALT ROOF TILES

BOARD AND BATTEN - COLOR 1

ELEVATION NOTES

1. ALL CONDENSERS WILL BE ROOF MOUNTED, AS ALLOWED BY 
CODE, AND WILL BE SCREENED FROM VIEW.

T.O.C. LEVEL 1

6
'-1

1
"

19 13

T.O.C. LEVEL 1

19201 3

6
'-1

1
"

T.O.C. LEVEL 1

6
'-1

1
"

191 3

T.O.C. LEVEL 1

19 120

6
'-1

1
"

KTGY -  ARCHITECTURE + PLANNING
820 16TH STREET, SUITE 500
DENVER, CO. 80202
(303) 825-6400
CONTACT: Project Manager
ktgy@ktgy.com

SCALE:

3/16" = 1'-0" 4TRASH ENCLOSURE ELEVATION

SCALE:

3/16" = 1'-0" 2TRASH ELEVATION

SCALE:

3/16" = 1'-0" 3TRASH ELEVATION

SCALE:

3/16" = 1'-0" 1TRASH ENCLOSURE ELEVATION

SITE KEY PLAN

12

3

4
C

6 7
8

KEYNOTES - SDP

1 STONE - COLOR 1

2 FIBER CEMENT PANELING - COLOR 1

3 FIBER CEMENT LAP SIDING (VARIED EXPOSURE ) -COLOR 1

4 BOARD AND BATTEN - PAINT COLOR 2

5 ASPHALT ROOF SHINGLES

6 FIBER CEMENT BOARD FASCIA, EAVES, PARAPET

7 METAL HANDRAIL

8 VINYL WINDOW

9 BUILDING ENTRY

10 WATER ENTRY/BOOSTER PUMP CLOSET

11 EXTERIOR WALL MOUNT LIGHT SCONCE

12 STOREFRONT

14 DOWNSPOUT

15 PAINTED WOOD BRACKETS

16 MAILBOXES

17 GAS METER, PAINT TO MATCH ADJACENT ELEVATION

18 ELECTRIC METERS, PAINT TO MATCH ADJACENT ELEVATION

19 CAST STONE - MATCH STONE COLOR

20 OPAQUE METAL GATE, PAINT TO MATCH RAILINGS

21 METAL GATE

22 WALL MOUNT LOW VOLT CABINETS, PAINT TO MATCH ADJACENT
ELEVATION

#

1

03
/18

/20
19

DA
TE

:

03
/18

/20
19

A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT IN THE
CITY OF WESTMINSTER, COUNTY OF

ADAMS, STATE OF COLORADO
SHEET 9 OF 37

THIRD AMENDED OFFICIAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN
LOTS 11, 12, 45, 46, 47 AND 48
HOLLYHURST SUBDIVISION

CASE # PLN19-0039

05
/20

/20
19

ST
 M

AR
K 

VI
LL

AG
E

OF
FI

CI
AL

 D
EV

EL
OP

EM
EN

T 
PL

AN
07

/26
/20

19

35

SCALE:

1/2" = 1'-0" 5ENTRY MONUMENT SIGN

9 26

PREFINISHED MTL FLASHING, 
MATCH FIBER CEMENT COLOR 1

SIGN CONTENT AREA WILL 
MEET CITY OF WESTMINSTER 
MUNICIPAL REQS. PROPOSED 
SIGN CONTENT: METAL 
LETTERING.

STONE, COLOR 1

PRECAST CONCRETE PLINTH

7'-0"

2
'-0

"
3
'-2

"

5
'-2

"

8" 1'-1 1/2" 4'-8 1/2"

8
"

2
'-4

"
8
"

1
'-6

"

LAP SIDING, COLOR 1

FIBER CEMENT PANEL, 
COLOR 1

DOWN LIGHTING

SCALE:

1/2" = 1'-0" 5ENTRY MONUMENT SIGN

9 79 8 SHEET 36 OF 38

36 OF 37
TRASH ENCL 
ELEVATIONS

SHEET 36 OF 37



DS

DS

DS

DS
DS

DS

DS

DS

DS
DS

DS

DS

DS

DSDSDS

DS

DS DS DS DS

DS DS DS DS DS

DS

DS
DSDS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS

DS DS DS DS DS

DS

DS DS DS

DS

DS
DS

DS
DS

DS

DS

DS
DS

DS

DS

DS DS DS DS DS

DS

DS DS DS

DS

DS
DS

DS
DS

DS

DS
DS

DS

DS DS DS

DS

DSDSDSDS

XFMR
XFMR

XFMR

XFMR

XFMR XFMR

XFMR

MONUMENT SIGN

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.6

0.8

0.9

1.1

1.1

1.1

1.1

1.0

0.9

0.7

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.4

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.3

0.4

0.7

1.1

1.4

1.7

1.9

1.9

1.8

1.6

1.3

1.0

0.7

0.7

0.7

0.8

0.8

0.8

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.3

0.5

0.9

1.2

1.6

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.1

1.9

1.6

1.2

0.8

0.7

0.9

1.0

1.1

1.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.2

0.4

0.8

1.2

1.6

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.3

1.9

1.4

1.0

0.8

0.9

1.2

1.4

1.6

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.5

1.4

1.3

1.1

0.9

0.8

1.0

1.6

1.9

2.4

1.1

1.6

1.8

1.5

1.2

1.2

1.4

1.9

1.8

1.3

1.1

1.0

1.4

1.4

0.8

0.5

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.9

1.3

1.5

1.4

1.2

1.1

1.4

2.0

2.4

3.0

1.9

2.1

2.2

2.1

2.1

2.2

2.2

2.4

2.3

2.1

2.1

1.5

1.6

1.5

1.1

0.9

0.6

0.3

0.2

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

1.4

1.7

1.7

1.6

1.5

1.5

1.8

2.3

2.7

3.0

2.6

2.5

2.4

2.5

2.5

2.5

2.5

2.6

2.5

2.5

2.3

1.6

1.5

1.3

1.2

0.9

0.6

0.4

0.2

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

1.4

1.8

1.9

1.8

1.7

1.9

2.1

2.5

2.8

2.9

2.6

2.7

2.6

2.5

2.6

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.5

2.5

2.3

0.8

0.9

0.7

0.5

0.3

0.2

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

1.0

1.6

1.9

2.0

2.1

2.5

2.7

3.0

3.0

2.9

2.7

2.9

3.0

2.9

2.7

2.4

2.2

2.2

2.3

2.2

1.9

0.0

0.2

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.7

1.4

1.7

2.0

2.5

3.0

2.6

3.4

3.2

2.8

2.7

3.2

3.2

3.0

2.9

2.2

1.9

1.9

2.1

1.8

2.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.4

1.8

2.5

2.9

2.9

3.1

3.1

2.6

2.6

3.1

2.9

2.7

2.7

2.1

1.7

1.7

1.9

1.8

1.8

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.5

0.9

1.3

1.7

2.5

3.0

3.0

3.3

3.2

2.6

2.7

3.2

3.1

2.9

2.8

2.1

1.8

1.8

1.9

1.8

1.6

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.7

1.1

1.4

1.8

2.3

2.9

3.2

3.3

3.0

2.7

2.7

3.0

3.1

2.8

2.4

1.9

1.9

2.0

2.0

1.9

1.7

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.8

1.2

1.6

1.8

2.1

2.6

2.7

2.9

2.8

2.7

2.6

2.7

2.5

2.1

2.0

1.6

1.7

1.9

2.0

1.8

1.7

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.9

1.3

1.7

2.0

2.2

2.4

2.4

2.5

2.8

2.7

2.7

2.5

2.1

1.7

1.8

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.9

1.8

1.9

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.2

0.4

0.8

1.2

1.6

1.9

2.0

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.4

2.1

1.8

1.5

1.6

1.4

1.4

1.5

1.8

1.8

2.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.2

0.4

0.6

1.0

1.5

2.0

1.9

1.6

1.5

1.6

1.8

2.2

2.3

1.8

1.3

1.6

1.4

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.7

1.7

1.7

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.2

1.2

1.1

1.0

1.2

1.4

1.6

1.8

1.7

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

1.2

1.2

0.9

1.0

1.3

1.6

1.7

1.6

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

1.7

1.4

1.3

0.9

0.9

1.1

1.5

1.6

1.8

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

1.5

1.3

1.3

1.0

0.9

1.1

1.4

1.5

1.8

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

1.1

1.2

1.2

1.1

1.0

1.1

1.3

1.3

1.4

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.2

0.3

0.5

0.9

1.3

1.6

1.6

1.3

1.1

1.2

1.4

1.7

1.7

1.3

1.2

1.2

1.4

1.7

1.6

1.2

0.9

1.3

1.4

1.3

1.2

1.2

1.3

1.2

1.0

1.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.2

0.4

0.7

0.9

1.1

1.4

1.4

1.3

1.4

1.4

1.4

1.5

1.5

1.4

1.5

1.5

1.4

1.5

1.4

1.2

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.3

1.3

1.4

1.4

1.1

1.0

1.6

2.4

3.5

3.7

2.7

1.2

0.4

0.1

0.0

0.3

0.4

0.6

0.9

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.3

1.3

1.3

1.4

1.4

1.4

1.4

1.4

1.4

1.4

1.4

1.3

1.2

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.6

1.2

0.8

1.3

1.9

2.6

2.6

2.2

1.0

0.5

0.1

0.0

0.2

0.4

0.5

0.7

0.8

0.9

0.9

1.1

1.1

1.1

1.1

1.0

1.0

1.1

1.2

1.1

1.1

1.0

0.9

1.0

1.0

1.1

1.3

1.6

1.8

2.1

2.0

1.4

0.7

0.7

0.5

0.2

0.1

0.0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.6

0.6

0.7

0.8

0.9

1.1

1.1

0.9

0.9

0.9

1.0

1.1

1.1

0.9

0.8

0.8

0.8

0.9

1.1

1.4

1.9

2.3

2.7

2.5

1.7

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.2

0.4

0.5

0.7

0.7

0.8

0.9

1.0

1.1

1.1

1.0

1.0

1.0

1.0

1.1

1.1

1.0

0.9

0.8

0.8

0.9

1.1

1.4

2.0

2.7

3.4

3.5

2.7

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.3

0.4

0.6

0.8

1.0

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.2

1.2

1.3

1.3

1.3

1.3

1.3

1.3

1.3

1.3

1.2

1.1

1.0

1.2

1.6

2.1

2.8

3.8

4.3

2.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.3

0.4

0.7

1.0

1.1

1.3

1.4

1.4

1.4

1.4

1.4

1.5

1.5

1.4

1.5

1.5

1.4

1.4

1.3

1.2

1.2

1.4

1.8

2.2

2.8

3.4

3.4

2.5

1.1

0.7

0.3

0.1

0.0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.9

1.2

1.5

1.5

1.3

1.3

1.3

1.4

1.7

1.6

1.4

1.4

1.4

1.4

1.6

1.5

1.2

1.1

1.7

2.0

2.3

2.6

2.9

2.6

1.9

0.8

1.3

1.8

2.9

3.1

2.5

1.3

0.6

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.3

0.0

1.5

1.8

2.0

2.1

2.3

2.2

1.8

1.0

1.6

2.1

3.3

4.1

2.8

1.3

0.5

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

1.8

1.8

1.9

1.8

1.7

1.8

1.6

1.2

1.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

1.9

1.7

1.7

1.5

1.4

1.5

1.5

1.4

1.4

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

1.5

1.5

1.3

1.2

1.3

1.5

1.5

1.6

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.8

1.3

1.2

1.1

1.2

1.5

1.6

1.6

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

1.5

1.1

0.9

0.8

0.9

1.3

1.6

1.2

0.8

0.7

1.2

1.1

1.1

1.3

1.5

1.7

1.6

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.3

0.5

0.9

1.1

1.4

1.6

1.6

1.6

1.7

1.7

1.8

1.8

1.6

1.4

1.2

0.9

1.1

1.1

1.4

1.6

1.8

1.7

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.9

1.2

1.4

1.6

1.7

1.8

2.0

2.1

2.1

2.0

1.9

1.8

1.5

1.2

1.0

1.1

1.3

1.6

1.7

1.7

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.8

1.0

1.2

1.4

1.6

1.8

2.0

2.3

2.4

2.3

2.2

2.1

1.8

1.4

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.7

1.8

1.9

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.7

0.8

0.9

1.1

1.3

1.6

2.0

2.5

2.8

2.8

2.8

2.7

2.2

1.5

1.2

1.2

1.3

1.7

1.8

1.8

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.5

0.6

0.7

0.8

1.1

1.4

1.8

2.4

3.1

3.5

3.5

3.1

2.3

1.6

1.2

1.2

1.4

1.7

1.8

1.6

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.5

0.6

0.7

0.8

0.9

1.2

1.7

2.5

3.4

4.8

4.8

3.4

2.5

1.7

1.2

1.2

1.5

1.7

1.8

1.7

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.8

0.9

0.9

1.0

1.1

1.5

2.2

2.7

4.4

6.7

6.7

4.4

2.8

2.2

1.5

1.3

1.3

1.6

1.7

1.6

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

1.1

1.1

1.1

1.1

1.1

1.4

1.9

2.4

3.9

5.9

5.9

3.9

2.4

2.0

1.4

1.2

1.2

1.5

1.7

1.7

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

1.4

1.3

1.2

1.0

0.9

1.1

1.7

2.4

3.3

4.6

4.6

3.3

2.4

1.7

1.2

1.0

1.1

1.5

1.6

1.6

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

1.6

1.3

1.3

1.0

1.0

1.1

1.4

2.0

2.7

3.0

3.0

2.7

2.1

1.5

1.2

1.1

1.2

1.4

1.5

1.4

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

1.4

1.2

1.2

1.0

0.9

0.9

1.2

1.7

2.0

2.0

2.0

2.1

1.8

1.4

1.1

1.0

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.3

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

1.0

1.1

1.1

0.9

0.8

0.7

0.9

1.1

1.2

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.3

1.2

1.0

1.0

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.1

0.3

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.7

0.8

0.8

0.7

0.6

0.5

0.6

0.7

0.7

0.6

0.7

0.9

1.2

1.2

1.0

0.9

1.1

1.3

1.3

1.2

0.6

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.4

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.3

0.5

1.0

1.6

1.5

1.1

0.9

1.0

1.3

1.4

1.3

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.6

1.3

2.5

1.9

1.3

1.0

1.0

1.3

1.5

1.5

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

1.2

2.4

4.0

2.8

1.7

1.1

1.1

1.4

1.5

1.7

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

1.9

3.6

4.9

3.3

1.7

1.1

1.2

1.5

1.5

1.5

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

3.0

4.0

4.8

3.1

1.6

1.1

1.3

1.5

1.7

1.5

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

3.0

4.6

4.6

2.8

1.4

1.0

1.2

1.6

1.6

1.3

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

2.0

4.7

4.5

2.6

1.3

1.0

1.2

1.6

1.6

1.5

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.2

1.6

3.9

3.2

2.2

1.2

1.0

1.3

1.7

1.7

1.7

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.2

1.0

2.2

2.0

1.5

1.1

1.1

1.4

1.7

1.6

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.2

0.8

1.5

1.4

1.0

1.0

1.2

1.5

1.7

1.6

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.2

0.6

1.0

1.1

0.8

0.9

1.1

1.5

1.7

1.6

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.4

0.9

1.1

1.0

0.8

0.8

1.0

1.4

1.5

1.7

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.7

1.5

1.5

1.1

0.8

0.7

0.9

1.4

1.5

1.8

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.2

1.2

2.6

2.2

1.6

0.9

0.7

0.9

1.3

1.4

1.5

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.2

1.9

4.4

3.4

2.1

1.0

0.7

0.9

1.1

1.2

0.9

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

3.1

5.4

4.2

2.2

1.0

0.7

0.7

0.9

1.1

0.8

0.3

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

3.2

5.4

4.1

2.2

1.0

0.6

0.6

0.8

0.8

0.5

0.5

0.3

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

3.2

5.4

4.2

2.3

1.0

0.6

0.6

0.8

0.9

0.8

0.8

0.6

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

2.1

4.5

4.1

2.4

1.2

0.7

0.7

0.9

1.0

1.1

1.0

0.9

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.3

1.6

3.7

3.0

2.2

1.3

0.9

0.9

1.1

1.0

1.2

1.3

1.4

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.2

1.0

2.1

2.0

1.7

1.3

1.2

1.3

1.5

1.1

1.4

1.5

1.7

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.7

1.4

1.6

1.5

1.5

1.6

1.8

2.1

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.4

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.4

0.9

1.4

1.6

1.9

2.1

2.3

2.8

1.6

1.5

1.6

1.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.6

1.2

1.5

1.7

2.3

2.6

3.6

3.2

1.8

1.6

1.7

1.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.9

1.9

1.9

1.9

2.4

2.7

3.7

3.9

2.4

1.8

1.7

1.2

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.3

1.5

3.4

2.9

2.6

2.6

2.8

3.8

5.3

3.4

2.0

1.8

1.4

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

1.4

4.2

4.1

2.9

2.6

2.7

3.7

4.8

2.7

1.9

1.8

1.8

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

3.1

5.5

4.4

2.9

2.5

2.8

3.7

3.3

2.1

1.6

1.7

1.6

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

3.3

5.5

4.3

3.0

2.4

2.5

2.7

2.7

1.5

1.4

1.5

1.2

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

3.1

5.4

4.5

2.9

2.1

2.0

2.2

2.5

1.3

1.2

1.3

0.9

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

1.8

4.5

3.9

2.8

1.9

1.7

1.9

2.0

1.1

1.0

1.0

0.7

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.3

1.3

3.1

2.7

2.3

1.7

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.0

1.0

1.0

0.7

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.8

1.8

1.9

1.7

1.6

1.6

1.8

1.9

1.2

1.1

1.2

0.8

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.5

1.1

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.9

2.1

2.2

1.3

1.3

1.3

1.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.3

0.8

1.4

1.7

2.0

2.3

2.4

2.7

1.5

1.5

1.6

1.6

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.5

1.1

1.6

1.9

2.5

2.7

3.6

3.1

1.8

1.7

1.9

1.9

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.8

1.7

2.3

2.2

2.6

2.9

3.8

3.9

2.5

1.9

1.8

1.5

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

1.5

3.1

3.5

3.1

3.0

2.9

3.9

5.4

3.5

2.0

1.8

1.2

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

1.9

4.0

4.6

3.6

3.0

2.9

3.8

5.0

2.8

2.0

1.9

1.2

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

2.9

4.3

4.9

3.6

3.0

2.8

3.7

3.5

2.3

1.8

1.8

1.4

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

3.0

4.2

4.9

3.6

2.8

2.5

2.7

2.7

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.7

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

2.8

4.2

5.0

3.5

2.4

2.0

2.1

2.4

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

1.9

3.6

3.9

3.0

2.0

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.1

1.3

1.3

1.2

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

1.0

2.0

2.6

2.0

1.5

1.1

1.1

1.2

0.9

1.0

1.0

0.8

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.5

1.1

1.5

1.3

1.0

0.8

0.7

0.8

0.6

0.7

0.7

0.5

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.2

0.5

0.9

0.8

0.6

0.5

0.4

0.5

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.3

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.3

0.4

0.5

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

A @ 21' A @ 21' A @ 21'

A @ 21' A @ 21' A @ 21'
A @ 21'

A @ 21'

A @ 21'

A @ 21'

A @ 21'

A @ 21'

A @ 21' A @ 21' A @ 21' A @ 21'

A @ 21'

A @ 21'

A @ 21'

A @ 21'

A @ 21'

A @ 21'

A @ 21'

A @ 21'

G @ 21'

G @ 21'

B @ 21'

C @ 21'

D @ 21'

D @ 21' D @ 21'

D @ 21'

F @ 21'F @ 21'

A @ 21'

A @ 21'

A @ 21'

A @ 21'

A @ 21'

A @ 21'

A @ 12'

A @ 12'

A @ 21'

A @ 21'

A @ 21'

GENERAL NOTES:                                

1. VERIFY ALL BUILDING FIXTURE MOUNTING HEIGHTS AND LOCATIONS WITH
ARCHITECT.

2. ANY PROPOSED LIGHT FIXTURES INSTALLED ON PRIVATE PROPERTY, ADJACENT
TO THE PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY, SHALL BE ORIENTED IN SUCH A MANNER OR
LIMITED IN LUMEN OUTPUT TO PREVENT GLARE PROBLEMS AND SHALL NOT
EXCEED NATIONAL I.E.S. LIGHTING STANDARDS FOR DISABILITY GLARE.

3. BUILDING MOUNTED LIGHTS AND POLE MOUNTED AREA LIGHTS SHALL BE
CIRCUITED THROUGH THE NEAREST BUILDING RELAY PANEL. A ROOF MOUNTED
PHOTOCELL SHALL TURN THE CIRCUITS ON/OFF AS A FUNCTION OF AVAILABLE
DAYLIGHT.

4. LANDSCAPE LIGHTING SHALL BE CIRCUITED THROUGH THE NEAREST BUILDING
RELAY PANEL AND CONTROLLED BY AN ASTRONOMICAL CLOCK WITH SETTINGS
THAT MEET OR EXCEEDS THE REQUIREMENTS IN SECTION C405 OF THE 2015
IECC. TIME SETTINGS SHALL BE SET SUCH THAT LANDSCAPE LIGHTS COME ON
AT SUNSET AND TURN OFF AT SUNRISE.

H @ GRADE

KEY NOTES: (DESIGNATED BY "    ")  

1. REFER TO CIVIL PLANS FOR EXISTING STREET LIGHT FIXTURE LOCATION.
PROPOSED STREET LIGHT SHALL MEET CITY OF WESTMINSTER STANDARDS.
REFER TO THE LATEST CITY OF WESTMINSTER'S STREET LIGHTING DESIGN,
STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS' PACKAGE.

1

#

1

H @ GRADE

Jordan & Skala
Engineers

Project Number:
Drawn By: Checked By:

     555 17th Street, Suite 700
         Denver, CO 80202
  p:303-586-2375  f: 303-586-2376

MBPE
1980051

03
/15

/19
DA

TE
:

03
/18

/20
19

05
/20

/20
19

THIRD AMENDED OFFICIAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN
LOTS 11, 12, 45, 46, 47 AND 48
HOLLYHURST SUBDIVISION
A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT
IN THE CITY OF WESTMINSTER

COUNTY OF ADAMS, STATE OF COLORADO
SHEET     OF 37

CASE# PLN19-0039

ST
 M

AR
K 

VI
LL

AG
E

OF
FI

CI
AL

 D
EV

EL
OP

EM
EN

T 
PL

AN
07

/26
/20

19

NORTH

SCALE:

1

SITE PLAN - PHOTOMETRICS

1" = 60'-0"

37


	Pre-Meeting Agenda 8.13.19
	Meeting Agenda 08132019
	PC Minutes 06112019 needs signature
	PDP-ODP Agenda Memo 8-13-19 PC Final wSignature
	Attachment 1 - Vicinity Map
	Attachment 2 - Exceptions List
	Attachment 3 - Public Comments Received
	Attachment 3 - Public Comments Received - Start to 08-08-19
	Donald Roth Letter - Jul 09
	Hehn Family Letter - Jun 27
	Lacina Family Letter - Jun 10
	Margaret Himman Letter - Jun 28
	Nancy Stephens Letter - Jun 26
	Terri Jo Jenkins Letter - Jul 02
	SMV-Letter of Support 01
	SMV-Letter of Support 02
	Untitled


	Attachment 4 - PDP
	Sheets and Views
	1 COVER
	2 NOTES
	3 NOTES
	4 NOTES
	5 OVERALL PLAN


	Attachment 5 - ODP
	ODP - 97th & Federal
	Sheets and Views
	1 COVER
	2 PROJECT NOTES
	3 PROJECT NOTES
	4 PROJECT NOTES
	5 PROJECT NOTES
	6 OVERALL PLAN
	7 SITE PLAN
	8 SITE PLAN
	9 SITE PLAN
	10 GRADING PLAN
	11 GRADING PLAN
	12 GRADING PLAN
	13 UTILITY PLAN
	14 UTILITY PLAN
	15 UTILITY PLAN


	St marks landscape 7-31-19
	2019-07-31 ODP Arch. Sheets-Greyscale
	Sheets
	25 OF 37 - BUILDING A - ELEVATIONS
	26 OF 37 - BUILDING A - ELEVATIONS
	27 OF 37 - BUILDING B - ELEVATIONS
	28 OF 37 - BUILDING B - ELEVATIONS
	29 OF 37 - BUILDING B - ELEVATIONS
	30 OF 37 - BUILDING C - ELEVATIONS
	31 OF 37 - BUILDING C - ELEVATIONS
	32 OF 37 - BUILDING C - ELEVATIONS
	33 OF 37 - BUILDING C - ELEVATIONS
	34 OF 37 - CLUBHOUSE - ELEVATIONS
	35 OF 37 - TRASH ENCLOS. ELEVATIONS

	Page 2

	ODP-37
	Sheets and Views
	37






